
	
	

	

GOLDSBORO	CITY	COUNCIL		
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA		
MONDAY,	APRIL	1,	2019		
	

(Please	turn	off,	or	silence,	all	cellphones	upon	entering	the	Council	Chambers)	
	
I. ADOPTION	OF	THE	AGENDA	

	
II. WORK	SESSION–5:00	P.M.	–	CITY	HALL	ADDITION,	200	N.	CENTER	ST.,	ROOM	206	

OLD	BUSINESS	
a. Disclosure	Form	Complaint	Investigation	Results	(City	Attorney)	 	

	
NEW	BUSINESS	
b. Keys	to	Healing‐Guinness	World	Record	Request	(City	Manager)		
c. 1919	American	LaFrance	100	Year	Anniversary	and	Restoration	Drive	(Fire)		
	

III. CALL	TO	ORDER	–	7:00	P.M.	–	COUNCIL	CHAMBERS,	214	N.	CENTER	ST.	
Invocation	(Rev.	Penny	Ziemer,	First	Christian	Church)	
Pledge	to	the	Flag	

	
IV. ROLL	CALL	

 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (*Motion/Second) 

A. Minutes	of	the	City	Council	Retreat	on	February	14‐15,	2019		
	

VI. PRESENTATIONS	
B. Human	Relations	Awards	Presentations	
C. National	Service	Recognition	Day	Proclamation		
D. Boys	and	Girls	Club	Week	Proclamation		
E. Week	of	the	Young	Child	Proclamation		
F. Comprehensive	Annual	Financial	Audit	Presentation	(Dean	Horne	of	Carr,	Riggs	and	Ingram)	
G. 2019	Work	Plan	Presentation	(DGDC)		
	

VII. PUBLIC	COMMENT	PERIOD	(TIME	LIMIT	OF	3	MINUTES	PER	SPEAKER)	
	
VIII. CONSENT	AGENDA	ITEMS	(*Motion/Second‐‐Roll	Call)	

H. Contract	Award	–	Repainting	of	Center/Holly	Street	Water	Storage	Tank	‐	Formal	Bid	No.	2019‐
001	(Engineering)		

I. 2018	Wastewater	Collection	System	Rehabilitation	–	Change	Order	#1	(Engineering)		
J. NC	Historic	Preservation	Tax	Credit	Program	Support	(Downtown	Goldsboro)		
K. FY	2016	TIGER	Discretionary	Grant	Agreement,	Grant	No.	12155296	(Downtown	Goldsboro)	
L. Award	to	Cunningham	Recreation	to	install	Splash	Pad	at	Bryan	Multi‐Sports	Complex	(Parks	and	

Recreation)		
M. Z‐3‐19	Woodmac,	LLC	–	East	side	of	North	Berkeley	Boulevard	between	Holly	Road	and	E.	New	

Hope	Road	(Planning)	



	

	

N. Z‐4‐19	MC	Morgan	&	Associates	–	South	side	of	Central	Heights	Road	between	N.	Oak	Forest	Drive	
and	Thoroughfare	Road	(R‐12	Residential	and	R‐16	Residential	to	R‐12	CD	Residential	‐	
Conditional	District)	(Planning)	

O. Z‐5‐19	Allsbrook	Gardens	–	East	side	of	Cuyler	Best	Road	between	Chafin	Road	and	Oxford	
Boulevard	(R‐16	Residential	to	R‐6	CD	Residential	‐	Conditional	District)	(Planning)	

P. CU‐3‐19	Michael	Garrett	–	Subject	property	located	on	the	North	side	of	E.	Ash	Street	between	
Durant	Street	and	Ridgewood	Drive	(Place	of	Entertainment	w/out	ABC)	(Planning)	

Q. CU‐4‐19	Scott	and	Christopher	Wood	–	Subject	property	located	on	the	North	side	of	E.	Ash	Street	
between	N.	James	Street	and	N.	Center	Street	(Planning)		

R. Unified	Development	Ordinance	Amendments	(Planning)	
	
IX. ITEMS	REQUIRING	INDIVIDUAL	ACTION	(*Motion/Second)	

	
X. CITY	MANAGER’S	REPORT	

	
XI. MAYOR	AND	COUNCILMEMBERS’	REPORTS	AND	RECOMMENDATIONS	

S. Goldsboro	Toastmasters	Anniversary	Month	Proclamation		
	

XII. CLOSED	SESSION	
	
XIII. ADJOURN	
	
	
	
	
	
	



MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL RETREAT OF MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL HELD 
FEBRAURY 14-15, 2019 

February 14, 2019 
The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met for their Annual 

Retreat beginning February 14, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. at the Goldsboro Event Center, 1501 S. 
Slocumb Street, Goldsboro, North Carolina with attendance for February 14, 2019 as follows: 

Councilmembers Present: Mayor Chuck Allen 
Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 
Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember Bevan Foster 
Councilmember Aycock  
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

Other Members Present: Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney (arrived at 8:35 a.m.) 
Melissa Corser, City Clerk 
LaToya Henry, Public Information Officer 
Octavius Murphy, Assistant to the City Manager 
Mike West, Police Chief 
Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director 
Mike Wagner, Deputy Public Works Director – Utilities  
Chad Edge, Deputy Public Works Director – Operations  
Felicia Brown, Interim Parks & Recreation Director 
Jennifer Collins, Planning Director  
Allen Anderson, Chief Building Inspector 
Julie Metz, DGDC Director  
Sherry Archibald, Paramount & Goldsboro Event Center Director  
Shycole Simpson-Carter, Community Relations Director 
Marty Anderson, City Engineer  
Bernadette Carter-Dove, HR Director  
Joe Dixon, Fire Chief  
Scott Williams, IT Director  
Brad Hinnant, Assistant IT Director  
Ashlin Glatthar, Travel & Tourism Director 
Joey Pitchford, News Argus Reporter (arrived at 8:32 a.m.) 
Carl Martin, Citizen 
Mark Pope, Development Alliance (arrived at 8:54 a.m.) 
Sylvia Barnes, Citizen (arrived at 10:37 a.m.) 
Shirley Edwards, Citizen (arrived at 11:04 a.m.) 

Call to Order  
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 8:30 a.m.   

Mr. Randy Guthrie shared Ms. Kaye Scott would be unable to attend today.  The Financial 
Update will be provided at Monday’s Work Session.  

Adoption of the Agenda 
Upon motion of Councilmember Broadaway, seconded by Councilmember Aycock and 
unanimously carried, Council adopted the agenda. 

Review of Last Year’s Retreat Decisions 
Mr. Randy Guthrie reviewed and provided an update on last year’s retreat decisions.  

Annual Police Department Update 
Chief West reviewed the following information: 

Item A 



 2

Seniority List  
110 Sworn Law Enforcement Officers 
 
Years of Service   Number of Officers/Percentage 
Over 20 years         12 – 11%    
Over 10 but less than 20 years     33 – 30% 
Over 5 but less than 10 years       17 – 15% 
Less than 5 years            38 – 35% 
Vacant      10 – 9% 
TOTAL              110 
 
Sworn Officer Assignments 
Chief - 1 
VICE - 5 
 
Operations Division 
 Major – 1 Patrol - 56 (10 Vacancies)    Warrants - 1 Park - 1  
 2 Applicants in Pre-Hire / BLET set to graduate in August 2019. 
 
Investigations Division 
 Major - 1   Investigators - 12    CID - 4   Crime Prevention - 4   SRO - 3 
 
Support Services Division 
 Major - 1 Intel - 1     Housing Unit - 5   SEU-5  GSU-3 
 Training-2 Community Partnership Coordinator-2 
 
Office of Professional Development - 1  
 Office of Professional Development - 1 
 
10 Vacancies  
 
GPD Uniformed Crime Reporting 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 3

 
 
Homicides 
 

 
 
Five Year Crime Trend 
 

 
 
Criminal Investigations Division 
11- Investigators are assigned to the Criminal Investigations Division 
3 – Crimes Against Persons  
3 – Property Crimes 
3 – Financial Crimes  
1 – Juvenile/Missing Persons/Sex Crimes  
1 – Task Force Investigator  
(ATF/Violent Crimes) 
 
Investigator Case Load 2018 

• 94 Cases assigned to 3 Persons Crimes Investigators  
• 158 Cases assigned to 2 Property Crimes Investigators 
• 126 Cases assigned to 3 Financial Crimes Investigators 
• 72 Cases assigned to 1 Juvenile/Missing Person/Sex Crimes Investigator 
• 40 Cases assigned to 1 Special/Task Force Investigator 
• A total of 490 Felony cases were assigned to this division in 2018 (Average of 44.5 cases 

per Investigator)  
• 6.5% decrease from 2017. 



 4

 
The case load is consistent with other departments. 
 
Clearance Rate 
Goldsboro Police Department’s 
UCR Clearance Rate vs. National Rate 
 
In 2018 the Goldsboro Police Department cleared 28.6% of UCR Crimes by arrest compared to 
the National average of 32.2%. The Goldsboro Police Department cleared 34.1% of UCR Crimes 
by exceptional means.   
 
Training Hours 2018 
Officers of the Goldsboro Police Department received 14,239 hours of training in 2018.  This 
training includes the 24 hours of training mandated by the NC Criminal Justice Education and 
Training Standards Commission for each sworn officer, along with other specialized training 
courses to enhance the officer’s skills and knowledge as they continue to effectively serve the 
citizens of Goldsboro.  
 
* Leadership through Community Oriented Policing 
* Equality in Policing 
* De-Escalation Training 
* Strategies to Improve LE Interactions & Relationships with Minority Youth 
 
Police Vehicles 
64 Total Vehicles  
61 Take Home 
  3 Spare 
 
Model Year 

• 2005 – 1  
• 2006 – 3  
• 2008 – 5  
• 2009 – 2    
• 2010 – 3  
• 2011 – 1 
• 2013 – 9  
• 2014 – 9  
• 2015 – 1    
• 2016 – 19  
• 2018 – 10  

  
2019 average age of the fleet – 7.6 yrs old. Currently waiting delivery of 4 Dodge Chargers that 
will be assigned to Patrol.  These 4 marked Chargers are not included in the above totals or 
average. 
 
Marked Patrol Cars – Mileage 

• 42 Vehicles have under 80,000 miles.  
• 4 Vehicles have 80,001 to 100,000 miles.  
• 6 Vehicles have 100,001 to 120,000 miles.  
• 12 Vehicles have over 120,000 miles.  

Take home cars are averaging 10,000 miles per year. 
 
Note: 

• The service life of a Take Home car is about 8-10 years. 
• The service life of a Line Car was about 5-6 years. 
• Service life is based on 80,000 to 100,000 miles and the average cost to maintain the 

vehicle.  
• The decision to deadline a car is based on model year, mileage, parts availability, 

maintenance cost and the overall safety of the car.  
 
 



 5

Marked Patrol Cars – Summary  
• 11 vehicles are ten years old or older. 
• 18 vehicles currently have over 100,000 miles on them and that number could increase to 

23 by the end of 2019.  
• 50% of the total yearly maintenance cost on the fleet is for vehicles that comprise 23% of 

the fleet. 
• High mileage vehicles are less reliable, use more fuel, require more oil between servicing 

and due to the poor appearance of the cars, reflect negatively upon the Police Department 
and the City of Goldsboro.  

 
Fleet Vehicle Replacement Plan 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

10 10 10 10 10 Patrol 
2 2 2 2 2 Admin 
 

• 10 Patrol Cars, 2 Admin cars per year 
• Increase the size of the fleet to allow for additional take home cars for officers living 

outside of the city limits and to replace older cars 
• More vehicles under warranty; reduces maintenance cost 
• Enhance public image of Police Department 
• Improve officer moral 

 
Admin Vehicles 

 38 Total Vehicles  
o 31 Take Home 
o 5 Spare 
o 1 Training 
o 1 Surveillance 

Model Year 
• 2000 – 1  
• 2001 – 3  
• 2002 – 3  
• 2004 – 2    
• 2005 – 3  
• 2006 – 2 
• 2007 – 2 
• 2009 - 3 
• 2010 - 5 
• 2013 - 1 
• 2014 - 2 
• 2016 - 7 
• 2018 - 2  
• 2019 - 2  

 
2019 average age of Admin Vehicles is 11 yrs. old.  Currently waiting on the delivery of (2) 
Dodge Chargers and (2) Escapes that will be assigned to Admin.  These 4 vehicles are not 
included in the above totals or average 
 
FY 19-20 Police/Admin Vehicle Request 
(12) 2019 Dodge Charger 
(1) 2019 Dodge Journey                                              
(1) 2019 Chevy Silverado       
(1) Dodge Durango  
 
CALEA Accreditation 

• Enrollment in CALEA on August 22, 2017 
• Halfway through our Self-Assessment with 18 months remaining  
• PowerDMS, our document management system, is in use 



 6

• Distribution and tracking of all directives, including revisions 
• 64 policies have been implemented with over 80 corresponding forms 

• All high liability policies have been reviewed by the City Attorney 
• Approximately 28 more policies to implement over next two months 

• Making updates to our Strategic Plan and Recruitment Plan for 2019-2020 
• Goals for 2019 

• Finish implementing all policies and forms 
• Finalize our Multi-Year Plan 
• Collect proofs of compliance for all 360+ standards and add to Power DMS. This 

shows that we are doing what we have written in policy (completed forms, etc.). 
• In July, schedule our CALEA Assessment for August of 2020 

 
Council discussed how long it takes to receive the new vehicles, have equipment installed and 
vehicles put into service.  Mayor Allen asked if installing the equipment and decals on the new 
police vehicles was something our garage could do.  Chief West stated that is something we 
could look into.  Officer retention was also discussed.  Councilmember Williams requested 
information regarding juvenile arrests statistics since the implementation of the Summer Youth 
Employment Initiative.  Chief West to provide juvenile arrests statistics since the implementation 
of the Summer Youth Employment Initiative. 
 
Wayne County Development Alliance  
Mr. Mark Pope, President of the Wayne County Development Alliance, provided Council with 
information on target markets, provided an update on various projects and recruiting businesses.   
 
Council discussed with Mr. Pope opportunity zones, apprenticeships, internships, marketing the 
community and what can the city can do to assist in recruitment of businesses. 
 
Street Resurfacing   
Mr. Marty Anderson provided the following information: 
 
Pavement Condition Survey 

 Pavement Distress Type 
 Pavement Condition Rating (PCR) 
 Last survey was completed by Engineering Department Staff in February 2018 

 
Pavement Condition Rating (PCR) 

 PCR range is 0 to 100 
 0 is the worst condition 
 100 is the best condition 
 A good pavement condition is considered >75-80 

 
Pavement Condition Rating Statistics 

 Total number of paved street miles within the PCR database = ~159 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 10 = ~4.3 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 20 = ~8.4 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 30 = ~15.6 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 40 = ~23.9 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 50 = ~39.6 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 60 = ~55.3 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 70 = ~71.7 miles 
o Street miles with PCR < 80 = ~95.0 miles 

 Current percentage of paved street miles with a PCR < 80 = ~53% 
o Average percentage of paved street miles with a PCR < 80 for cities our size = 

~35% (per 2009 Pavement Condition Survey findings) 
o After 2019-2020 Street Resurfacing completion (~8.5 miles), street miles with a 

PCR < 80 = ~48% 
 
Pavement Distress 

 Block/Transverse Cracking 
 Alligator Cracking 



 7

 Reflective Cracking 
 Rutting 
 Raveling  
 Bleeding 
 Ride Quality 
 Utility Cut/Patching 

 
2019-2020 Street Resurfacing Schedule 

 March 2019 – Street resurfacing list finalized 
 May 2019 – Detailed drawings and estimate completed 
 June 2019 – Project bid documents completed and advertised 
 July 2019 -  Project bid opening 
 Council Meeting in August 2019 – Project award by City Council 
 September 2019 – Project construction begins 
 March 2020 – Project complete 

 
Mr. Anderson also provided a list of recommended streets for resurfacing and the 2019-20 Dirt 
Streets Surfacing Priority listing.  Funding for the paving of dirt streets was also discussed.  
Council agreed to look at the list of proposed streets to be resurfaced and finalize the list in 
March. 
 
City Project Updates 
Central Police/Fire Complex Expansion 
Mr. Allen Anderson provided an update on the project and shared the following information: 
 
Projects – Next Steps (2 weeks) 
Goldsboro PD Addition #1 (main addition) 

 Slab prep to begin  
 Slab placement  
 Set exterior door frame and start exterior masonry 

 
Goldsboro FD Addition #2 and #3 

 Foundation layout  
 Foundations completed 
 Masonry foundation walls to begin 

 
No Change Orders 
Completion Date (Phase 2) February 28, 2020 
 
Goldsboro Fire Station No. 4 
Mr. Anderson also provided an update on Goldsboro Fire Station No. 4 and provided the 
following information: 
 
Fire Station #4 – Next Steps  

 Place footings 
 Prep/pour stem wall 
 Start under slab work (Plumbing & Electrical) 
 Prep slab 

No Change Orders 
Completion Date September 2019 
 
Downtown Project Updates 
Ms. Julie Metz provided the following information: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8

 
TIGER Grant 2016 – Cost Estimates Versus Budget   

 
 
Tracking Costs 
The HUB: $1.27M 
Center Street: $4.1M 
 
Considerations 

 Splash Playground 
 Public Restrooms 
 Shelter/Stage 
 Fireplace 
 Alternative Funding Sources 
 3rd Roundabout 
 Schedule 

 
TIGER Grant 2016 –Wayfinding Signs 

 
Current Update: 

 Conducted RFQ 
 95% Ready to Release Solicitation of Bids 

 
TIGER Grant 2016 – Schedule 
Start of Final Design: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: June 2018 
GWTA Concourse Construction: December 2020 



 9

The HUB Construction: June 2018 
Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation: August 2014 

 
Completion of Final Design: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: April 2019 
GWTA Concourse Construction: March 2021 
The HUB Construction: May 2019 
Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation: August 2015 

 
Planned Construction Contract Award Date: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: May 2018 
GWTA Concourse Construction: May 2021 
The HUB Construction: April 2018 
Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation: May 2019 

 
Planned Construction Start Date: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: April 2019 
GWTA Concourse Construction: July 2021 
The HUB Construction: April 2019 
Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation: May 2019 

 
Planned Project Construction Substantial Completion: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: May 2020 
GWTA Concourse Construction: January 2022 
The HUB Construction: May 2020 
Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation: February 2020 

 
Ms. Metz also provided an update on the Rehab Development Project.  
 
T.C. Coley Community Center  
Mr. Randy Guthrie provided the following information:  
Roof, Cost for Tables and Chairs and Interior and Exterior Water Damage Repairs 
 
Roof: 
Repair option:  repair100-200 sq. ft. of the game room roof system  
Curtis Construction = $9,800.00 
Brock Construction and Wayne Roofing were contacted, however, no quotes were submitted  
Replacement options:  replace the entire game room roof system 
Curtis Construction w/ 20 year warranty = $35,000.00 
Brock Construction w/ 15 year warranty = $32,800.00  
Wayne Roofing w/ 15 year warranty = $33,500.00  
 
Tables and chairs: 
(24) 6ft rectangular tables and (72) chairs = $5,996.0 
Table carts (holds 12 tables, need 2) = $289.98 x 2 = $579.96 
Chair carts (holds 32 chairs, need 4) = $244.98 x 4 = $979.92 
Total cost = $7,555.88 
 
Water damage repairs (interior and exterior): 
Scrap and paint 200’ linear ft. of 10’ tall block walls with 3 coats = $1,800.00 
Remove and replace 85 sq. ft. of plaster on the interior walls = $1,200.00 
Mortar joints where mortar has fallen along the walls of the game room and seal all brick on 
those walls approximately 103’ = $1,600.00 
Brock Construction Fee = $920.00 
Total cost = $5,520.00 
 
Total Repair Cost: 
Total cost for tables, chairs and all repairs = $22,875.88 
Total cost for tables, chairs, repairs and replacing the roof = $45,875.88 
 
Recommendation: 



 10

Total cost for tables, chairs and roof repair = $15,320.00 
 
Council discussed.  Mayor Allen asked if Community Relations had available funding on the 
public service side to make needed repairs.  Staff will look into available funding.  Council 
requested staff look at potential ways to lower the cost of tables and chairs needed, such as 
looking on govdeals or federal surplus.  Staff to bring back a budget amendment for roof repairs 
and fiber costs for Council approval and get better numbers for tables and chairs for the T.C 
Coley Community Center.   
 
Public Utilities Projects Update 
Mr. Mike Wagner provided an update on the following projects: 
 

 WTP: Plate Settlers: $2,000,000 
 Flood Control Structure: $600,000 
 WRF EQ Basins: $20,000,000 
 WTP Mitigation: $2,000,000 

 
Councilmember Foster asked about the city’s quality of water.  Mr. Wagner stated we have met 
all state, federal and local regulations.  The Annual Water Quality Report will be available by 
July 1st.   
 
Engineering Projects Update 
Mr. Marty Anderson provided an update on the following projects: 
 

 Glenwood Trail Storm Drain Replacement Project 
 Center/Holly Street Water Tank Painting 
 SJAFB Sewer Outfall Improvements 
 Ash Street/Alabama  Avenue Sidewalk 
 Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 
 2018 Street Resurfacing 
 2018 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation  
 Stoney Creek Greenway  
 Grantham Street Bridge Replacement  

 
DOT/Transportation Projects  
Ms. Jennifer Collins provided an update on the following projects: 
 

 U-2714 US 117 (William Street Widening) 
 U-5724 Central Heights Road / Royall Avenue at Berkeley Boulevard 
 U-3609B US 13 (Berkeley Boulevard) 
 U-4407E. Ash Street (Berkeley to Hwy 70) 
 U-4753 Wayne Memorial Drive Widening  
 U-5994 Wayne Memorial Drive Improvements 

 
Travel & Tourism 
Ms. Ashlin Glatthar provided an update on activities going on including the Wings Over Wayne 
Air Show coming up in April.  She also provided information regarding the FAM Tour.  As a 
result of the FAM Tour, Destination Magazine featured us in the January 2019 issue, and they 
will continue featuring us in their monthly publication and digital outlets through April 2019.  
 
Fire Department  
Chief Dixon provided an update on departmental activities.  Chief Dixon shared they are 
working on a capital replacement plan and they are looking at the department’s mission, vision 
and values.  Fire calls are going down.  Chief Dixon thanked Council for their support and 
announced James Farfour was named Deputy Chief.  Staff has been working with Parks and 
Recreation on a greenway project.   
 
Employee morale and billing for EMS calls were discussed.  Chief Dixon to provide a report 
regarding EMS billing. 
 



 11

Lunch Break at 11:38 a.m. 
 
Returned from Lunch at 12:30 p.m. 
 
DGDC & Downtown Development Department History 
Ms. Julie Metz presented the following information: 
 
History  

 1977 – Municipal Service (Tax) District Established and, DGDC Formed via Charter 
 1980 – DGDC became a certified 501 (c) (3), Non-Profit Organization 
 1984 – Main Street Program Application & Acceptance  
 1993 – City Downtown Department Created & Became a Quasi-Public Private Effort 

 
Main Street™ Approach 

 
 
Main Street™ Approach 
Eight Guiding Principles: 
1) Comprehensive: No single focus. 
2) Incremental: Baby steps before walking. 
3) Self-help: No one else will save Your Downtown. 
4) Partnerships: Both the public & private sectors. 
5) Assets: Identify & capitalize upon existing assets to serve as the foundation for all aspects of 
the revitalization program. 
6) Quality: Emphasize quality in every aspect. 
7) Change: A carefully planned program will help shift public perceptions and practices to 
support and sustain the revitalization process. 
8) Implementation: Must show visible results to succeed and get support. 
 
Annual Accreditation Standards 
1) Public and Private Support 
2) Developed Mission and Vision Statements 
3) Comprehensive Work Plan 
4) Possesses & Exhibits Historic Preservation Ethic 
5) Active Board of Directors & Committees 
6) Adequate Operating Budget 
7) Paid Professional Program Manager 
8) Staff & Volunteers 
9) Annual Statistics to State Program 
10) Current Membership w/ National Main Street 
 
Downtown Goldsboro Vision Statement 
Beautiful, historic, lively and full of economic opportunity and gusto. We honor our past while 
developing diversity and vibrancy to create a cultural arts, entertainment and urban lifestyle 
center.  
 
Downtown Development Department Role 
Downtown Development Department Staff 
Mission Statement: We work for the betterment of downtown. We facilitate a unified, 
sustainable, proactive and comprehensive development effort within the framework of the Main 



 12

Street™ structure for the City in cooperation with the Downtown Goldsboro Development 
Corporation and other stakeholders. 
 
City Role 

 Maintains Stability of Program and Effort 
 Recruit and Retain Experienced and Knowledgeable Support Staff 
 Buy In to Effort, Commitment 
 Resources, Expertise and Additional Support Staff 
 Coordination, Communication, Control 
 Main Street Accreditation 
 Funds 

 
DGDC Role 
DGDC 
Mission Statement: The Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation (DGDC) provides 
leadership dedicated to the improvement of downtown Goldsboro by creating and facilitating 
downtown development, promotion and preservation activities. The DGDC strives to enhance 
the appearance, desirability and vitality of downtown Goldsboro. 
 
DGDC Role 

 Non-Profit Status 
 Advocates, Interest, Grass Roots 
 Expectations 
 Private Sector Support 
 Additional Funding 
 Flexibility 
 Added Resources & Manpower 
 Accreditation 

 
DGDC Impacts 

 Neighborhood Plan support $10,000 
 Paramount Fundraising effort $10,000 
 2016 NC Main Street Conference host contribution $5,000 
 Downtown Master Plan contribution of nearly $3,000 
 Raise Money, each year, and spend more than 80% in efforts to help downtown and 

enhance City’s efforts. 
 DGDC Board & Committees provide approx. 2,500 to 3,600 volunteer hours per year 

 
Private Sector Support 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 13

 
 
Events 

 
 
Discussion 

 Current Activities 
 Value/Benefits 
 Process for Support: City versus DGDC 
 What DGDC Impacts 

 
Council discussed what the city pays for and what DGDC pays for.  Councilmember Stevens 
stated he would like to see an incubator program downtown with affordable leases.  
Councilmember Williams stated a lot of business owners feel like they are not included when it 
comes to marketing or interactions; everyone is a part of this cog. Councilmember Williams 
stated he appreciates the volunteers.   Mayor Allen stated the downtown would not be where we 
are today without the DGDC Board and volunteers.  Mayor Allen thanked the volunteers for 
their time and service.   
 
Councilmember Requests   
 
Summer Youth Employment Initiative 
Councilmember Williams showed a video and shared statistics regarding youths.  
Councilmember Williams stated there are investors who are willing to match what the city 
contributes to the program.  Councilmember Williams requested Council continue the program 
and look at expanding it.   
 
Council agreed to continue the Summer Youth Employment Initiative and look at possibly 
expanding the program. 
 
Railway Park North End Center Street 
Councilmember Williams shared information regarding Rail to Trails Grants.  He provided 
pictures of the North End of Center Street and stated he would like to see if we could do some 
improvements in that area.  Councilmember Williams stated he would like to see maybe some 
benches, water fountains and lighting for that area.   
 
Staff to look into Rail to Trail funding. 
 
District 1 Block Party 
Councilmember Williams requested $5,000 to hold a Block Party for District 1 and suggested 
maybe $5,000 be provided for each district.  Additional discussion to be held during budget time. 
 
Improve Stormwater Drainage  
Councilmember Foster stated improvements are needed for stormwater drainage in areas such as 
South Slocumb, South John, Highway 117 and Little Washington by cleaning the ditches that 



 14

drain the water, and by possibly adding water retention ponds in those areas.  Council discussed 
stormwater needs.  Additional discussion to be held on stormwater improvements and funding 
during budget time. 
 
Additional Bus Shelters throughout the City 
Councilmember Foster stated additional bus shelters are needed throughout the City.  Council 
discussed locations and looking at adding additional bus shelters at Herman/Ash (Rite-Aid), 
Elm/Herman, Elm/Andrews, Slocumb at Seymour Homes and George Street near the bakery. 
 
Additional topics discussed included: 
 

 Junkyard on North End and Old Storage Building on James Street 
 Summer Meals  

 
Meeting Recessed 
As there was no further business, the meeting recessed to February 15, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
February 15, 2019 
The Mayor and City Council met on February 15, 2019 at 8:30 a.m. at the Goldsboro Event 
Center with attendance as follows: 
 
Councilmembers Present: Mayor Chuck Allen, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Bill Broadaway 

Councilmember Antonio Williams  
Councilmember Mark Stevens 
Councilmember David Ham 
Councilmember Gene Aycock 

    Councilmember Bevan Foster (arrived at 8:31 a.m.) 
 
Other Members Present: Melissa Corser, City Clerk 
    
 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Allen at 8:30 a.m.   
 
Upon motion of Mayor Allen, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Broadaway and unanimously 
carried, Council combined the March 4, 2019 Council Meeting with the March 18, 2019 Council 
Meeting.   
 
Closed Session Held  
Upon motion of Councilmember Aycock, seconded by Councilmember Stevens and 
unanimously carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss a personnel matter. 
 
Council came out of Closed Session. 
 
Adjournment 
As there was no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:27 a.m. 

 
 
       

______________________________ 
      Chuck Allen  

Mayor 
 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Melissa Capps, MMC 

City Clerk 



Item C 



Item D 



Item E 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

ITEM ____ _ 

Contract Award - Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water 
Storage Tank- Formal Bid No. 2019-001 

On Tuesday, March 19, 2019, four (4) sealed bids were 
received for the Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water 
Storage Tank. 

The proposed work consists of repainting the exterior and 
interior of a 1 ,000,000 gallon elevated water storage tank and 
tank structure along with the final structural repair. 

Utility Service Company, Inc. of Perry, Georgia submitted the 
low bid for this project for a total cost of $1 ,040,200. The bids 
received for this project are tabulated as follows: 

Name of Bidder 

Utility Service Co., Inc. 
Perry, GA 

Olympic Enterprises, Inc. 
Hubert, NC 

D & M Painting Corp. 
Washington, P A 

Titan Industrial Services, Inc. 
Baltimore, MD 

Amount of Bid 

$1,040,200 

$1,076,500 

$1 ,331 ,800 

$2, 169,638 

The bids for this project have been reviewed by the 
Engineering Department, checked for accuracy, and found to 
be in order. We have reviewed the financing of this project 
with the Finance Director and determined that a $513,500 
allocation is included for this project in Fiscal Year 2018-19 
budget. A budget ordinance is required for the additional 
$526,700 required for the Repainting of Center/Holly Street 
Water Storage Tank. 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend the City Council, by motion: 

( 1) Adopt the attached budget ordinance decreasing the fund 
balance of the utility fund by $526,700; 

H



(2) Adopt the attached resolution authorizing the Mayor and 
City Clerk to execute a contract in the amount of 
$1 ,040,200 with Utility Service Company, Inc. for the 
Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water Storage Tank. 

Date&R_,tlu ll 4 ~Q! 
GU)IM1{nciers~::City Engineer 

Date: --- -----
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-2019 FISCAL YEAR 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro received sealed bids for the repainting of the 
Center/Holly Street Water Storage Tank; and 

WHEREAS, the work consists of repainting the exterior and interior of the one 
million gallon water storage tank and tank structure along with the tina! structural repair 
located on Center/Holly Street; and 

WHEREAS, Utility Service Company, Inc. submitted the low bid at a total cost of 
$1 ,040,200; and 

WHEREAS, current funding in the amount of $513,500 is allocated in the current 
year's budget but additional funding is required in the amount of $526,700 for the 
financing of this project; and 

WHEREAS, since the current fiscal year's budget does not contain sufficient 
monies to meet these obligations, the City of Goldsboro needs to appropriate $526,700 
from the fund balance in the Utility Fund. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 be amended by: 

1. Decreasing the Unappropriated Fund Balance of the Utility Fund in the 
amount of$526,700. 

2. Increasing the line item entitled "Water Tank Painting" (61-4178-5912) in the 
amount of $526,700 in the Utility Capital Projects Division. 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ----
day of 2019. 

Approved as to form only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019 -

RESOLUTION A WARDING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A 
CONTRACT FOR REPAINTING OF CENTER/HOLLY STREET WATER TANK 

FORMAL BID NO. 2019-001 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it in the 
public interest to initiate a project for the repainting of the Center/Holly Street water 
storage tank; and 

WHEREAS, the total low bid for the Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water 
Storage Tank was submitted by Utility Service Company, Inc. of Perry, Georgia in the 
amount of $1 ,040,200; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of Goldsboro 
to accept the low bid and award the contract to Utility Service Company, Inc. in the 
amount of$1 ,040,200 for the Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water Storage Tank; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a 
contract with Utility Service Company, Inc. in the amount of $1,040,200 for the 
Repainting of Center/Holly Street Water Storage Tank. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this ___ day of 

--------' 2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

RECOMMENDATION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

ITEM ____ _ 

2018 Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation 
Formal Bid No. 2018-007- Change Order No. 1 

The 201 8 wastewater rehabilitation project provides for 
removal and replacement of approximately I ,635 linear feet 
of existing sanitary sewer mains for segments of Jefferson 
Street, Beech Street, and Audubon A venue. 

Staff requested the contractor, Herring-Rivenbark, Inc., 
provide costs for additional rehabilitation of street 
segments to facilitate improvements in this area. An 
estimated cost of $844,753 was submitted by Herring
Rivenbark. 

The addition of street segments for Jefferson Street, Beech 
Street, and Audubon Avenue will require the contract 
completion time to be extended by 150 days. The amended 
contract completion date for the remaining street segments 
is November 1, 2019. 

Staff recommends issuing a change order to the current 
contract with Herring-Rivenbark for the wastewater 
collection system rehabilitation project. We have reviewed 
this change order with the Finance Director and determined 
that funds are available from FEMA for these repairs 
caused by Hun·icane Florence. A budget ordinance is 
necessary for the additional rehabilitation. 

It is recommended that the City Council , by motion: 

1. Adopt the attached budget ordinance appropriating 
funds for Change Order No. 1 for the 2018 Wastewater 
Collection System Rehabilitation Project. 

Date: Z7 /().,«H{ [ q 

Date: _________ _ 
Randy Guthrie, Interim City Manager 

I



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro had wastewater damage during Hurricane 
Florence; and 

WHEREAS, the City had damaged sections at Jefferson Street, Beech Street and 
Audubon Ave at a cost of $603,224 and awarded a contract to Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. 
for the repair of these damaged lines on December 3, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, additional rehabilitation of street sections was deemed necessary to 
facilitate improvements in this area and the contractor has proposed an additional cost of 
$844,753; and 

WHEREAS, since the City anticipates reimbursement for these repairs, these 
expenditures and reimbursement of funds need to be reflected in the City's Operating 
Budget for the 2018-19 Fiscal Year; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. Increasing the revenue line item entitled ''FEMA Reimbursement" 
(61 -0003-8152) in the amount of$844,753. 

2. Increasing expenditure line item entitled "Storm Repairs" 
(61 -4178-3599) in the amount of $844,753. 

3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after this the 
______ dayof ,2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed By: 

City Attorney Interim City Manager 



RESOLUTION NO. 2019-

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 WITH HERRING-RIVENBARK, INC. FOR 
2018 WASTEWATER COLLECTION SYSTEM REHAB PROJECT 

FORMAL BID #2018-007 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro awarded a contract on 
December 3, 2018 to Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. for the 2018 Wastewater Collection System 
Rehabilitation Project; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro recommends additional 
street segments for wastewater collection system rehabilitation; and 

WHEREAS, Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. submitted an estimated cost of$844,753 for 
the additional street segments; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interest of the City of 
Goldsboro to issue a change order to Contract #2018-007 with Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. 
for $844,753; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute Change Order 
No. 1 for $844,753 with Herring-Rivenbark, Inc. for wastewater collection system 
rehabilitation of additional street segments. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this ----
dayof , 2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney Interim City Manager 



!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2 !!2
!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2 !!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2
!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

!!2

F

F

F

£¤US 70

BEECH ST
BEECH ST

MAPLE ST
MAPLE ST

E MULBERRY ST
E MULBERRY ST

E HOLLY ST
E HOLLY ST

PPAA RRKK AA AAVV
EEDDGGEERRTTOONN SSTT

PALM ST
PALM ST

N R
AN

DO
LP

H 
ST

N R
AN

DO
LP

H 
ST

NN
MMAA

DDII
SSOO

NN
AAVV

N T
AY

LO
R S

T
N T

AY
LO

R S
T

N B
ES

T S
T

N B
ES

T S
T

ROSE ST
ROSE ST

PEACHTREE ST
PEACHTREE ST

UUSS 7700 BBUUSS

12" RCP

8" VCP

8" 
VC

P

8" VCP

12
" R

CP

6" VCP

8" CIPP

8" VCP

8" VCP

8" CIPP

8" DIP

8" VCP

10" VCP

10" RCP

8" VCP

10
" V

CP

6" VCP

12" PVC

10" CIPP

Fairview Park
Fairview Park 1905

1901

1721
1709

610

414

406
402

1907
2001

1608

405
2002

2003

1808

1904

1901

506

906

1731

17271723

1720 1724

1732

803
801

905

1405

907

2100

940

504

906

1717

935

1717
1725

1907

1904806

1725
1737

1735

1741

1713

1710

1505

1715

1729

1742

931

1736

1728

936

8051906
802

1739

934

938

2005

1911

2100
2100

2005

1318

1310

302

200

1712

509

1708

1804

704

604
502

1314

1713

1400

1801
1807

1804

1308

1312

1714

800

1600

1903

1804

1732

707

703

700

1902

902

701

707

705

1714

803
1903

1719

1904

1718
1712

702
704

706

1500

1501

901

410

1905
500

1902

1711
1718

1708

1741

805

1711

1812

701

1905

933

802

804700

1721

2005

1410 401

302

700

1302

1609

1734

708

1701

1809

703
701

1700
1700

621

800

1711

1729

511

1700

1903

300

602

1907107

1711

307

1600
1518

108 1504

1908

1304

1604

1803

1411
1705

1410

309
1711

1715

1606

1407

1511
304

1803

14031305 1401

106
1603

1607

1506

600

1415 1514

1802

2005

508
17001502

1803 1904

17151414

1304
1504

1807

1410

1305
1811

1500

1507

600
1611

706
1305 1504

709

1500608

1508
2008

606
604

306

504 15001210

1517

1606
1211

806160915041208
1212

1407 1512

1207 1618
606 1408

1613703 1508
1300

16041306
608

1614
607

702701

1603
610

1307

706

1315
804

1808

713708 1504

1501

1607

9021602

607
1203 1608

605
1508

1506

1501 308

105

800

705

1511
900

17071411

1406
1500 304

1901

17051415
1900

306
1505

1515

1513

1508 904

1507711

1301

207110

18061604
108

1902

310

1614

1307

704

600

608

6071311

1611

1402
1513

1406

1305 704

1619 804700

1512

808

1600
612

6221307

708

1402

606

1209
609

506

1716

1703 1905
308

710

802

505

1311
711

707 713

706 1603

613

15001208 906

1705403 18001406
1909

306

712706

1201

1500

1400

1409

1407

608503

1800
1808

1809

1509

1611
1501

1507
1711

1309

1717

512

708

1616

1312

1403

18041604

1304

602

16051500 1700
1508

18111706

1905 604

1615

1803 1906403
1900

1409
1706

1501

1212

1510

1509

1409
7001501

510

615
1216

1713

508

1501

1601

312 1512

1304

1615

1303

1311

1707
1211 1308

1400

1505 510

1712

1910
1512

501
1911404

407 1511

1406 507

400

606

1712

1614

1609 1910
405

1901

405

514

600

1208

1315
500

1704

1215 1507

1212

1503

610

707 1408

405

1413

1601

702

1209

300

708

1608

304

1603

709

1800

1700
1700

621

1408

2001
2001

1701 1703

1406

611

400
301

312
316

1507

1807

manderson
Line

manderson
Polygonal Line

manderson
Polygonal Line

manderson
Text Box
CHANGE ORDER SCOPE

manderson
Line



Item  _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: NC Historic Preservation Tax Credit Program Support 

BACKGROUND: North Carolina has been one of 33 states (of 43 with a state income tax) 
that offers the “open to all” incentive of a state piggyback historic tax 
credit in addition to the federal credit. North Carolina pioneered this 
program in 1980 and later reaffirmed and strengthened it in 1998.  The 
NC Historic Preservation Tax Credit (HPTC) program is an invaluable 
tool to spur private sector reinvestment in projects and areas where 
reinvestment is unlikely to occur otherwise.   

Since 1976, when the Federal program was instituted, the credits have 
encouraged $2.398 billion of private investment in North Carolina’s 
historic buildings. 

The City of Goldsboro has experienced success with meeting these 
historic rehabilitation challenges due to the availability of the NC HPTC 
programs.  In fact, nearly $5.5M of historic investments utilizing this 
program have been realized in Goldsboro.  Of that total, four projects 
equaling approximately $3.3M occurred since 2015 when the State 
reinstated their program after allowing it to sunset in 2014. 

DISCUSSION: The current NC HPTC program is scheduled to sunset, again, at the close 
of this calendar year, December 31, 2019.  This would cause the project 
we have been working towards completing with Rehab Development to 
fail as the investor needs these credits to make the project work 
financially.  This would be a $12M investment loss and would result in us 
having to find another solution for the six historic buildings, equaling 
nearly 70,000 square feet of current unproductive; a solution unknown 
and possibly non-existent if the program in rendered inactive.  This does 
not take into account many other buildings that need reinvestment to be 
put back into use for Goldsboro’s downtown.   

Representative Steve Ross from Burlington NC sponsored House Bill 399 
that would reset the sunset for 10 years to extend the end date for the 
state’s historic tax credits from next year to 2030. It would also increase 
the amount that developers can apply toward the credit to $25M and add a 
5% credit for projects that occur in a federally declared natural disaster 
area, such as Goldsboro.  Due to our economic Tier and this new 
proposed credit for natural disaster recovery, Goldsboro would be able to 
boast a 25% credit for eligible projects; a 5% increase from what we 
currently have. 

While it is recommended that the City support HB 399 as a win for cities 
and towns across the State and a bonus for towns such as Goldsboro, at a 
minimum, the City of Goldsboro should support the continuation of the 
State Historic Preservation Tax Credit Program due to its impact in 
Goldsboro to spur private investment in our rich historic architectural 
heritage.   

J



RECOMMENDATION: By motion, authorize the Mayor to sign the attached resolution 
demonstrating the City of Goldsboro’s support for the North Carolina 
Historic Preservation Tax Credit Program and to share the executed 
resolution with our partners and state elected officials.          

 
   
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Downtown Development Director 
 
 
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Interim City Manager 



RESOLUTION NO.  2019‐____ 

RESOLUTION SUPPORTING NORTH CAROLINA’S HISTORIC PRESERVATION TAX CREDIT PROGRAMS 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro and the Downtown Goldsboro Development Corporation 
(DGDC) along with other local and regional partners are working towards the revitalization of our 
downtown area to establish it as a vital economic sector of the City for the community’s benefit; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro realizes that a healthy, vibrant downtown makes all other economic 
development initiatives in the community easier to achieve; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro, as well as many private investors, have made significant 
advancements towards downtown’s improvement through strategic planning and reinvestment; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro understands that the City is fortunate to retain a wealth of historic 
commercial and residential structures that offer unique opportunities by differentiating our 
community from other communities and thus, we wish to preserve them for future use and re‐
investment; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro recognizes that the highest concentration of our historic structure 
stock is in the downtown area and this area is the densest of taxable properties in the City providing 
great opportunities for value and revenue impacts; and   

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro recognizes that these buildings offer opportunities for small business 
development, job creation and desirable living spaces in an existing built environment with previously 
invested infrastructure; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is interested in building upon these established investments to 
strengthen our tax base thus decreasing the potential of future tax increases for our citizens to 
maintain existing levels of service throughout the community; and  

WHEREAS, the historic residential and commercial structures play a vital role in our capabilities to 
entice re‐investment and create our market niche; and  

WHEREAS, the rehabilitation of historic structures is challenging in terms of acquiring needed bank 
financing, meeting building code regulations and overcoming general risks of unknown conditions and 
securing private investment in blighted or transitional neighborhoods; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has experienced success with meeting these historic rehabilitation 
challenges due to the availability of the North Carolina Historic Preservation Tax Credit (HPTC) 
programs and has experienced nearly $5.5M of historic investments that utilized the HPTC programs 
which generated approximately $4.4M into our local economy through household incomes and 
created/retained 228 jobs; and  

WHEREAS, of that $5.5M of historic investments made in Goldsboro, four projects equaling $3,327,325 
of it occurred since 2015 when the State reinstated the NC Historic Preservation Tax Credit program 
after allowing it to sunset in 2014, demonstrating a recent market shift and interest in downtown and 
these investment; and 

WHEREAS, the four recent projects resulted in eleven residential units, five new businesses (currently), 
seven commercial spaces where nothing existed before but dilapidated, vacant and unproductive 
space; and  

WHEREAS, the City recognizes that these programs offer an often necessary financial tool that level 
the private investment risks when competing for sites outside the built area and also provide the 
leverage needed to meet financial gaps experienced with traditional lending institutions; and  



WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro knows that more of this type of reinvestment can occur with the 
availability of the HPTCs and believes the HPTC program is a worthy leveraging tool to stimulate a 
challenging area of our economy that will support the entire community; and  

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Downtown Development Association has adopted a position paper, 

titled, “Position Paper of Support for Extension of North Carolina’s Historic Preservation Tax Credit 
Programs” and the City of Goldsboro has reviewed this document and agrees that the HPTC 
programs are a necessary economic development tool and thus, generally agrees with the NCDDA 
Position Paper and will utilize it to advocate for the continuation of the HPTC programs; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, on behalf 
of themselves, the other City officials and employees and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, do 
hereby support the extension of the HPTC programs and their continued availability as a tool to spur 
economic recovery in urban and traditionally blighted or underutilized areas of our communities; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution will be submitted and shared to persons and 
organizations that the City of Goldsboro partners with related to our downtown and community 
redevelopment efforts, including our state representatives, to encourage support of the NC Historic 
Preservation Tax Credit programs for continued availability to those interested in reinvesting in our 
historic structures.    
 
Approved as to Form Only:        Reviewed By: 
 
________________________________    _________________________________ 
City Attorney            City Manager 
 
 
 
Approved on April 1, 2019 by the Goldsboro City Council.   
       
 
_________________________________ 
Chuck Allen, Mayor 
 



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant Agreement, Grant No. 12155296 

BACKGROUND: The City of Goldsboro applied for funding through the Transportation 
Investment Generating Economic Recovery Grant Program in the 2016 
cycle.  The City received notification in July, 2016 of a $5,000,000 award 
to support the following projects:  1) Center Street Streetscape Project; 2 
blocks of Center Street from Spruce Street to Elm Street, 2) The Hub, 
formerly known as Cornerstone Commons; demolition of the existing 
space and construction of an expanded space with amenities, 3) GWTA 
Transit Center Concourse Project; construction of a concourse at the 
transit center, 4) Wayfinding Signage Project; fabrication and installation 
of wayfinding signs within the Goldsboro MPO area. 

Once notified of the successful award, the United States Department of 
Transportation assigned our project to the Region IV Federal Transit 
Administration to administer the grant on their behalf.  City staff has been 
working with FTA and the Office of the Secretary of Transportation to 
meet and prepare all the necessary documents to permit us to move 
forward with the receipt of the funds and begin construction.  The final 
necessary document is the attached Grant Agreement between the City of 
Goldsboro and the United States Department of Transportation (DOT).   

DISCUSSION: The agreement states expectations in terms of responsibilities, timelines, 
benchmarks, reporting requirements, scope of work, source and use of 
funds, and cause for termination/expiration and modifications.  Highlights 
of the Agreement include the following:  

1) The City of Goldsboro (Grantee) is being granted $5,000,000 by
USDOT to complete the above mentioned projects.

2) The City of Goldsboro has committed 26% of the proposed project
costs equaling to $1,755,751.

3) If there are any cost savings, or if the contract award is under the
engineer’s estimate, the City of Goldsboro funding amount and
percentage share may be reduced, provided the City’s share of the
costs may not be reduced below 20%.

4) Quarterly Progress Reports are due beginning August 17, 2019 and
will continue through and beyond the completion of the project
ending December 2024.

5) USDOT reserves the right to terminate the Agreement if the following
benchmarks are not met:

a) The Grantee fails to begin construction before June 1, 2019;

b) The Grantee fails to begin expenditure of Grant funds by May
2019;

7) Funds made available under this Agreement, once obligated, are
available for liquidation and adjustment through September 30, 2024.

K



 

 The following City staff is identified in the Agreement with certain roles:  
Randy Guthrie, Primary Contact; Julie Metz, Secondary Contact, 
Catherine Gwynn, TrAMS Contact. TrAMS is the federal program 
mechanism for the grant funds.  Once a City Manager is named, this 
person will be authorized to access and utilize TrAMS as well.  These 
City staff persons and the City Attorney have reviewed the Agreement 
thoroughly and in its entirety. 

  
RECOMMENDATION: By motion, authorize the Mayor to sign this grant agreement, on behalf of 

the City of Goldsboro, between the City of Goldsboro (Grantee) and the 
United States Department of Transportation permitting the City to 
execute the TIGER VIII Grant.        

 
   
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Downtown Development Director 
 
 
 
Date: ________________   ________________________________________ 
   Interim City Manager 



A-1 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 
WASHINGTON, DC 20590 

 
 

GRANT AGREEMENT UNDER THE 
CONSOLIDATED APPROPRIATIONS ACT, 2016 

(PUB. L. 114-113, DECEMBER 18, 2015) 
FOR THE NATIONAL INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS 

DISCRETIONARY GRANT PROGRAM 
(FY 2016 TIGER DISCRETIONARY GRANTS) 

 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

 
GOLDSBORO MAIN STREET™ REVITALIZATION THROUGH 

TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT II 
  
 

This agreement is between the United States Department of Transportation (the “USDOT”) and 
City of Goldsboro  (the “Recipient”).  It reflects the selection of the Recipient for an award under 
the provisions of the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (Pub. L. 114-113, December 18, 
2015), regarding National Infrastructure Investments, as described in the Notice of Funding 
Opportunity for the Department of Transportation’s National Infrastructure Investments Under the 
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016, 81 FR 9935 (February 26, 2016) (the “NOFO”). In this 
agreement, “FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant” means an award under those provisions. 
 
ARTICLE 1. AWARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1.1 Operating Administration. The Federal Transit Administration (the “FTA”) will 
administer this agreement on behalf of the USDOT.  In this agreement, the “Administering 
Operating Administration” means the FTA. 

1.2 Purpose. The purpose of this award is to advance capital investments in surface 
transportation infrastructure that will have a significant impact on the nation, a 
metropolitan area, or a region.  The parties will achieve that purpose by completing the 
project that was described in the Recipient’s technical application, titled Goldsboro Main 
Street™ Revitalization Through Transportation Investment II, as modified by the 
negotiated provisions on the project’s material terms and conditions, including the 
attachments referenced in section 1.8. 

1.3 Federal Award Amount. The USDOT hereby awards a FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary 
Grant in the amount of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000) for the period of performance. 
The USDOT shall not provide funding greater than this amount under this agreement. The 
Recipient acknowledges that USDOT is not liable for payments that exceed this amount. 



A-2 

1.4 Period of Performance.  The period of performance for this award begins on the date of 
this agreement and ends on the period of performance end date that is listed in section 2.2.  
Under 2 CFR 200.309, the Recipient shall not charge to this award costs that are incurred 
after the period of performance. 

1.5 Urban or Rural Designation.  Based on information that the Recipient provided to the 
USDOT, including the technical application, the USDOT hereby designates the project to 
be a project in an urban area, as defined in the NOFO.  The Recipient shall comply with 
the requirements that accompany that designation on minimum award size, geographic 
location, and cost sharing. 

1.6 Fund Obligation. 

This agreement obligates the total amount of funds, Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000),  
stated in section 1.3. 

1.7 Federal Award Identification Number. The USDOT identifies this award with the 
following federal award identification number: 7244-2017-1 

1.8 Attachments.  This agreement includes the following attachments as integral parts: 

Attachment A  Statement of Work 
Attachment B  Estimated Project Schedule 
Attachment C  Estimated Project Budget 
Attachment D  Performance Measurement Table  

ARTICLE 2. PROJECT AND RECIPIENT INFORMATION 

2.1 Summary of Project’s Statement of Work. (See Attachment A for additional details). 

The City of Goldsboro’s TIGER FY 2016 Grant Application, Goldsboro Main Street™ 
Revitalization Through Transportation Investment II, consists of four projects, each briefly 
described below:   

1) Center Street Streetscape:  The Center Street Streetscape project consists of the 
reconstruction of 2 blocks of existing roadway at the 300 and 400 block of South Center 
Street (approx. 1,000 feet) to improve pedestrian and vehicular movement and to 
replace aging infrastructure.  Together, with the four blocks that were completed in 
Phase I (City Completed in 2012) and Phase II (Completed with a TIGER 2013 Grant 
in 2015), this will complete a six block reconstruction of Center Street. The project will 
involve the demolition of 2 blocks of city-owned right-of-way including the roadway, 
utilities and sidewalk.  Reconstruction will include widened sidewalks on either side of 
the project area, center median reconstruction that will decrease the width to allow for 
continuity with the remaining blocks for pedestrian and vehicular use, relocation of 
utility lines underground, new storm drainage, water and sewer utilities, inclusion of 
two roundabouts, creation of pedestrian crosswalks, a 5-foot bike path in both 
directions, creation of parallel parking, inclusion of pedestrian sidewalk and street 
lighting, street trees, and bike racks.  The project will also address slope issues.  The 
linear median will feature a meandering walking/bike trail and a green space.  All work 
will be accomplished within the existing road right of way.    



A-3 

2) Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority Transfer Center Concourse (GWTA 
Concourse) Construction:  This project will construct a Concourse for Goldsboro-
Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA).  The Concourse will provide a canopy over 
the bus and van slip area to provide shelter for the urban and rural transit service 
customers.  The Concourse will shelter 10 bus slips.  Construction plans are complete 
and the underground structural support for the Concourse was completed as part of the 
previous TIGER FY 2013 grant awarded to the City of Goldsboro.  The site is prepped 
and ready for construction of the Concourse.  The project is located at 103 N. Carolina 
Street.     

3) The HUB (formerly known as Cornerstone Commons):  The HUB is a people and 
transportation connector space.  Currently, the area consists of a 12,320-square foot paved 
area located at the intersection of the 200 block of S. Center Street and the 100 block of E. 
Chestnut Street.  It will be demolished, expanded, and improved to serve as a bus stop  and 
pedestrian and bicycle pathway by being an extension of the street and sidewalk.     The 
finished size will be approximately 28,000 sq. ft.  Major components of the project will 
include demolition, regrading, installation of bike and pedestrian paths, functional 
landscaping and irrigation, lighting, a public restroom facility, a bus stop, bicycle racks, a 
cellular phone charging station, security cameras, and furnishings or seat walls for use.  All 
of the project property is city owned and requires no acquisitions or easements.   

4) Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:  The City of Goldsboro and the 
North Carolina Department of Transportation (NCDOT) funded a Wayfinding Signage 
System Design & Plan study that was adopted in early 2016.  The sign types range from 
information kiosks to highway, pedestrian and trail signs.  Approximately ninety (90) signs 
will be placed throughout the community to direct traffic to certain points of interest.  The 
wayfinding signs will be placed in existing public rights of way in the downtown area and 
beyond in NCDOT right-of-way. 

 2.2 Summary of Project’s Estimated Schedule. (See Attachment B for additional details). 

Actual completion of NEPA and Sec. 106 Consultation  February 2017  

Construction: 

Center Street Streetscape Project: 

Planned Completion of Final Design   April 2019  

Planned Construction Start Date   May 2019 

Planned Construction Substantial Completion Date June 2020  
 

 GWTA Concourse Construction: 

Planned Completion of Final Design   March 2021  

Planned Construction Start Date   July 2021 

Planned Construction Substantial Completion Date January 2022  
 



A-4 

The HUB Construction: 

Planned Completion of Final Design   April 2019  

Planned Construction Start Date   May 2019 

Planned Construction Substantial Completion Date June 2020  
 

 Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:  

Actual Completion of Final Design   August 2015  

Planned Construction Start Date   May 2019 

Planned Construction Substantial Completion Date March 2020 
 

Period of Performance End Date:     April 2022 

Planned Project Closeout Date:     June 2022 
 2.3 Summary of Project’s Estimated Budget. (See Attachment C for additional details). 

TIGER Grant Funds and Additional Sources of Project Funds:  
 
TIGER Discretionary Grant Amount:  $5,000,000  74% 
Other Federal Funds (if any):   $0     0% 
State Funds (if any):    $0     0% 
Local Funds (if any):    $1,755,751  26% 
Other Funds (if any):    $0_____  _0% 
Total Project Cost:    $6,755,751           100% 
 

2.4 Recipient Cost Share Certification. 

The Recipient hereby certifies that not less than One Million, Seven Hundred Fifty-Five 
Thousand, Seven Hundred Fifty-One Dollars ($1,755,751) in non-Federal funds are 
committed to fund the project to satisfy the statutory requirement that at least 20% of the 
project’s costs are funded by non-Federal sources. 

2.5 Project’s State and Local Planning Requirements. 

If the Administering Operating Administration requires the project to be included in State, 
metropolitan, or local planning documents, the parties shall record in FTA’s electronic 
award management system (“TrAMS”) the date that the project was included in those 
planning documents. 
The relevant TIGER FY 2016 funded Goldsboro Main Street™ Revitalization Through 
Transportation Investment II projects were included in the MTIP & STIP on January 2, 
2019 and are number/citations:  TD-5280.  
 

2.6 Project’s Environmental Approvals and Processes. 

If the Administering Operating Administration requires environmental findings for 
activities under the project, the parties shall document in TrAMS those findings, including 



A-5 

the type (Record of Decision, Finding of No Significant Impact, or Categorical Exclusion) 
and date of each finding.  If a finding is documented in TrAMS, the parties shall attach 
appropriate environmental documents in TrAMS or file those documents at the 
Administering Operating Administration’s regional office. 

The relevant TIGER FY 2016 funded Goldsboro Main Street™ Revitalization Through 
Transportation Investment II projects received a finding of no adverse effect upon a Sec. 
106 review.  We received notice of our NEPA finding of a Categorical Exclusion (LCE #2 
(23 CFR 771.118(c)(2)) for the Project on January 24, 2017.  

2.7 Recipient’s and any Subrecipient’s Unique Entity Identifiers. 

Dun and Bradstreet Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) No. of the Recipient: 
0915644190000. 

Name of any First-Tier Subgrantees or Subrecipient (if applicable - to be reported if/when 
identified. If not applicable please note is N/A):  N/A 
 
DUNS No. of First-Tier Subgrantee or Subrecipient (if applicable - to be reported if/when 
identified):   N/A   

2.8 Recipient Contacts. 

Primary:  Randy Guthrie  
Assistant City Manager 
City of Goldsboro 
200 N. Center Street/PO Drawer A 
Goldsboro, NC 27533 
(919) 580-4330 
crguthrie@goldsboronc.gov 

 
Secondary:  Julie Metz 

Downtown Development Director 
City of Goldsboro 
219 N. John Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530 
(919) 735-4959 
jmetz@goldsboronc.gov 

 
  TrAMS Contact: Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director 
     City of Goldsboro 
     200 N. Center Street/PO Drawer A 
     Goldsboro, NC 27530/27533 
     Phone:  919.580.4356 
     Email:  cgwynn@goldsboronc.gov 



A-6 

 
ARTICLE 3. GENERAL REPORTING TERMS 

3.1 Report Submission. The Recipient shall send all reports required by this agreement to all 
of the USDOT contacts who are listed in Section 9.1. 

3.2 Alternative Reporting Methods. The Administering Operating Administration may 
establish processes for the Recipient to submit reports required by this agreement, 
including electronic submission processes.  If the Recipient is notified of those processes 
in writing, the Recipient shall use the processes required by the Administering Operating 
Administration. 

3.3 Reporting as History of Performance. Under 2 C.F.R 200.205, any Federal awarding 
agency may consider the Recipient’s timely submission of the reports that this agreement 
requires, or the Recipient’s failure to timely submit those reports, when evaluating the risks 
of making a future Federal financial assistance award to the Recipient. 

3.4 Paperwork Reduction Act Notice. Under 5 C.F.R. 1320.6, the Recipient is not required 
to respond to a collection of information that does not display a currently valid control 
number issued by the Office of Management and Budget (the “OMB”).  Collections of 
information conducted under this agreement are approved under OMB Control No. 2105-
0563. 

ARTICLE 4. PROGRESS REPORTING 

4.1 Quarterly Project Progress Reports. On or before the 20th day of the first month of each 
calendar year quarter and until Project Closeout, the Recipient shall submit to the USDOT 
a Quarterly Project Progress Report with the form and content described in Exhibit H.  If 
the date of this agreement is in the final month of a calendar year quarter, then the Recipient 
shall submit the first Quarterly Project Progress Report in the second calendar year quarter 
that begins after the date of this agreement. 

4.2 Annual Budget Review and Program Plan. 

(a) From the date of this agreement until Project Closeout, on or before the 60th day before 
the end of each Agreement Year, the Recipient shall submit to the USDOT an Annual 
Budget Review and Program Plan that contains: 

(1) a detailed schedule of activities and milestones for the next Agreement Year; 

(2) an estimate of specific performance objectives, including forecasted expenditures, 
for the next Agreement Year; and 

(3) a comparison of the approved project budget with an updated estimate of the project 
costs. 

In this agreement, “Agreement Year” means 12 months beginning on the date of this 
agreement or an anniversary of the date of this agreement. 



A-7 

(b) If the Recipient’s updated estimate of the total project costs exceeds the total project 
costs in the approved project budget, then the Recipient shall: 

(1) include in the Annual Budget Review and Program Plan either documentation of 
committed funds to cover the increased costs or a written plan describing how the 
Recipient will cover the increased costs; and 

(2) meet with the USDOT to discuss the Annual Budget Review and Program Plan. 

4.3 Closeout Reports. No later than 90 days after the period of performance end date that is 
listed in section 2.2, the Recipient shall: 

(1) submit a final Federal Financial Report (SF-425), a certification or summary of 
project expenses, and third-party audit reports; and 

(2) provide a report comparing the final work, schedule, and budget to the statement of 
work described in section 2.1, the schedule described in section 2.2, and the budget 
described in section 2.3. 

4.4 Project Closeout. In this agreement, “Project Closeout” means the date that the USDOT 
notifies the Recipient that the project is closed out. Under 2 CFR 200.343, Project Closeout 
should occur no later than one year after the Recipient liquidates all obligations under this 
award and submits the reports identified in section 4.3. 

ARTICLE 5. PERFORMANCE REPORTING 

5.1 Performance Measure Data Collection. The Recipient shall collect the data necessary to 
report on each performance measure that is identified in the Performance Measurement 
Table in Attachment D. 

5.2 Pre-project Performance Measurement Report. The Recipient shall submit to the 
USDOT, on or before the Pre-project Report Date that is stated in Attachment D, a Pre-
project Performance Measurement Report that contains: 

(1) baseline data for each performance measure that is identified in the Performance 
Measurement Table in Attachment D, accurate as of the Pre-project Measurement Date 
that is stated in Attachment D; and 

(2) a detailed description of the data sources, assumptions, variability, and estimated levels 
of precision for each measure. 

5.3 Interim Performance Measurement Reports.  After project completion, the Recipient 
shall submit to the USDOT on or before each of the periodic reporting dates specified in 
the Performance Measurement Table in Attachment D, an Interim Performance 
Measurement Report containing data for each performance measure that is identified in 
that table, accurate as of the final date of the measurement period specified in that table. If 
an external factor significantly affects the value of a performance measure during a 



A-8 

measurement period, then in the Interim Performance Measurement Report the Recipient 
shall identify that external factor and discuss its influence on the performance measure. 

5.4 Project Outcomes Report. The Recipient shall submit to the USDOT, on or before the 
Project Outcomes Report Date that is stated in Attachment D, a Project Outcomes Report 
that contains: 

(1) a narrative discussion detailing project successes and the influence of external factors 
on project expectations; 

(2) all baseline and interim performance measurement data that the Recipient reported in 
the Pre-project Performance Measurement Report and the Interim Performance 
Measurement Reports; and 

(3) an ex post examination of project effectiveness relative to the baseline data that the 
Recipient reported in the Pre-project Performance Measurement Report. 

ARTICLE 6. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS 

6.1 Bilateral Modifications.  The parties may amend, modify, or supplement this agreement 
by mutual agreement in writing signed by the USDOT and the Recipient.  Either party may 
request to amend, modify, or supplement this agreement by written notice to the other 
party. 

6.2 Limited Unilateral Modifications. 

(a) The Recipient may update the contacts who are listed in section 2.8 (Recipient 
Contacts) by written notice to all of the USDOT contacts who are listed in section 9.1. 

(b) The USDOT may update the contacts who are listed in section 9.1 (USDOT Contacts) 
by written notice to all of the Recipient contacts who are listed in section 2.8. 

6.3 Other Modifications.  The parties shall not amend, modify, or supplement this agreement 
except as permitted under section 6.1 or section 6.2.  If an amendment, modification, or 
supplement is not permitted under section 6.1 and not permitted under section 6.2, it is 
void. 

ARTICLE 7. STATEMENT OF WORK, SCHEDULE, AND BUDGET CHANGES 

7.1 Statement of Work Changes. If the project’s activities differ from the statement of work 
that is described in section 2.1 and Attachment A, then the Recipient shall request a 
modification of this agreement to update section 2.1 and Attachment A. 

7.2 Schedule Changes. If the project’s substantial completion date changes to a date that is 
more than three months after the substantial completion date listed in section 2.2 or a 
schedule change would require the period of performance to continue after the period of 
performance end date listed in section 2.2, then the Recipient shall request a modification 
of this agreement to update section 2.2 and Attachment B.  For other schedule changes, the 



A-9 

Recipient shall request a modification of this agreement to update section 2.2 and 
Attachment B unless the USDOT has consented, in writing consistent with the 
Administering Operating Administration’s requirements, to the change. 

7.3 Budget Changes. 

(a) If any of the budget amounts that are listed in section 2.3 change from the amounts 
listed in that section, then the Recipient shall request a modification of this agreement 
to update section 2.3 and Attachment C.  For other budget changes, the Recipient 
shall request a modification of this agreement to update Attachment C unless the 
USDOT has consented, in writing consistent with the Administering Operating 
Administration’s requirements, to the change. 

(b) If the actual eligible project costs are less than the “Total Project Cost” stated in section 
2.3, then the Recipient may reduce non-TIGER funds contributed to the project. But 
the Recipient shall not reduce below 20% the non-federal share of eligible project costs.  

ARTICLE 8. TERMINATION AND EXPIRATION 

8.1 USDOT Termination. The USDOT may, in its sole discretion, terminate this agreement 
and all of its obligations under this agreement if any of the following occurs: 

(1) The Recipient fails to obtain or provide any non-TIGER Discretionary Grant 
contribution or alternatives approved by the USDOT as provided in this agreement and 
consistent with sections 2.2 and 2.3; 

(2) The Recipient fails to begin construction before June 2019; 

(3) The Recipient fails to begin expenditure of award funds by May 2019;  

(4) The Recipient fails to achieve the Construction Substantial Completion Date by 
January 2022; 

(5) The Recipient fails to meet the conditions and obligations specified under this 
agreement, including a material failure to comply with the schedule in section 2.2 even 
if it is beyond the reasonable control of the Recipient; or, 

(6) The USDOT, in its sole discretion, determines that termination of this agreement is in 
the public interest.  

8.2 Closeout Termination. This agreement terminates on Project Closeout. 

8.3 Fund Liquidation, Adjustment, and Cancellation. 

(a) The Recipient shall liquidate all obligations under this award not later than 90 days 
after the period of performance end date that is listed in section 2.2. The Recipient 
acknowledges that this period of availability for liquidation ends before the statutory 
expenditure deadline identified in section 8.3(c). 



A-10 

(b) Liquidation and adjustment of funds under this agreement follow the requirements of 
2 CFR 200.343–.345. 

(c) Outstanding FY 16 TIGER Discretionary Grant balances are canceled by statute after 
September 30, 2024, and are then unavailable for any purpose, including adjustments 
and expenditures. 

8.4 Reporting Survival:  The reporting requirements set forth in articles 4 and 5 of this 
agreement survive the termination of this agreement and the expiration of award funds. 

ARTICLE 9. USDOT CONTACTS 

9.1 USDOT Contacts. Except as authorized by the USDOT under section 3.2, the Recipient 
shall send all notices, reports, and information required by this agreement to all of the 
following contacts: 
 
Official FTA Field Contact: 
Yvette Taylor, Ph.D 
Regional Administrator 
Federal Transit Administration, Region IV 
Suite 1400 
230 Peachtree St. 
Atlanta, GA 30303 
404.865.5600 
Yvette.taylor@dot.gov 
 
 and 
 
Mark Bathrick 
Program Manager 
Federal Transit Administration 
1200 New Jersey Ave, SE 20590 
E44-421 
(202)366-9955 
Mark.bathrick@dot.gov 
 
and 
 
OST TIGER Discretionary Grants Coordinator 
United States Department of Transportation 
Office of the Secretary 
1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE 
Washington, DC 20590 
(202) 366-8914 
TIGERGrants@dot.gov 
 



A-11 

ARTICLE 10. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

10.1 Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Information.  This award is under the program 
titled “National Infrastructure Investments,” with number 20.933 in the Catalog of Federal 
Domestic Assistance.  

10.2 Research and Development Designation. This award is not for research and 
development.  

10.3 Exhibits.  This agreement includes the following exhibits as integral parts located at: 
http://www.fta.dot.gov/grants/about_FTA_15116.html 

Exhibit A  Legislative Authority  
Exhibit B  General Terms and Conditions  
Exhibit C  Applicable Federal Laws and Regulations  
Exhibit D  Grant Assurances  
Exhibit E  Responsibility and Authority of the Recipient 
Exhibit F  Reimbursement of Project Costs 
Exhibit G  Grant Requirements and Contract Clauses  
Exhibit H Quarterly Progress Reports: Format and Content  

10.4 Construction.  If a provision in the exhibits or the attachments conflicts with a provision 
in Articles 1 – 12, then the provision in Articles 1 – 12 prevails.  If a provision in the 
attachments conflicts with a provision in the exhibits, then the provision in the attachments 
prevails.  

ARTICLE 11. SPECIAL GRANT REQUIREMENTS 

11.1 Acknowledgment of Support.  The Recipient shall include in any publication of any 
material, whether copyrighted or not, based on or developed under this agreement, the 
following acknowledgment of USDOT support and disclaimer: 

“This material is based upon work supported by the USDOT under FTA FY 2016 TIGER 
Grant No. GRANT12155296 . 
 
Any opinions, findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed in this publication 
are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the view of the USDOT.” 

11.2 Annual Certifications and Assurances.  The Recipient hereby certifies that it has 
executed the FTA Annual Certifications and Assurances for all FTA Federal assistance 
programs for which FTA awards Federal financial assistance in Federal fiscal year 2016. 

11.3 Pre-Award Authority. A Pre Award Authority was issued for this project January 9, 2018.  
The Pre-Award Authority scope included allowance to begin the Center Street Streetscape 
and The Hub projects as a single project under a design-build approach and the Wayfinding 
Fabrication & Installation project. 

11.4 Final Section. There are no other special grant requirements for this project. 



A-12 

ARTICLE 12. EXECUTION 

12.1 Counterparts.  This agreement may be executed in counterparts, which constitute one 
document.  The parties shall execute this agreement in triplicate and intend each countersigned 
original to have identical legal effect. 

12.2 Effective Date.  This agreement is effective when fully executed by authorized 
representatives of the Recipient and the USDOT.  The Recipient shall execute this agreement and 
then submit three original signed copies of the agreement to the USDOT for execution.  This 
instrument constitutes a FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant when it is signed and dated by the 
authorized official of the USDOT and the USDOT awards the funding through TrAMS.



A-13 

EXECUTION BY THE USDOT 
 
 
Executed this_____________ day of _______________, 201__. 
 
 
    ____________________________________________ 

Signature of USDOT’s Authorized Representative 
 

    ____________________________________________ 
    Name of USDOT’s Authorized Representative  

 
____________________________________________ 
Title  

 
 
  



A-14 

EXECUTION BY CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
By signature below, the Recipient acknowledges that it accepts and agrees to be bound by this 
agreement. 
 
Executed this_____________ day of _______________, 201__. 
 
 
    ______________________________________________  
    Signature of Recipient’s Authorized Representative 
 
    ________________________________     
    Name of Recipient’s Authorized Representative 
 
    Mayor         
    Title 
 



A-15 

ATTACHMENT A 
STATEMENT OF WORK 

The Goldsboro Main Street™ Revitalization Through Transportation Investment II project 
consists of four components, each described below: 

 
TIGER AWARDED PROJECT SUMMARIES: 

1)  Center Street Streetscape - 

Brief Project Description:   

Complete renovation of two blocks of the City’s historic main corridor, Center Street, 
designed to address functional, aesthetic, safety, scale and aging infrastructure issues and 
develop a “Complete Streets” concept.   

Scope:  Two blocks of street with approximately 140-foot rights-of-way.  

Together, with the four blocks that were completed in Phase I (City Completed in 2012) and 
Phase II (Completed with a TIGER 2013 Grant in 2015), the scope of this TIGER project 
will complete a six block reconstruction of Center Street. This project will involve a 
complete demolition of the surface and subsurface infrastructure, including water, sewer, 
storm drainage systems, grading to decrease existing slopes, and relocation of the overhead 
utility lines to underground.  Other highlights of the surface transformation include a 
reappropriation of space to create sidewalks, tree installations, center median/greenspace and 
vehicular traffic lanes, vehicular parking, bike lanes and the creation of two additional 
roundabouts.  Additional design elements for this phase include: creation of pedestrian 
crosswalks, installation of pedestrian and street lighting, landscaping, bike racks and 
benches.  The center median is currently 74 feet wide from curb to curb but will decrease to 
approximately 51 feet to allow for parallel on-street parking, an expanded sidewalk along the 
street edge with a grass strip, a dedicated bike lane for each one-way street, and trees.  The 
linear median will feature a meandering walking/bike trail and green space.   

2)  GWTA Concourse - 

Brief Project Description:   

A transit concourse will be constructed and added to the GWTA Transit Center and will 
cover 10 bus bays/slips to protect passengers and vehicles from the elements.  

Scope:  Construction of the Concourse as designed and as construction plans detail.   

 3)  The HUB (formerly known as Cornerstone Commons) - 

Brief Project Description:   

The HUB is a 12,320-square foot paved area (which is owned by the city of Goldsboro) and 
is located at the intersection of the 200 block of S. Center Street and the 100 block of E. 
Chestnut Street.  With the development of the Center Street Streetscape and the renewed life 
in this section of downtown there is a significant public appeal to expand and improve this 
space to serve as a multi-modal transportation hub connecting transit, through bus stop 
location, pedestrian and bike path connectors and amenities that compliment these uses such 



A-16 

as a public restroom facility, bicycle racks, furnishings, lighting, and functional landscaping. 
The space will double in size, extending parallel to Center Street. 

cope:   Demolition of the existing built space; development of an expanded area 
southward parallel along Center Street to be approximately 28,000 sq. ft. with the additional 
features outlined above.   

 4)  Wayfinding Signage Fabrication & Installation - 

Brief Project Description:   

The City and NCDOT funded a Wayfinding Signage System Design & Plan study that began 
in November 2014 and was approved in early 2016.   The Plan resulted in a design package, 
a placement plan and a fabrication/installation cost summary.   

Scope:  Fabrication and installation of the sign package.  Approximately ninety (90) signs of 
varying types will be placed throughout the community to direct traffic to certain points of 
interest, including the GWTA Transit Center and its newly developed Amtrak Transit 
service, The HUB and Center Street destinations in downtown.  This project will be bid 
separately from other portions of TIGER FY 2016 awarded projects.  

 
ATTACHMENT B 

ESTIMATED PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Completion of NEPA and Sec. 106 Consultation:   

Center Street Streetscape Project:    January 24, 2017 

GWTA Concourse:      March 7, 2014 

The Hub:       January 24, 2017 

Completion of Sec. 106 Consultation    January 24, 2017 

Update of TIP and STIP     January 6, 2017 

Pre Award Authority for Design, Const. & Fabrication of Signs January 9, 2018 

Start of Preliminary Engineering:   

Center Street Streetscape Project:    June 2018 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    December 2020 

The Hub Construction:      June 2018 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   N/A 

End of Preliminary Engineering:   

Center Street Streetscape Project:    October 2018 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    March 2021 

The HUB Construction:      October 2018 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   N/A 



A-17 

Start of Final Design:   

Center Street Streetscape Project:    June 2018 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    December 2020 

The HUB Construction:      June 2018 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   August 2014 

Completion of Final Design:   

Center Street Streetscape Project:    April 2019 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    March 2021 

The HUB Construction:      May 2019 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   August 2015 

Planned Construction Contract Award Date:  

Center Street Streetscape Project:    May 2018 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    May 2021 

The HUB Construction:      April 2018 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   May 2019 

Planned Construction Start Date: 

Center Street Streetscape Project:    May 2019 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    July 2021 

The HUB Construction:      May 2019 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   May 2019 

Planned Project Construction Substantial Completion: 

Center Street Streetscape Project:    June 2020 

GWTA Concourse Construction:    January 2022 

The HUB Construction:      June 2020 

Wayfinding Signage System Fabrication & Installation:   March 2020 

Period of Performance End Date     April 2022 
 
Planned Project Closeout Date:     June 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A-18 

ATTACHMENT C 
ESTIMATED PROJECT BUDGET 

 
 
  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
  

 Sources of Funds in Million 
 
 
Activity 

 
Local Funds 

 
FY 16 TIGER 

Funds  
 

 
Total Project 

Cost 

Center Street Streetscape 
   Construction: 

 
$660,000 (20%) 

 
$2,640,000 (80%) 

 

 
$3,300,000 

The HUB 
   Construction: 

$309,010 (32%) $656,000 (68%) $965,000 

The Hub & Center Street Streetscape  
   Design: 

$245,000 (28%) $735,000 (72%) $980,000 

GWTA Concourse  
Design:  $50,000 

   Construction: $550,000 

 
$10,000 (20%) 
$110,000 (20%) 

 
$40,000 (80%) 
$440,000 (80%) 

 
$600,000 

Wayfinding Signage 
Construction:  $450,000 

 
$90,000 (20%) 

 
$360,000 (80%) 

 
$450,000 

Project Construction  
Contingency  

$331,741 (42%) $129,000 (28%) $460,751  
 

TOTAL $1,755,751 $5,000,000 $6,755,751 

Percent Contribution from Funding 
Sources 

26%  74% 100% 



A-19 

ATTACHMENT D 
PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT TABLE 

Study Area:   Downtown Goldsboro:  Goldsboro Main Street™ Revitalization Through 
Transportation Investment II Project Area. 

 
Pre-project Measurement Date:  August 2019 
 
Pre-project Report Date:  January 2020 
 
Project Outcomes Report Date:  December 2026 
 

Table 1: Performance Measurement Table  

Measure 

Description and 
Category of 

Measure 

Measurement Period 
Reporting 

Period  

1) GWTA 
Transit 
Center/ 

Concourse 
Customer 

Survey 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rider 
Characteristics 
A Survey Tool to 
Establish Change 

in the Facility 
and Operations 
Quality Impacts 

to GWTA 
Transit 

Customers 
(Note: FTA sign-
off on the survey 

is required 
before using.) 

 

 

 

 

 

Baseline Measurement: 

A pre-construction survey will be distributed to 
all GWTA Customers prior to startup of 

construction (no later than December 2019) to 
determine a baseline of Customer Satisfaction, 
Transit/Alternative Modes of Transportation 

Use and Quality of Life.  Survey results will be 
included in the Pre-Project Report. 

Interim Performance Measures: 

A post-construction survey will be distributed 
to all GWTA Customers after conclusion of 
construction and travel pattern stabilization 
(Oct. 2022).  They will have one week to 

complete for report.  Survey results showing 
perceived changes in Customer Satisfaction, 

Changes in Transit/Alternative Modes of 
Transportation and Quality of Life will be 
included in the Project Outcomes Report. 

 

 

Baseline 
Measurement 

August 2019 

 

 

 

 

Interim 
Performance 

Measures 

Dec. 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 



A-20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2) GWTA 
Boarding & 
Alighting 
Counts 

Passenger 
Counts 

Figures of 
Established 

Routes and Stops

 

Baseline Measurement: 

A count of passengers boarding and alighting at 
several established routes and stops on a typical 
weekday (while school is in session), Saturday 

and Sunday will be conducted by the bus 
drivers in no later than December 2018.  This 
will serve as the Concourse Pre-Construction, 
as well as total project, baseline measurement. 

Interim Performance Measures: 

A count of passengers boarding and alighting at 
several established routes and stops on a typical 
weekday (while school is in session), Saturday 

and Sunday will be conducted by the bus 
drivers upon completion of project construction 
(October 2022), and will continue for a period 

of 3 years thereafter. This will serve as the post-
construction measurement.  Results will be 
included in the Project Outcomes Report. 

 

Baseline 

Aug. 2019 

 

 

 

 

Interim 
Performance 
Reporting: 

Annually, for 
a period of 3 

years, 
beginning at 

completion of 
construction 
(Oct. 2022), 

through  

Dec. 2025 

 
 

3) Economic 
Impact 
Indicator 
Report 

Grantee 
maintains 

statistics in the 
downtown each 

year of:  
Investments 

made, business 
growth, job 
growth and 

vacancy impacts. 

Baseline Measurement:  

 report of these economic statistics will be 
available and included in the Baseline Report to 

characterize the economic conditions of the 
downtown area prior to the TIGER/City 

investment.  These statistics will be accurate for 
the period of July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

This will serve as the pre-
implementation/construction baseline 

measurement.     

 

Baseline 
Measurement: 

Aug. 2019 

 

 

 

 



A-21 

Interim Performance Measures:  

Interim Reports about the Project Status 
highlighting construction status of all portions 

of the project, including the Center Street 
Streetscape Project, The HUB, GWTA 

Concourse and Wayfinding Signage Fabrication 
& Installation will be conducted as specified in 
accordance to Section 3.1.2 of this Agreement  

A report of these economic statistics will be 
available and included as a post-project 

measurement in the December 31, 2025 Project 
Outcomes Report to characterize the economic 

impact of the TIGER/City investment in the 
downtown area.  The statistics will reflect the 

period from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2025.  This 
report will be conducted and included in all 
following annual reports necessary to meet 

TIGER reporting requirements for August of 
each year in between. 

Interim 
Performance 
Reporting: 

Annually, for 
a period of 3 

years, 
beginning at 

completion of 
construction 
(Oct. 2022), 

through  

Dec. 2025 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



A-22 

EXHIBIT A 
LEGISLATIVE AUTHORITY 

 
1. The U.S. Department of Transportation (“USDOT”) is authorized to award $500 million 
in FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grants pursuant to the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 
(Pub. L. 114-113, Dec. 18, 2015) (the “Act”). This appropriation is similar, but not identical to the 
appropriation for the Transportation Investment Generating Economic Recovery, or “TIGER 
Discretionary Grants”, program authorized and implemented pursuant to the American Recovery 
and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Recovery Act”), the FY 2010 TIGER Discretionary Grants 
pursuant to Title I (Department of Transportation) of Division A of the Consolidated 
Appropriations Act, 2010, the FY 2011 TIGER Discretionary Grants pursuant to Title XII 
(Transportation, Housing and Urban Development, and Related Agencies) of Division B of the 
Department of Defense and Full-Year Continuing Appropriations Act, 2011 (Pub. L. 112-10, Apr. 
15, 2011), the FY 2012 TIGER Discretionary Grants pursuant to the Consolidated and Further 
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2012 (Pub. L. 112-055, Nov. 18, 2011), the FY 2013 TIGER 
Discretionary Grants pursuant to the Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2013 (Pub. L. 113-
6, Mar. 26, 2013), the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2014 (Pub. L. 113-76, Jan. 17, 2014), and 
the Consolidated and Further Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015 (Pub. L. 114-235, Dec. 16, 
2014).  Because of the similarity in program structure and objectives, DOT is referring to the grants 
for National Infrastructure Investments under the Act as the “FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary 
Grants” or “TIGER Discretionary Grants”.  
 
2. The grant awards made under TIGER Discretionary Grant program are in full compliance 
with the Act and the Notice of Funding Opportunity published in the Federal Register (81 FR 
9935, February 26, 2016).  
 
3. Funds for the TIGER Discretionary Grants program are being awarded on a competitive 
basis for projects that will have a significant impact on the Nation, a metropolitan area or a region.  
Additionally, the awards ensure an equitable geographic distribution of funds, an appropriate 
balance in addressing the needs of urban and rural areas, and the investment in a variety of 
transportation modes. 
 
4. The Act specifies that not less than $100 million of the funds provided for FY 2016 TIGER 
Discretionary Grants be used for projects located in rural areas. 
 



B-1 

EXHIBIT B 
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. The Recipient shall ensure that the project is financed, constructed, operated and 
maintained in accordance with this agreement, and all applicable Federal laws, regulations and 
policies of the Federal Transit Administration (“FTA” or the “Government”) will apply to the 
project. 
 
2. The maximum obligation of the Government payable under this award, hereinafter referred 
to as the “Grant,” shall be the award as specified in section 1.6 of the agreement,  subject to all the 
terms and conditions in this agreement and of all other Federal awards funding the project.  Once 
the Government executes this agreement for the project, or a segment of the project, the Grant 
funds will then be authorized for obligation. 
 
3.  Reimbursement of costs incurred pursuant to the agreement will be made pursuant to and 
in accordance with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and the provisions of such regulations and procedures as the 
Government may prescribe.  Determination of allowable costs incurred by the Recipient under the 
Grant shall be made in accordance with applicable government-wide cost principles under 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200, Subpart E.  Closeout of the Grant shall be based upon a determination that all applicable 
administrative actions and all required work of the Grant have been completed in accordance with 
2 C.F.R. 200.343-345.  Upon the Government’s review of all financial, performance, and other 
reports required as a condition of the Grant, the Government may make any upward or downward 
adjustments to the allowable costs in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.344.  If there are any 
differences between the requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200 and statutory authority, the statute 
controls. 
 
4. The Recipient agrees to notify the Government within 30 calendar days of any change in 
circumstances or commitments that adversely affect the Recipient’s plan to complete the project 
as described in Attachments A-C. In its notification, the Recipient shall advise the Government of 
what actions it has taken or plans to take to ensure completion of the project and shall reaffirm its 
commitment to the Government as set forth in this agreement. The Recipient is solely liable for 
any funding shortfalls pertaining to the project as agreed to in the agreement. The TIGER 
Discretionary Grant Award Amount will remain unchanged. (See article 8 of the agreement 
regarding termination). 
 
5.  The Recipient agrees to carry out and complete the project without undue delays and in 
accordance with the terms of this agreement, including the Project Schedule set out in Attachment 
B, and to comply with such regulations and procedures as the Government may prescribe. 
 
6. The Recipient has submitted a request for Federal assistance, hereinafter referred to as the 
“Technical Application,” hereby incorporated by reference into this agreement and the 
Government is relying upon the Recipient’s assurances, certifications, and other representations 
made in the Technical Application, or any other related documents submitted to the Government; 
and, in its submissions, the Recipient has demonstrated justification for the project, and has 
demonstrated the financial and technical feasibility of the project, including the ability to start the 
project quickly upon receipt of the Grant; to expend Grant funds once the planning activities or 



B-2 

construction starts; and to receive all necessary environmental, state and local planning, and 
legislative approvals as necessary for the project to proceed in accordance with the Project 
Schedule. 
 
7. The Government has determined that the Project is an Eligible Project for TIGER funding 
as it provides planning for or construction of a highway or bridge project, public transportation 
project, passenger or freight rail transportation project, or a port infrastructure project, or other 
such eligible project as authorized, and that the Project will have a significant impact on the Nation, 
a metropolitan area, or a region. The Government has determined that Recipient should receive 
the award of a Grant based on a review of the Project’s Technical Application, as it meets the 
requirements specified in the Act and the February 26, 2016, Federal Register Notice, “Notice of 
Funding Opportunity for the Department of Transportation’s National Infrastructure Investments 
under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016” (Available at 
https://federalregister.gov/a/2016-04217). 
 
8. The Recipient’s progress will be monitored periodically by the Government, both 
programmatically and financially, to ensure that the Project goals, objectives, performance 
requirements, timelines, milestone completion, budgets, and other related program criteria are 
being met.  Monitoring will be accomplished through a combination of office-based reviews and 
onsite monitoring visits.  Monitoring will involve the review and analysis of the financial, 
programmatic, performance and administrative issues relative to each program and will identify 
areas where technical assistance and other support may be needed.  The Recipient is responsible 
for monitoring award activities, to include subawards, and accountable to the Government for the 
use of the funds provided and to assure that the Federal award is administered in compliance with 
applicable requirements.  Responsibilities include the accounting of receipts and expenditures, 
cash management, maintaining adequate financial records, and refunding disallowed expenditures. 
 
9. The Recipient agrees to take all steps, including initiating litigation, if necessary, to recover 
Federal funds if the Government determines, after consultation with the Recipient, that such funds 
have been spent fraudulently, wastefully, or in violation of Federal laws, or misused in any manner 
in undertaking the Project.  For the purposes of this agreement, the term “Federal funds” means 
funds however used or disbursed by the Recipient that were originally paid pursuant to the 
agreement. 
 
10.  The Recipient agrees to retain all documents relevant to the Grant award for a period of 
three years from completion of the Project and receipt of final reimbursement from the 
Government.  The Recipient agrees to furnish the Government, upon request, all documents and 
records pertaining to the determination of the Grant amount or to any settlement, litigation, 
negotiation, or other efforts taken to recover such funds.  All settlements or other final positions 
of the Recipient, in court or otherwise, involving the recovery of such Grant amount shall be 
approved in advance by the Government. 
 
11. The Government is subject to the Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”).  The Recipient 
should therefore be aware that all applications and related materials submitted by the Recipient 
related to this agreement will become agency records and thus are subject to FOIA and to public 
release through individual FOIA requests.    



B-3 

 
12. The Government shall not be responsible or liable for any damage to property or any injury 
to persons that may arise from, or be incident to, performance or compliance with this agreement. 
 
13. The Government encourages the Recipient and the State Department of Transportation 
(“State DOT”) acting as the limited agent on behalf of the Recipient (if applicable), to adopt and 
enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers including 
policies that bar text messaging while driving company-owned or –rented vehicles, or government-
owned, leased, or rented vehicles or privately-owned vehicles when on official government 
business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Government.  See Executive Order 
13513 “Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving”, Oct. 1, 2009 (available 
at  http://edocket.access.gpo.gov/2009/E9-24203.htm) and DOT Order 3902.10 “Text Messaging 
While Driving”, Dec. 30, 2009, as implemented by Financial Assistance Policy Letter (No. FAP-
2010-01, Feb. 2, 2010, available at 
http://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.dev/files/docs/FAPL_2010-01.pdf). This includes, but is 
not limited to, the Recipient and the State Department of Transportation acting as the limited agent 
on behalf of the Recipient: 
 

a)  considering new rules and programs or re-evaluating existing programs to prohibit text 
messaging while driving; 
b)  conducting education, awareness, and other outreach for employees about the safety 
risks associated with texting while driving; and  
c)  encouraging voluntary compliance with the agency’s text messaging policy while off 
duty. 
 
The Recipient is encouraged to insert the substance of this clause in all assistance awards. 
 

Where a Recipient, and the State DOT if acting as a limited agent for the Recipient, is located 
within a State that already has enacted legislation regarding texting while driving, that State’s law 
controls and the requirements of this paragraph will not apply to or be a part of this agreement. 
 
15. SPECIAL GRANT REQUIREMENTS  

15.1 For projects funded with both TIGER discretionary funds and Federal transit assistance 
under chapter 53 of title 49, United States Code, in addition to the terms and conditions set 
forth in this agreement, all relevant FTA program requirements apply.  

15.2  For capital projects funded exclusively with TIGER discretionary funds, in addition to the 
terms and conditions set forth in this agreement, the following requirements shall apply: 

15.2.1  Buy America.  The Recipient shall comply with the “Buy America Requirements” under 
49 U.S.C. § 5323(j), FTA implementing regulations at 49 C.F.R. part 661, and any 
amendments to those authorities.   

15.2.2 Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use.  The Recipient shall comply with FTA 
regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit 
Operations,” 49 C.F.R. part 655, that implement 49 U.S.C. § 5331. 



B-4 

15.2.3 Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements.  If the Grant Agreement for the 
project indicates that public transportation employee protective arrangements required by 
U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) apply to public transportation operations performed in 
connection with the project, the Recipient shall comply with the applicable requirements 
for its project as follows: 

15.2.3.1 Standard Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements.  To the extent 
that the project involves public transportation operations and to the extent required by 
Federal law, the Recipient shall implement the project in accordance with the terms and 
conditions that the U.S. Secretary of Labor has determined to be fair and equitable to 
protect the interests of any employees affected by the Project and that comply with the 
requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), in accordance with U.S. DOL guidelines entitled, 
“Section 5333(b), Federal Transit Law,” 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments to those 
authorities.  These terms and conditions are identified in U.S. DOL’s certification of public 
transportation employee protective arrangements to FTA, the date of which appears in the 
Grant Agreement for the project.  The Recipient shall implement the Project in accordance 
with the conditions stated in that U.S. DOL certification.  That certification and any 
documents cited in that certification are incorporated by reference and made part of the 
Grant Agreement for the project.   

15.2.3.2 Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects in 
Nonurbanized Areas Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311.  The Recipient shall comply with 
the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program that 
is most current as of the date of execution of the Grant Agreement for the project, and any 
alternative comparable arrangements specified by U.S. DOL for application to the 
Recipient’s project, in accordance with U.S. DOL guidelines and Federal Transit Law at 
49 U.S.C. §5333(b), entitled “Employee Protective Arrangements,” 29 C.F.R. Part 215, 
and any revisions to those authorities.  Any U.S. DOL Special Warranty that may be 
provided and any documents cited in that warranty are incorporated by reference and made 
part of the Grant Agreement. 

15.3 Preaward and Post Delivery Requirements.  The Recipient shall comply with the 
requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m) and FTA regulations, “Pre-Award and Post-Delivery 
Audits of Rolling Stock Purchases,” 49 C.F.R. part 663 and any amendments to those 
authorities. 

15.4 Project Management for Major Capital Projects.  To the extent applicable, the Recipient 
shall comply with FTA regulations, “Project Management Oversight,” 49 C.F.R. part 633, 
and any amendments to those regulations, and follow the most recent edition of FTA 
Circular 5800.1, “Safety and Security Management Guidance for Major Capital Projects,” 
and any later revisions of that circular. 

15.5 State Safety Oversight.  To the extent applicable, funds awarded under this agreement are 
subject to the State Safety Oversight requirements of 49 U.S.C. §§ 5329(e) and 5330 and 
implementing regulations at 49 C.F.R. part 659 and part 674. 



B-5 

15.6 The Recipient shall administer the award according to the conditions set forth in this 
agreement.  

 



C-1 

EXHIBIT C 
APPLICABLE FEDERAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

 
By entering into the agreement for a FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant, the Recipient 

assures and certifies, with respect to this Grant, that it will comply with all applicable Federal laws, 
regulations, executive orders, policies, guidelines, and requirements as they relate to the 
application, acceptance, and use of Federal funds for this Project.  Performance under this 
agreement shall be governed by and in compliance with the following requirements, as applicable, 
to the type of organization of the Recipient and any applicable sub-recipients. The applicable 
provisions to the agreement include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

SECTION 1. General Federal Legislation 
a. Davis-Bacon Act - 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141, et seq. 
b. Federal Fair Labor Standards Act - 29 U.S.C. §§ 201, et seq.  
c. Hatch Act - 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501, et seq., but see 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l)(2) 
d. Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 - 42 

U.S.C. §§ 4601, et seq. 
e. National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 - Section 106 - 54 U.S.C. § 306108 
f. Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974 - 54 U.S.C. §§ 312501, et seq. 
g. Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act - 25 U.S.C. §§ 3001, et seq. 
h. Clean Air Act, P.L. 90-148, as amended - 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401, et seq. 
i. Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, as amended - 33 U.S.C. § 1344 
j. Section 7 of the Endangered Species Act, P.L. 93-205, as amended - 16 U.S.C. § 1536  
k. Coastal Zone Management Act, P.L. 92-583, as amended - 16 U.S.C. §§ 1451, et seq. 
l. Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 - Section 102(a) - 42 U.S.C. § 4012a 
m. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 - 42 U.S.C. §§ 6101, et seq. 
n. American Indian Religious Freedom Act, P.L. 95-341, as amended 
o. Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 1101, et seq. 
p. The Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 

Rehabilitation Act of 1970, P.L. 91-616, as amended - 42 U.S.C. §§ 4541, et seq. 
q. Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 

290dd through 290dd-2 
r. Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 - 42 U.S.C. § 4151, et seq. 
s. Power Plant and Industrial Fuel Use Act of 1978, P.L. 100-42 - Section 403 - 42 U.S.C. § 

8373 
t. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - 40 U.S.C. § 3701, et seq. 
u. Copeland Anti-kickback Act, as amended - 18 U.S.C. § 874 and 40 U.S.C. § 3145 
v. National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 - 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321, et seq. 
w. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, P.L. 90-542, as amended – 16 U.S.C. §§ 1271, et seq. 
x. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended - 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-1376  
y. Single Audit Act of 1984 - 31 U.S.C. §§ 7501, et seq. 
z. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 - 42 U.S.C. § 12101, et seq.  
aa. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended - 20 U.S.C. § 1681 through § 

1683, and § 1685 through § 1687 
bb. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended - 29 U.S.C. § 794 
cc. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 - 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq. 
dd. Title IX of the Federal Property and Administrative Services Act of 1949 - 40 U.S.C. §§ 



C-2 

1101 -1104, 541, et seq. 
ee. Limitation on Use of Appropriated Funds to Influence Certain Federal Contracting and 

Financial Transactions – 31 U.S.C. § 1352 
ff. Freedom of Information Act - 5 U.S.C. § 552, as amended 
gg. Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act – 16 U.S.C. § 1855 
hh. Farmland Protection Policy Act of 1981 – 7 U.S.C. § 4201, et seq. 
ii. Noise Control Act of 1972 – 42 U.S.C. § 4901, et seq. 
jj. Fish and Wildlife Coordination Act of 1956 – 16 U.S.C. § 661, et seq. 
kk. Section 9 of the Rivers and Harbors Act and the General Bridge Act of 1946 - 33 U.S.C. 

§§ 401 and 525 
ll. Section 4(f) of the Department of Transportation Act of 1966, 49 U.S.C. 303 and 23 

U.S.C. § 138 
mm. Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 

(CERCLA), as amended --42 U.S.C. §§ 9601, et seq. 
nn. Safe Drinking Water Act -- 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f to 300j-26 
oo. Wilderness Act -- 16 U.S.C. §§ 1131-1136 
pp. Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 

of 1976 -- 42 U.S.C. § 6901, et seq. 
qq. Migratory Bird Treaty Act 16 U.S.C. § 703, et seq. 
rr. The Federal Funding Transparency and Accountability Act of 2006, as amended (Pub. L. 

109–282, as amended by section 6202 of Public Law 110–252) 
ss. Cargo Preference Act of 1954 – 46 U.S.C. § 55305 

 
SECTION 2. Executive Orders 
a. Executive Order 11246 - Equal Employment Opportunity 
b. Executive Order 11990 - Protection of Wetlands 
c. Executive Order 11988 – Floodplain Management 
d. Executive Order 12372 - Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs 
e. Executive Order 12549 – Debarment and Suspension 
f. Executive Order 12898 – Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 

Populations and Low-Income Populations 
g. Executive Order 13166 – Improving Access to Services for Persons With Limited English 

Proficiency 
 
SECTION 3. General Federal Regulations 
a. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for 

Federal Awards – 2 C.F.R. Parts 200, 1201 
b. Non-procurement Suspension and Debarment – 2 C.F.R. Parts 180, 1200  
c. Investigative and Enforcement Procedures - 14 C.F.R. Part 13  
d. Procedures for predetermination of wage rates - 29 C.F.R. Part 1  
e. Contractors and subcontractors on public building or public work financed in whole or part 

by loans or grants from the United States - 29 C.F.R. Part 3  
f. Labor standards provisions applicable to contracts governing federally financed and 

assisted construction (also labor standards provisions applicable to non-construction 
contracts subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)  - 29 C.F.R. Part 
5  



C-3 

g. Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, 
Department of Labor (Federal and federally assisted contracting requirements) - 41 C.F.R. 
Parts 60, et seq.  

h. Contractor Qualifications - 48 C.F.R. Part 9 
i. New Restrictions on Lobbying – 49 C.F.R. Part 20 
j. Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation –

Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 – 49 C.F.R. Part 21  
k. Uniform relocation assistance and real property acquisition for Federal and Federally 

assisted programs - 49 C.F.R. Part 24  
l. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Sex in Education Programs or Activities Receiving Federal 

Financial Assistance - 49 C.F.R. Part 25  
m. Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or 

Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance - 49 C.F.R. Part 27  
n. Enforcement of Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs or Activities 

Conducted by the Department of Transportation – 49 C.F.R. Part 28  
o. Denial of public works contracts to suppliers of goods and services of countries that deny 

procurement market access to U.S. contractors - 49 C.F.R. Part 30  
p. Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance) – 49 

C.F.R. Part 32 
q. DOT's implementing ADA regulations for transit, including the ADA Accessibility 

Guidelines in Part 37, Appendix A - 49 C.F.R. Parts 37 and 38 
r. Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs – 49 C.F.R. 

Part 40 
s. Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation 

Financial Assistance Programs – 49 C.F.R. Part 26 
 

SECTION 4. Office of Management and Budget Circulars 
a. Any applicable OMB Circular based upon the specific FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary 

Grant Recipient. 
 



D-1 

EXHIBIT D 
GRANT ASSURANCES 

EXHIBIT D 1 
 

TITLE VI ASSURANCE 
(Implementing Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended) 

 
ASSURANCE CONCERNING NONDISCRIMINATION IN FEDERALLY-ASSISTED 
PROGRAMS AND ACTIVITIES RECEIVING OR BENEFITING FROM FEDERAL 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
 

(Implementing the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, and the Americans With Disabilities 
Act, as amended) 

 
49 C.F.R. Parts 21, 25, 27, 37 and 38 

 
 

The United States Department of Transportation (USDOT) 
 

Standard Title VI/Non-Discrimination Assurances 
 

DOT Order No. 1050.2A 
 

By signing and submitting the Technical Application and by entering into the agreement under the 
FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grants program, the Recipient HEREBY AGREES THAT, as a 
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation 
(DOT), through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), it is subject to and will comply with 
the following: 
  
Statutory/Regulatory Authorities 
 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); 

 49 C.F.R. Part 21 (entitled Non-discrimination In Federally-Assisted Programs Of The 
Department Of Transportation—Effectuation Of Title VI Of The Civil Rights Act Of 1964);  

 28 C.F.R. section 50.3 (U.S. Department of Justice Guidelines for Enforcement of Title VI 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964); 

 
The preceding statutory and regulatory cites hereinafter are referred to as the “Acts” and 
“Regulations,” respectively. 
 
General Assurances 
 
In accordance with the Acts, the Regulations, and other pertinent directives, circulars, policy, 
memoranda, and/or guidance, the Recipient hereby gives assurance that it will promptly take any 
measures necessary to ensure that:  



D-2 

 
“No person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national 
origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity,” for which the Recipient 
receives Federal financial assistance from DOT, including the FTA. 

 
The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 clarified the original intent of Congress, with respect to 
Title VI and other Non-discrimination requirements (The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and 
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973), by restoring the broad, institutional-wide scope 
and coverage of these non-discrimination statutes and requirements to include all programs and 
activities of the Recipient, so long as any portion of the program is Federally assisted.   
 
Specific Assurances 
 
More specifically, and without limiting the above general Assurance, the Recipient agrees with 
and gives the following Assurances with respect to its Federally assisted FY 2016 TIGER 
Discretionary Grants program: 
 

1. The Recipient agrees that each “activity,” “facility,” or “program,” as defined in §§ 21.23 
(b) and 21.23 (e) of 49 C.F.R. § 21 will be (with regard to an “activity”) facilitated, or will 
be (with regard to a “facility”) operated, or will be (with regard to a “program”) conducted 
in compliance with all requirements imposed by, or pursuant to the Acts and the 
Regulations. 
 

2. The Recipient will insert the following notification in all solicitations for bids, Requests 
For Proposals for work, or material subject to the Acts and the Regulations made in 
connection with the FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant and, in adapted form, in all 
proposals for negotiated agreements regardless of funding source: 

 
“The Recipient, in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 (78 Stat. 252, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d to 2000d-4) and the Regulations, 
hereby notifies all bidders that it will affirmatively ensure that for any contract 
entered into pursuant to this advertisement, disadvantaged business enterprises 
will be afforded full and fair opportunity to submit bids in response to this 
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, or 
national origin in consideration for an award.” 

 
3. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix A and E of this Assurance in every 

contract or agreement subject to the Acts and the Regulations. 
 

4. The Recipient will insert the clauses of Appendix B of this Assurance, as a covenant 
running with the land, in any deed from the United States effecting or recording a transfer 
of real property, structures, use, or improvements thereon or interest therein to a Recipient. 

 



D-3 

5. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance to construct a facility, or 
part of a facility, the Assurance will extend to the entire facility and facilities operated in 
connection therewith. 

 
6. That where the Recipient receives Federal financial assistance in the form, or for the 

acquisition of real property or an interest in real property, the Assurance will extend to 
rights to space on, over, or under such property. 

 
7. That the Recipient will include the clauses set forth in Appendix C and Appendix D of this 

Assurance, as a covenant running with the land, in any future deeds, leases, licenses, 
permits, or similar instruments entered into by the Recipient with other parties: 

 
a. for the subsequent transfer of real property acquired or improved under the 

applicable activity, project, or program; and  
b. for the construction or use of, or access to, space on, over, or under real property 

acquired or improved under the applicable activity, project, or program. 
 

8. That this Assurance obligates the Recipient for the period during which Federal financial 
assistance is extended to the program, except where the Federal financial assistance is to 
provide, or is in the form of, personal property, or real property, or interest therein, or 
structures or improvements thereon, in which case the Assurance obligates the Recipient, 
or any transferee for the longer of the following periods: 
 

a. the period during which the property is used for a purpose for which the Federal 
financial assistance is extended, or for another purpose involving the provision of 
similar services or benefits; or  

b. the period during which the Recipient retains ownership or possession of the 
property. 

 
9. The Recipient will provide for such methods of administration for the program as are found 

by the Secretary of Transportation or the official to whom he/she delegates specific 
authority to give reasonable guarantee that it, other recipients, sub-recipients,  contractors, 
subcontractors, consultants, transferees, successors in interest, and other participants of 
Federal financial assistance under such program will comply with all requirements imposed 
or pursuant to the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance. 

 
10. The Recipient agrees that the United States has a right to seek judicial enforcement with 

regard to any matter arising under the Acts, the Regulations, and this Assurance. 
 
By signing this ASSURANCE, the Recipient also agrees to comply (and require any sub-
recipients, sub-recipients, contractors, successors, transferees, and/or assignees to comply) with 
all applicable provisions governing the  FTA’s access to records, accounts, documents, 
information, facilities, and staff.  You also recognize that you must comply with any program or 
compliance reviews, and/or complaint investigations conducted by the FTA.  You must keep 
records, reports, and submit the material for review upon request to FTA, or its designee in a 



D-4 

timely, complete, and accurate way.  Additionally, you must comply with all other reporting, data 
collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or detailed in program guidance. 
 
The Recipient gives this ASSURANCE in consideration of and for obtaining any Federal grants, 
loans, contracts, agreements, property, and/or discounts, or other Federal-aid and Federal 
financial assistance extended after the date hereof to the recipients by the U.S. Department of 
Transportation under the FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grants Program.  This ASSURANCE is 
binding on the Recipient, other recipients, sub-recipients, sub-Recipients, contractors, 
subcontractors and their subcontractors’, transferees, successors in interest, and any other 
participants in the FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grants Program. 
 
  



D-5 

 
APPENDIX A 

 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows: 
 

1. Compliance with Regulations:  The contractor (hereinafter includes consultants) will 
comply with the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-discrimination in Federally-
assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA), as they may be amended from time to time, which are herein 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract. 
 

2. Non-discrimination:  The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the 
contract, will not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, or national origin in the selection 
and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment.  The contractor will not participate directly or indirectly in the discrimination 
prohibited by the Acts and the Regulations, including employment practices when the 
contract covers any activity, project, or program set forth in Appendix B of 49 C.F.R. Part 
21.  

 
3. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment:  

In all solicitations, either by competitive bidding, or negotiation made by the contractor for 
work to be performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials, or leases of 
equipment, each potential subcontractor or supplier will be notified by the contractor of the 
contractor’s obligations under this contract and the Acts and the Regulations relative to Non-
discrimination on the grounds of race, color, or national origin.   

 
4. Information and Reports:  The contractor will provide all information and reports required 

by the Acts, the Regulations, and directives issued pursuant thereto and will permit access 
to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its facilities as may be 
determined by the Recipient or the FTA to be pertinent to ascertain compliance with such 
Acts, Regulations, and instructions.  Where any information required of a contractor is in 
the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish the information, the 
contractor will so certify to the Recipient or the FTA, as appropriate, and will set forth what 
efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

 
5. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of a contractor’s noncompliance with the Non-

discrimination provisions of this contract, the Recipient will impose such contract sanctions 
as it or the FTA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

 
a. withholding payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor 
complies; and/or 
b. cancelling, terminating, or suspending a contract, in whole or in part. 

 
6. Incorporation of Provisions:  The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs one 

through six in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of 
equipment, unless exempt by the Acts, the Regulations and directives issued pursuant 



D-6 

thereto.  The contractor will take action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as 
the Recipient or the FTA may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including 
sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, that if the contractor becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with litigation by a subcontractor, or supplier because of such direction, the 
contractor may request the Recipient to enter into any litigation to protect the interests of the 
Recipient.  In addition, the contractor may request the United States to enter into the 
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  



D-7 

APPENDIX B 
 

CLAUSES FOR DEEDS TRANSFERRING UNITED STATES PROPERTY 
 

The following clauses will be included in deeds effecting or recording the transfer of real property, 
structures, or improvements thereon, or granting interest therein from the United States pursuant to 
the provisions of Specific Assurance 4: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the U.S. Department of Transportation as authorized by law and upon the 
condition that the Recipient will accept title to the lands and maintain the project constructed thereon 
in accordance with The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (Pub. L. 114-113, December 18, 
2015) the Regulations for the Administration of  FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grants Program, 
and the policies and procedures prescribed by the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation in accordance and in compliance with all requirements imposed by 
Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the 
Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in Federally-assisted programs of the U.S Department of 
Transportation pertaining to and effectuating the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 
1964 (78 Stat. 252; 42 U.S.C. § 2000d to 2000d-4), does hereby remise, release, quitclaim and 
convey unto the Recipient all the right, title and interest of the U.S. Department of Transportation 
in and to said lands described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 

(HABENDUM CLAUSE) 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said lands and interests therein unto Recipient and its successors 
forever, subject, however, to the covenants, conditions, restrictions and reservations herein 
contained as follows, which will remain in effect for the period during which the real property or 
structures are used for a purpose for which Federal financial assistance is extended or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits and will be binding on the Recipient, 
its successors and assigns. 
 
The Recipient, in consideration of the conveyance of said lands and interests in lands, does hereby 
covenant and agree as a covenant running with the land for itself, its successors and assigns, that (1) 
no person will on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, 
be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination with regard to any facility 
located wholly or in part on, over, or under such lands hereby conveyed [,] [and]* (2) that the 
Recipient will use the lands and interests in lands and interests in lands so conveyed, in compliance 
with all requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Non-discrimination in 
Federally-assisted programs of the U.S. Department of Transportation, Effectuation of Title VI of 
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations and Acts may be amended[, and (3) that in the 
event of breach of any of the above-mentioned non-discrimination conditions, the Department will 
have a right to enter or re-enter said lands and facilities on said land, and that above described land 
and facilities will thereon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation and its assigns as such interest existed prior to this instruction].* 
 



D-8 

(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary in order to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 

CLAUSES FOR TRANSFER OF REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED OR IMPROVED 
UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY, OR PROGRAM 

 
The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, leases, permits, or similar instruments 
entered into by the Recipient pursuant to the provisions of Specific Assurance 7(a): 
 

A.  The (Recipient, lessee, permittee, etc. as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her 
heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the 
consideration hereof, does hereby covenant and agree [in the case of deeds and leases 
add “as a covenant running with the land”] that: 

 
1. In the event facilities are constructed, maintained, or otherwise operated on the property 

described in this (deed, license, lease, permit, etc.) for a purpose for which a U.S. 
Department of Transportation activity, facility, or program is extended or for another 
purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits, the (Recipient, licensee, 
lessee, permittee, etc.) will maintain and operate such facilities and services in 
compliance with all requirements imposed by the Acts and Regulations (as may be 
amended) such that no person on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, will be 
excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities.  

 
B. With respect to licenses, leases, permits, etc., in the event of breach of any of the above 

Non-discrimination covenants, Recipient will have the right to terminate the (lease, 
license, permit, etc.) and to enter, re-enter, and repossess said lands and facilities 
thereon, and hold the same as if the (lease, license, permit, etc.) had never been made 
or issued.* 

 
C. With respect to a deed, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination 

covenants, the Recipient will have the right to enter or re-enter the lands and facilities 
thereon, and the above described lands and facilities will there upon revert to and vest 
in and become the absolute property of the Recipient and its assigns.* 

 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
  



D-9 

APPENDIX D 
 

CLAUSES FOR CONSTRUCTION/USE/ACCESS TO REAL PROPERTY ACQUIRED 
UNDER THE ACTIVITY, FACILITY OR PROGRAM 

 
The following clauses will be included in deeds, licenses, permits, or similar 
instruments/agreements entered into by Recipient pursuant to the provisions of Specific Assurance 
7(b): 
 
A. The (Recipient, licensee, permittee, etc., as appropriate) for himself/herself, his/her heirs, 

personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of the consideration 
hereof, does hereby covenant and agree (in the case of deeds and leases add, “as a covenant 
running with the land”) that (1) no person on the ground of race, color, or national origin, will 
be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to 
discrimination in the use of said facilities, (2) that in the construction of any improvements on, 
over, or under such land, and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the ground of 
race, color, or national origin, will be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or 
otherwise be subjected to discrimination, (3) that the (Recipient, licensee, lessee, permittee, 
etc.) will use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant 
to the Acts and Regulations, as amended, set forth in this Assurance. 
 

B. With respect to (licenses, leases, permits, etc.), in the event of breach of any of the above Non-
discrimination covenants, Recipient will have the right to terminate the (license, permit, etc., 
as appropriate) and to enter or re-enter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and 
hold the same as if said (license, permit, etc., as appropriate) had never been made or issued.* 
 

C. With respect to deeds, in the event of breach of any of the above Non-discrimination covenants, 
Recipient will there upon revert to and vest in and become the absolute property of Recipient 
and its assigns.* 

 
(*Reverter clause and related language to be used only when it is determined that such a clause is 
necessary to make clear the purpose of Title VI.) 
  



D-10 

APPENDIX E 
 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees, and successors in 
interest (hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees to comply with the following non-
discrimination statutes and authorities; including but not limited to: 
 
Pertinent Non-Discrimination Authorities: 
 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin); and 49 C.F.R. Part 21. 

 The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
(42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has 
been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid programs and projects);  

 Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of sex); 

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability); and 49 C.F.R. Part 27; 

 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), (prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age); 

 Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (49 U.S.C. § 471, Section 47123), as 
amended, (prohibits discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);  

 The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage 
and applicability of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act 
of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by expanding the definition of 
the terms “programs or activities” to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-
aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activities are 
Federally funded or not); 

 Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on 
the basis  of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation 
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 
– 12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.F.R. Parts 
37 and 38; 

 The Federal Aviation Administration’s Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123) 
(prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin, and sex);    

 Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority 
Populations and Low-Income Populations, which ensures nondiscrimination against 
minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with 
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on minority 
and low-income populations; 

 Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English 
Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes 
discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).  To ensure compliance with 
Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful access 
to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);    

 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from 
discriminating because of sex in education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq). 



D-11 

  



D-12 

EXHIBIT D 2 
 

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES 
 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Agreements 
 

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal 
grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any grant agreement, and the extension, 
continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or grant 
agreement. 
 
If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or grant agreement, the undersigned shall 
complete and submit Standard Form-LLL (Rev. 7-97), "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in 
accordance with its instructions.  
 
The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grants, loans and grant agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making 
or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 U.S.C.  § 1352, title.  Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 



D-13 

EXHIBIT D 3 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS IN 
THE PERFORMANCE OF THE FY 2016 DISCRETIONARY GRANT PROGRAM 

 
The Recipient certifies that it will, or will continue, to provide a drug-free workplace by: 
 
1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, 

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Recipient’s 
workplace, and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of 
such prohibition. 
  

2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about: 
 
(a) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
(b) The Recipient's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
(c) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and, 
(d) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring 
in the workplace; 
 

3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of work 
supported by the grant award be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph 1. 

 
4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph 1 that, as a condition of 

employment supported by the grant award, the employee will: 
 

(a) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
(b) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug 
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction. 
 

5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under 
paragraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of conviction.  
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to the 
Department.  Notice shall include the order number of the grant award. 

 
6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving notice under paragraph 4(b), 

with respect to any employee who is so convicted: 
 

(a) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including 
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended, or 
(b) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or 
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency. 
 



D-14 

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through 
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f). 

 
8. The Recipient may, but is not required to, provide the site for the performance of work done in 

connection with the specific grant. For the provision of services pursuant to the agreement, 
workplaces include outstations, maintenance sites, headquarters office locations, training sites 
and any other worksites where work is performed that is supported by the grant award. If the 
Recipient does so, please insert in article 11 of the agreement the following information from 
subsection (a) below:  

 
(a) Identify the Places of Performance by listing the street address, city, county, state, zip 
code. Also identify if there are workplaces on file that are not identified in this section of 
the agreement. 

 



D-15 

EXHIBIT D 4 
 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS -- PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1200 and 48 C.F.R. Part 9 

 

These assurances and certifications are applicable to all Federal-aid construction contracts, design-
build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, 
consultant contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FTA approval or that is estimated 
to cost $25,000 or more –  as defined in 2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1200. 
 
By signing and submitting the Technical Application and by entering into the agreement under the 
FY 2016 TIGER Discretionary Grant program, the Recipient is providing the assurances and 
certifications for First Tier Participants and Lower Tier Participants in the FY 2016 TIGER 
Discretionary Project, as set out below.  

 
1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:  
 
    a. The prospective first tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out below will not necessarily result 
in denial of participation in this covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification set out below. The certification or 
explanation will be considered in connection with the department or agency's determination 
whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective first tier participant to 
furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person from participation in this 
transaction. 
 
    c. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when the contracting agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later 
determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause of default. 
 
    d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the contracting 
agency to whom this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier participant learns 
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
 
    e. The terms “covered transaction,” “civil judgment,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” 
“participant,” “person,” “principal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1200.  “First Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any covered 
transaction between a Recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant (such as the 
prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any covered transaction 



D-16 

under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” refers to 
the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a Recipient or subrecipient of 
Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier Participant” refers to any 
participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers).  
 
    f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 
agency entering into this transaction. 
 
    g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 
include the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by the department or 
contracting agency, entering into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the 
$25,000 threshold. 
 
    h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous.  A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, 
or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its 
principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, 
but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), 
which is compiled by the General Services Administration. 
 
    i.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require the establishment of a system 
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge 
and information of the prospective participant is not required to exceed that which is normally 
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of these instructions, if a participant in 
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency may 
terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – 
First Tier Participants: 

 
a.  The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and 
its principals: 
 



D-17 

    (1)   Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 
agency; 
 
    (2)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil 
judgment, including a civil settlement, rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal 
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of 
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 
 
    (3)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental 
entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph 
(a)(2) of this certification; and 
 
    (4)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more 
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default. 
 
  b.   Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
2. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 
 
(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders and other lower tier transactions requiring prior 
FTA approval or estimated to cost $25,000 or more - 2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1200) 
 
    a. The prospective lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower 
tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the department, or agency with which this transaction 
originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
    c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to 
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its 
certification was erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
    d. The terms “covered transaction,” “civil settlement,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” 
“participant,” “person,” “principal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 C.F.R. Parts 180 and 1200.  You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted 
for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.  “First Tier Covered Transactions” refers 
to any covered transaction between a Recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds and a participant 
(such as the prime or general contract).  “Lower Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any covered 
transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” 
refers to the participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a Recipient or subrecipient 



D-18 

of Federal funds (such as the prime or general contractor).  “Lower Tier Participant” refers any 
participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier Participant or other Lower 
Tier Participants (such as subcontractors and suppliers). 
 
    e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or 
agency with which this transaction originated. 
 
    f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 
include this clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” without modification, in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding the 
$25,000 threshold. 
 
    g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective 
participant in a lower tier covered transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is 
erroneous. A participant is responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, 
or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its 
principals, as well as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each participant may, 
but is not required to, check the System for Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), 
which is compiled by the General Services Administration.   
 
    h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge 
and information of participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
    i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of these instructions, if a participant in 
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with 
which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment. 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -- 
Lower Tier Participants: 
 
  1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it 
nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from participating in covered transactions by any Federal department or 
agency. 
 



D-19 

  2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 



D-20 

EXHIBIT D 5 
 

REQUIREMENTS REGARDING DELINQUENT TAX LIABILITY OR A FELONY 
CONVICTION UNDER ANY FEDERAL LAW 

 
As required by sections 415 and 416 of Title IV, Division L of the Consolidated Appropriations 
Act, 2014 (Pub. L. 113-76), and similar provisions in subsequent appropriations acts, the funds 
provided under this award shall not be used to enter into a contract, memorandum of 
understanding, or cooperative agreement with, make a grant to, or provide a loan or loan guarantee 
to, any corporation that: 
 

(1) Has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and 
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in 
a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the 
tax liability, where the awarding agency is aware of the unpaid tax liability, unless an 
agency has considered suspension or debarment of the corporation and made a 
determination that suspension or debarment is not necessary to protect the interests of the 
Government; or  

 
(2) Was convicted of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding 

24 months, where the awarding agency is aware of the conviction, unless an agency has 
considered suspension or debarment of the corporation and made a determination that this 
action is not necessary to protect the interests of the Government. 

 
The Recipient therefore agrees: 
 
1. Definitions.  For the purposes of this exhibit, the following definitions apply: 
 

“Covered Transaction” means a transaction that uses any funds under this award and that is 
a contract, memorandum of understanding, cooperative agreement, grant, loan, or loan 
guarantee. 
 
“Felony Conviction” means a conviction within the preceding 24 months of a felony criminal 
violation under any Federal law and includes conviction of an offense defined in a section of 
the United States Code that specifically classifies the offense as a felony and conviction of an 
offense that is classified as a felony under 18 U.S.C. 3559. 
 
“Participant” means the Recipient, an entity who submits a proposal for a Covered 
Transaction, or an entity who enters into a Covered Transaction. 
 
“Tax Delinquency” means an unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all 
judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is not being 
paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting 
the tax liability. 

 



D-21 

2. Mandatory Check in the System for Award Management.  Before entering a Covered 
Transaction with another entity, a Participant shall check the System for Award Management 
(the “SAM”) at http://www.sam.gov/ for an entry describing that entity. 

 
3. Mandatory Certifications.  Before entering a Covered Transaction with another entity, a 

Participant shall require that entity to: 
 

(1) Certify whether the entity has a Tax Delinquency; and 
 
(2) Certify whether the entity has a Felony Conviction. 

 
4 Prohibition. If 
 

(1) the SAM entry for an entity indicates that the entity has a Tax Delinquency or a Federal 
Conviction; 

 
(2) an entity provides an affirmative response to either certification in section 3; or 
 
(3) an entity’s certification under section 3 was inaccurate when made or became 

inaccurate after being made 
 

then a Participant shall not enter or continue a Covered Transaction with that entity unless the 
USDOT has determined in writing that suspension or debarment of that entity are not necessary 
to protect the interests of the Government. 

 
5. Mandatory Notice to the USDOT. 
 

(a) If the SAM entry for a Participant indicates that the Participant has a Tax Delinquency or 
a Felony Conviction, the Recipient shall notify the USDOT in writing of that entry. 

 
(b) If a Participant provides an affirmative response to either certification in section 1, the 

Recipient shall notify the USDOT in writing of that affirmative response. 
 
(c) If the Recipient knows that a Participant’s certification under section 1 was inaccurate 

when made or became inaccurate after being made, the Recipient shall notify the USDOT 
in writing of that inaccuracy. 

 
6. Flow Down.  For all Covered Transactions, including all tiers of subcontracts and subawards, 

the Recipient shall: 
 

(1) require the SAM check in section 2; 
 
(2) require the certifications in section 3; 
 
(3) include the prohibition in section 4; and 
 



D-22 

(4) require all Participants to notify the Recipient in writing of any information that would 
require the Recipient to notify the USDOT under section 5. 

 



E-1 

EXHIBIT E 
RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY OF THE RECIPIENT 

 
1.  Legal Authority. 

The Recipient affirms that it has the legal authority to apply for the grant, and to finance and carry 
out the proposed project identified in its Technical Application; that a resolution, motion or similar 
action has been duly adopted or passed as an official act of the Recipient’s governing body 
authorizing the filing of the application, including all understandings and assurances contained 
therein, and directing and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the 
Recipient to act in connection with the application and to provide such additional information as 
may be required. 

2.  Funds Availability.   

Recipient affirms that it has sufficient funds available for that portion of the project costs that are 
not to be paid by the Government.  Recipient also affirms that it has sufficient funds available to 
assure operation and maintenance of items funded under the agreement that it will own or control. 

3.  Preserving Rights and Powers. 

Recipient will not take or permit any action that would operate to deprive it of any of the rights 
and powers necessary to perform any or all of the terms, conditions, and assurances in the 
agreement without the written approval of the Government, and will act promptly to acquire, 
extinguish, or modify any outstanding rights or claims of right of others that would interfere with 
such performance by the Recipient.  The Recipient agrees that this will be done in a manner 
acceptable to the Government. 

4.  Accounting System, Audit, and Record Keeping Requirements. 

(a)  The Recipient agrees to keep all project accounts and records that fully disclose the 
amount and disposition by the Recipient of the proceeds of the grant, the total cost of the project 
in connection with which the grant is given or used, and the amount or nature of that portion of the 
cost of the project supplied by other sources, and such other financial records pertinent to the 
project.  The accounts and records shall be kept in accordance with an accounting system that 
meets the requirements of 2 C.F.R. 200.301 – 200.303 and 2 CFR 200 Subpart F  and will facilitate 
an effective audit in accordance with the Single Audit Act of 1984, as amended (31 U.S.C. §§ 
7501-7507). 
 

(b)  The Recipient agrees to make available to the Government and the Comptroller General 
of the United States, or any of their duly authorized representatives, for the purpose of audit and 
examination, any books, documents, papers, and records of the Recipient that are pertinent to the 
grant.  The Government may require that a Recipient conduct an appropriate audit. In any case in 
which an independent audit is made of the accounts of a Recipient relating to the disposition of 
the proceeds of a grant or relating to the project in connection with which the grant was given or 
used, it shall file a certified copy of such audit with the Comptroller General of the United States 
not later than six (6) months following the close of the fiscal year for which the audit was made. 
 
5.  Minimum Wage Rates.  It shall include, in all contracts in excess of $2,000 for work on any 
projects funded under this agreement that involve labor, provisions establishing minimum rates of 



E-2 

wages, to be predetermined by the Secretary of Labor, in accordance with the Davis-Bacon Act, 
as amended (40 U.S.C. § 3141, et seq.), which contractors shall pay to skilled and unskilled labor, 
and such minimum rates shall be stated in the invitation for bids and shall be included in proposals 
or bids for the work. 

6.  Engineering and Design Services. It will award each contract or sub-contract for program 
management, construction management, planning studies, feasibility studies, architectural 
services, preliminary engineering, design, engineering, surveying, mapping, or related services 
with respect to the project in the same manner as a contract for architectural and engineering 
services is negotiated under the Brooks Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 1101-1104) or an equivalent 
qualifications-based requirement prescribed for or by the Recipient as approved by the Secretary. 

7.  Foreign Market Restrictions. It will not allow funds provided under this grant to be used to 
fund any project that uses any product or service of a foreign country during the period in which 
such foreign country is listed by the United States Trade Representative as denying fair and 
equitable market opportunities for products and suppliers of the United States in procurement and 
construction. 

8.  Relocation and Real Property Acquisition. (1) It will be guided in acquiring real property, to 
the greatest extent practicable under State law, by the land acquisition policies in Subpart B of 49 
C.F.R. Part 24 and will pay or reimburse property owners for necessary expenses as specified in 
Subpart B. (2) It will provide a relocation assistance program offering the services described in 
Subpart C and fair and reasonable relocation payments and assistance to displaced persons as 
required in Subpart D and E of 49 C.F.R. Part 24. (3) It will make available within a reasonable 
period of time prior to displacement, comparable replacement dwellings to displaced persons in 
accordance with Subpart E of 49 C.F.R. Part 24. 

9.  Disposition of Equipment. If equipment acquired under this award is no longer needed for the 
project, the Recipient shall request disposition instructions from the Government. 



F-1 

EXHIBIT F 
REIMBURSEMENT OF PROJECT COSTS 

 
1. Under 2 C.F.R. 200.305(a) and (b)(3), the Recipient may request reimbursement of costs 
incurred in the performance of this agreement if those costs do not exceed the funds available 
under this agreement and are allowable under the applicable cost provisions of 2. C.F.R. parts 
200 and 1201.  The Recipient shall submit electronic payment requests through the Electronic 
Clearing House Operation (“ECHO”). 

 
2. If the Recipient submits a reimbursement request through ECHO, the Recipient shall retain 
supporting documentation and include cost details in the quarterly progress reports described 
in Exhibit H. 
 
3. The Recipient shall retain documentary evidence of all obligations that are associated with 
the project and included in the total project costs, including those to be covered by local or 
state contributions.  The Recipient shall submit requests for reimbursement based on cash flow 
needs.  The Recipient shall include sufficient documentation in a reimbursement request to 
justify reimbursement of the Recipient, including invoices and proof of payment of an invoice.  
The Government may deny a reimbursement request if the Government determines that the 
request is not supported by sufficient documentation. 
 
3. The Recipient shall have entered into obligations for services and goods associated with 
the Project prior to seeking reimbursement from the Government. 

 
4. The Recipient shall ensure that the funds provided by the Government are not 
misappropriated or misdirected to any other account, need, project, line-item, or unrelated 
activity.  

 
5. Any Federal funds not expended in conjunction with the Project will remain the property 
of the Government.  

 
6. Financial Management System: By signing this agreement, the Recipient verifies that it 
has, or will implement, a financial management system adequate for monitoring the 
accumulation of costs and that it complies with the financial management system requirements 
of 2 C.F.R. part 200. The Recipient’s failure to comply with these requirements may result in 
agreement termination. 

 
7. Allowable Costs: Determination of allowable costs will be made in accordance with the 
applicable Federal cost principles, e.g., 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Subpart E.  Disallowed costs are 
those charges determined to not be allowed in accordance with the applicable Federal cost 
principles or other conditions contained in this agreement. 

 



G-1 

EXHIBIT G 
GRANT REQUIREMENTS AND CONTRACT CLAUSES 

 

1. The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 (Pub. L. 114-113, December 18, 2015),  
regarding National Infrastructure Investments (the “Act”) (referred to as “FY 2016 TIGER 
Discretionary Grants” or “TIGER Discretionary Grants”) requires that all laborers and mechanics 
employed by contractors and subcontractors on projects funded directly by or assisted in whole or 
in part by and through the Federal Government  shall be paid wages at rates not less than those 
prevailing on projects of a character similar in the locality as determined by the Secretary of Labor 
in accordance with subchapter IV of chapter 31 of Title 40, United States Code. 

2.  Pursuant to Reorganization Plan No. 14 and the Copeland Act, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, the 
Department of Labor has issued regulations at 29 C.F.R. Parts 1, 3, and 5 to implement the Davis-
Bacon and related Acts. Regulations in 29 C.F.R. 5.5 instruct agencies concerning application of 
the standard Davis-Bacon contract clauses set forth in that section. Federal agencies providing 
grants, cooperative agreements, and loans under the Act shall ensure that the standard Davis-Bacon 
contract clauses found in 29 C.F.R. 5.5(a) are incorporated in any resultant covered contracts that 
are in excess of $2,000 for construction, alteration or repair (including painting and decorating). 

3.  Federal agencies providing grants, grant agreements, and loans under the Act shall ensure 
that the standard Davis-Bacon contract clauses found in 29 C.F.R. 5.5(a) are incorporated in any 
resultant covered contracts that are in excess of $2,000 for construction, alteration or repair 
(including painting and decorating).  

4.  For additional guidance on the wage rate requirements of the Act, contact your awarding 
agency. Recipients of grants, grant agreements and loans should direct their initial inquiries 
concerning the application of Davis-Bacon requirements to a particular federally assisted project 
to the Federal agency funding the project. The Secretary of Labor retains final coverage authority 
under Reorganization Plan Number 14. 
  



G-2 

EXHIBIT G1 
TRANSPARENCY ACT AWARD TERM  

 
I. Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation. 
 

a. Reporting of first-tier subawards. 
 
1. Applicability. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this award term, you 
must report each action that obligates $25,000 or more in Federal funds that does not 
include Recovery funds (as defined in section 1512(a)(2) of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub. L. 111-5) for a subaward to an entity (see definitions in 
paragraph e. of this award term). 
 
2. Where and when to report. 
 

i. You must report each obligating action described in paragraph a.1. of this award term 
to http://www.fsrs.gov. 
 
ii. For subaward information, report no later than the end of the month following the 
month in which the obligation was made. (For example, if the obligation was made on 
November 7, 2010, the obligation must be reported by no later than December 31, 
2010.) 

 
3. What to report. You must report the information about each obligating action that the 
submission instructions posted at http://www.fsrs.gov specify. 
 

b. Reporting Total Compensation of Recipient Executives. 
 

1. Applicability and what to report. You must report total compensation for each of your 
five most highly compensated executives for the preceding completed fiscal year, if— 

 
i. the total Federal funding authorized to date under this award is $25,000 or more; 
 
ii. in the preceding fiscal year, you received— 

 
(A) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenues from Federal procurement 
contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the 
Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and 
 
(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement 
contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the 
Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and 
 

iii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the 
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 



G-3 

Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the compensation 
information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total compensation 
filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.) 

 
2. Where and when to report. You must report executive total compensation described in 
paragraph b.1. of this award term: 

 
i. As part of your registration profile at https://www.sam.gov. 
 
ii. By the end of the month following the month in which this award is made, and 
annually thereafter. 
 

c. Reporting of Total Compensation of Subrecipient Executives. 
 

1. Applicability and what to report. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of 
this award term, for each first-tier subrecipient under this award, you shall report the names 
and total compensation of each of the subrecipient's five most highly compensated 
executives for the subrecipient's preceding completed fiscal year, if— 
 

i. in the subrecipient's preceding fiscal year, the subrecipient received— 
 

(A) 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal procurement 
contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject to the 
Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards); and 
 
(B) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal procurement 
contracts (and subcontracts), and Federal financial assistance subject to the 
Transparency Act (and subawards); and 

 
ii. The public does not have access to information about the compensation of the 
executives through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the compensation 
information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange Commission total compensation 
filings at http://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.) 
 

2. Where and when to report. You must report subrecipient executive total compensation 
described in paragraph c.1. of this award term: 
 

i. To the recipient. 
 
ii. By the end of the month following the month during which you make the subaward. 
For example, if a subaward is obligated on any date during the month of October of a 
given year (i.e., between October 1 and 31), you must report any required compensation 
information of the subrecipient by November 30 of that year. 
 



G-4 

d. Exemptions 
 

If, in the previous tax year, you had gross income, from all sources, under $300,000, you 
are exempt from the requirements to report: 

 
i. Subawards, 
 

and 
 
ii. The total compensation of the five most highly compensated executives of any 
subrecipient. 
 

e. Definitions. For purposes of this award term: 
 

1. Entity means all of the following, as defined in 2 CFR part 25: 
 
i. A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian tribe; 
 
ii. A foreign public entity; 
 
iii. A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization; 
 
iv. A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; 
 
v. A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity. 
 

2. Executive means officers, managing partners, or any other employees in management 
positions. 
 
3. Subaward: 

 
i. This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any 
portion of the substantive project or program for which you received this award and 
that you as the recipient award to an eligible subrecipient. 
 
ii. The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry 
out the project or program (for further explanation, see Sec. __ .210 of the attachment 
to OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit 
Organizations”). 
 
iii. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement 
that you or a subrecipient considers a contract. 
 



G-5 

4. Subrecipient means an entity that: 
 

i. Receives a subaward from you (the recipient) under this award; and 
 
ii. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward. 
 

5. Total compensation means the cash and noncash dollar value earned by the executive 
during the recipient's or subrecipient's preceding fiscal year and includes the following (for 
more information see 17 CFR 229.402(c)(2)): 
 

i. Salary and bonus. 
 
ii. Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use the dollar amount 
recognized for financial statement reporting purposes with respect to the fiscal year in 
accordance with the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 
2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments. 
 
iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does not include group 
life, health, hospitalization or medical reimbursement plans that do not discriminate in 
favor of executives, and are available generally to all salaried employees. 
 
iv. Change in pension value. This is the change in present value of defined benefit and 
actuarial pension plans. 
 
v. Above-market earnings on deferred compensation which is not tax-qualified. 
 
vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other compensation (e.g. 
severance, termination payments, value of life insurance paid on behalf of the 
employee, perquisites or property) for the executive exceeds $10,000. 

  



G-6 

EXHIBIT G2 
Single Audit Information for Recipients of TIGER DISCRETIONARY GRANT Funds 

 
1. To maximize the transparency and accountability of funds authorized under the Act as 
required by Congress and in accordance with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Common Rules provisions, 
recipients agree to maintain records that identify adequately the source and application of TIGER 
Discretionary Grant funds. 

2. For recipients covered by the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and the audit 
requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F  recipients agree to separately identify the 
expenditures for Federal awards under the Act on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
(SEFA) and the Data Collection Form (SF–SAC) required by 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  This shall be 
accomplished by identifying expenditures for Federal awards made under the Act separately on 
the SEFA, and as separate rows under Item 6 of Part III on the SF–SAC by CFDA number, and 
inclusion of the prefix “FY 2016 TIGER -” in identifying the name of the Federal program on the 
SEFA and as the first characters in Item 6c of Part III on the SF–SAC. 

  



G-7 

EXHIBIT G3 
SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT AND UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER 

REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Requirement for System for Award Management 
 

Unless you are exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, you as the recipient 
must maintain the currency of your information in the SAM until you submit the final financial 
report required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that 
you review and update the information at least annually after the initial registration, and more 
frequently if required by changes in your information or another award term. 

 
B. Requirement for unique entity identifier 

 
If you are authorized to make subawards under this award, you: 
 
1. Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity (see definition in paragraph C of this 

award term) may receive a subaward from you unless the entity has provided its unique entity 
identifier to you. 

 
2. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has provided its unique entity 

identifier to you. 
 

C. Definitions 
 

For purposes of this award term: 
 
1. System for Award Management (SAM) means the Federal repository into which an entity 

must provide information required for the conduct of business as a recipient. Additional 
information about registration procedures may be found at the SAM Internet site (currently at 
http://www.sam.gov). 

 
2. Unique entity identifier means the identifier required for SAM registration to uniquely 

identify business entities. 
 
3. Entity, as it is used in this award term, means all of the following, as defined at 2 CFR 

part 25, subpart C: 
 
a. A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government, or Indian Tribe; 
 
b. A foreign public entity; 
 
c. A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization; 
 
d. A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and 



G-8 

e. A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under an award or subaward to a non-
Federal entity. 

 
4. Subaward: 
 
a. This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the performance of any portion 

of the substantive project or program for which you received this award and that you as the 
recipient award to an eligible subrecipient. 

 
b. The term does not include your procurement of property and services needed to carry 

out the project or program (for further explanation, see 2 CFR 200.330). 
 
c. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement, including an agreement that 

you consider a contract. 
 
5. Subrecipient means an entity that: 
 
a. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and 
 
b. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds provided by the subaward. 

  



G-9 

EXHIBIT G4 
AWARD TERM AND CONDITION FOR RECIPIENT INTEGRITY AND 

PERFORMANCE MATTERS 
 
A. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and Performance 
 
1. General Reporting Requirement 

 
If the total value of your currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and 

procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds $10,000,000 for any period of 
time during the period of performance of this Federal award, then you as the recipient during that 
period of time must maintain the currency of information reported to the System for Award 
Management (SAM) that is made available in the designated integrity and performance system 
(currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information System (FAPIIS)) about 
civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and 
condition. This is a statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended 
(41 U.S.C. 2313). As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in 
the designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 
performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly available. 
 
2. Proceedings About Which You Must Report 

 
Submit the information required about each proceeding that: 
 
a. Is in connection with the award or performance of a grant, cooperative agreement, or 

procurement contract from the Federal Government; 
 
b. Reached its final disposition during the most recent five year period; and 
 
c. Is one of the following: 
 
(1) A criminal proceeding that resulted in a conviction, as defined in paragraph 5 of this 

award term and condition; 
 
(2) A civil proceeding that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and payment of a 

monetary fine, penalty, reimbursement, restitution, or damages of $5,000 or more; 
 
(3) An administrative proceeding, as defined in paragraph 5. of this award term and 

condition, that resulted in a finding of fault and liability and your payment of either a monetary 
fine or penalty of $5,000 or more or reimbursement, restitution, or damages in excess of 
$100,000; or 

 
(4) Any other criminal, civil, or administrative proceeding if: 
 
(i) It could have led to an outcome described in paragraph 2.c.(1), (2), or (3) of this award 

term and condition; 



G-10 

 
(ii) It had a different disposition arrived at by consent or compromise with an 

acknowledgment of fault on your part; and 
 
(iii) The requirement in this award term and condition to disclose information about the 

proceeding does not conflict with applicable laws and regulations. 
 
3. Reporting Procedures 

 
Enter in the SAM Entity Management area the information that SAM requires about each 

proceeding described in paragraph 2 of this award term and condition. You do not need to submit 
the information a second time under assistance awards that you received if you already provided 
the information through SAM because you were required to do so under Federal procurement 
contracts that you were awarded. 
 
4. Reporting Frequency 

 
During any period of time when you are subject to the requirement in paragraph 1 of this 

award term and condition, you must report proceedings information through SAM for the most 
recent five year period, either to report new information about any proceeding(s) that you have 
not reported previously or affirm that there is no new information to report. Recipients that have 
Federal contract, grant, and cooperative agreement awards with a cumulative total value greater 
than $10,000,000 must disclose semiannually any information about the criminal, civil, and 
administrative proceedings. 
 
5. Definitions 

 
For purposes of this award term and condition: 
 
a. Administrative proceeding means a non-judicial process that is adjudicatory in nature 

in order to make a determination of fault or liability (e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission 
Administrative proceedings, Civilian Board of Contract Appeals proceedings, and Armed 
Services Board of Contract Appeals proceedings). This includes proceedings at the Federal and 
State level but only in connection with performance of a Federal contract or grant. It does not 
include audits, site visits, corrective plans, or inspection of deliverables. 

 
b. Conviction, for purposes of this award term and condition, means a judgment or 

conviction of a criminal offense by any court of competent jurisdiction, whether entered upon a 
verdict or a plea, and includes a conviction entered upon a plea of nolo contendere. 

 
c. Total value of currently active grants, cooperative agreements, and procurement 

contracts includes— 
 
(1) Only the Federal share of the funding under any Federal award with a recipient cost 

share or match; and 
 



G-11 

(2) The value of all expected funding increments under a Federal award and options, even 
if not yet exercised. 
 
B. [Reserved] 



 12

EXHIBIT H 
QUARTERLY PROGRESS REPORTS: FORMAT AND CONTENT 

 
1. The purpose of the calendar quarterly progress reports under the agreement for the FY 2016 
TIGER Discretionary Grants program is to ensure that the project budget and schedule will be 
maintained to the maximum extent possible, that the project will be completed with the highest 
degree of quality, and that compliance with Federal regulations will be met.  To that end, the 
Recipient shall submit a Federal Financial Report (SF-425) as part of each quarterly progress 
report. 
 
2. The Recipient should develop a project reporting and tracking system to collect, assess and 
maintain project status information and data that is timely, independent, and accurate.  This system 
should provide current information on project prosecution, progress, changes, and issues.  This 
information should be used to identify trends and forecast project performance and to identify and 
proactively address challenges to eliminate major project surprises. 
 
3. The need to continuously and accurately report cost increases; schedule changes; 
deficient quality items; and the causes, impacts, and proposed measures to mitigate these issues 
is paramount to effectively managing, administering, and protecting the public investment in the 
project.  Any apparent reporting deficiencies or questionable data should be completely resolved.  
Ultimately, the Recipient and the USDOT must be fully aware of the complete status of the 
project, and therefore be in a position to take appropriate action if necessary. 
 
4. The Recipient shall produce a quarterly cost, schedule, and status report.  The Recipient 
shall immediately communicate significant issues occurring between quarterly report submittals 
without waiting for the next quarterly report submittal, with any highly significant or sensitive 
issues elevated immediately to the executive leadership. 
 
5. Under 5 C.F.R. 1320.6, the Recipient is not required to respond to a collection of 
information that does not display a currently valid control number issued by the Office of 
Management and Budget. The quarterly progress report described in this Exhibit H is approved 
under OMB Control No. 2105-0563. 
 
6. The following list enumerates the required sections in the quarterly progress reports.  At 
the discretion of the USDOT, modifications or additions can be made to produce a quarterly 
reporting format that will most effectively serve both the Recipient and the USDOT.  Some 
projects will have a more extensive quarterly status than others.  For smaller projects, the USDOT 
may determine that the content of the quarterly reports will be streamlined and project status 
meetings will be held on a less-frequent basis. The first quarterly progress report should include a 
detailed description, and where appropriate, drawings, of the items funded. 
 

(a) Project Overall Status.  This section provides an overall status of the project’s scope, 
schedule and budget.  The Recipient shall note and explain any deviations from the 
scope of work described in Attachment A, the schedule described in Attachment B, or 
the budget described in Attachment C. 
 



 13

(b) Project Significant Activities and Issues.  This section provides highlights of key 
activities, accomplishments, and issues occurring on the project during the previous 
quarter.  Activities and deliverables to be reported on should include meetings, audits 
and other reviews, design packages submitted, advertisements, awards, construction 
submittals, construction completion milestones, submittals related to any applicable 
Recovery Act requirements, media or Congressional inquiries, value 
engineering/constructability reviews, and other items of significance. 

 
(c) Action Items/Outstanding Issues.  This section should draw attention to, and track 

the progress of, highly significant or sensitive issues requiring action and direction in 
order to resolve.  In general, issues and administrative requirements that could have a 
significant or adverse impact to the project’s scope, budget, schedule, quality, safety, 
and/or compliance with Federal requirements should be included.  Status, responsible 
person(s), and due dates should be included for each action item/outstanding issue. 
Action items requiring action or direction should be included in the quarterly status 
meeting agenda.  The action items/outstanding issues may be dropped from this section 
upon full implementation of the remedial action, and upon no further monitoring 
anticipated. 
 

(d) Project Scope Overview.  The purpose of this section is to provide a further update 
regarding the project scope.  If the original scope contained in the grant agreement is 
still accurate, this section can simply state that the scope is unchanged. 

 
(e) Project Schedule.  An updated master program schedule reflecting the current status 

of the program activities should be included in this section. A Gantt (bar) type chart is 
probably the most appropriate for quarterly reporting purposes, with the ultimate 
format to be agreed upon between the Recipient and the USDOT.  It is imperative that 
the master program schedule be integrated, i.e., the individual contract milestones tied 
to each other, such that any delays occurring in one activity will be reflected throughout 
the entire program schedule, with a realistic completion date being reported. Narratives, 
tables, and/or graphs should accompany the updated master program schedule, 
basically detailing the current schedule status, delays and potential exposures, and 
recovery efforts. The following information should also be included: 

 
 Current overall project completion percentage vs. latest plan percentage.  
 Completion percentages vs. latest plan percentages for major activities such as 

right-of-way, major or critical design contracts, major or critical construction 
contracts, and significant force accounts or task orders.  A schedule status 
description should also be included for each of these major or critical elements.  

 Any delays or potential exposures to milestone and final completion dates.  The 
delays and exposures should be quantified, and overall schedule impacts 
assessed. The reasons for the delays and exposures should be explained, and 
initiatives being analyzed or implemented in order to recover the schedule 
should be detailed.  
 



 14

(f) Project Cost.  An updated cost spreadsheet reflecting the current forecasted cost vs. 
the latest approved budget vs. the baseline budget should be included in this section.  
One way to track project cost is to show: (1) Baseline Budget, (2) Latest Approved 
Budget, (3) Current Forecasted Cost Estimate, (4) Expenditures or Commitments to 
Date, and (5) Variance between Current Forecasted Cost and Latest Approved Budget.  
Line items should include all significant cost centers, such as prior costs, right-of-way, 
preliminary engineering, environmental mitigation, general engineering consultant, 
section design contracts, construction administration, utilities, construction packages, 
force accounts/task orders, wrap-up insurance, construction contingencies, 
management contingencies, and other contingencies.  The line items can be broken-up 
in enough detail such that specific areas of cost change can be sufficiently tracked and 
future improvements made to the overall cost estimating methodology.  A Program 
Total line should be included at the bottom of the spreadsheet. Narratives, tables, and/or 
graphs should accompany the updated cost spreadsheet, basically detailing the current 
cost status, reasons for cost deviations, impacts of cost overruns, and efforts to mitigate 
cost overruns. The following information should be provided: 
 

 Reasons for each line item deviation from the approved budget, impacts 
resulting from the deviations, and initiatives being analyzed or implemented in 
order to recover any cost overruns.  
 

 Transfer of costs to and from contingency line items, and reasons supporting 
the transfers.  

 
 Speculative cost changes that potentially may develop in the future, a quantified 

dollar range for each potential cost change, and the current status of the 
speculative change.  Also, a comparison analysis to the available contingency 
amounts should be included, showing that reasonable and sufficient amounts of 
contingency remain to keep the project within the latest approved budget.  

 
 Detailed cost breakdown of the general engineering consultant (GEC) services 

(if applicable), including such line items as contract amounts, task orders issued 
(amounts), balance remaining for tasks, and accrued (billable) costs.  

 
 Federal obligations and/or disbursements for the project, compared to planned 

obligations and disbursements.  
 

Federal Financial Report (SF-425).  The Federal Financial Report (SF-425) is a financial 
reporting form used throughout the Federal Government Grant system.  Recipients shall complete 
this form and attach it to each quarterly Project Progress and Monitoring Report.  The form is 
available at  
http://www.whitehouse.gov/sites/default/files/omb/assets/grants_ 
 
 



Item ______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 

SUBJECT:  Award to Cunningham Recreation to install Splash Pad at Bryan Multi‐Sports 

Complex. 

BACKGROUND:  City of Goldsboro Parks and Recreation has a lease agreement with the United 

States Air Force that allows it to plan and program activities on scores of acres 

of federal land.  To date, Parks and Recreation has constructed a fieldhouse, 

eight (8) rectangular fields (2 of which are synthetic turf) and provided ADA 

accessibility throughout.  Other amenities shown on the site plan include picnic 

shelters, playground and splash pad.  

Staff requested quotes for cost and installation of a splash pad. 

DISCUSSION:  After reviewing the costs, staff selected Cunningham Recreation to provide and 

install a splash pad at the Bryan Multi‐Sports Complex. 

RECOMMENDATION:  By motion, accept the recommendation of staff to adopt the attached budget 

ordinance and resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to accept the 

lump sum bid and execute a contract in the amount of $121,065 with 

Cunningham Recreation to install a splash pad at Bryan Multi‐Sports Complex.  

Date: ____________________  ________________________________ 

Interim Parks and Recreation Director 

Date: ____________________   ________________________________ 

Interim City Manager 

L



ORDINANCE NO. 2019- 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE  
CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2018-19 FISCAL YEAR 

 
   WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro adopted the Fy2018-2019 
budget on June 4, 2018 authorizing appropriations for the General Fund and the Utilities 
Fund; and  
 

WHEREAS, amendments by the City Council may become necessary during the 
year as conditions change; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro has been awarded $100,000 charitable 

donation from the Bryan Foundation to enhance the cultural and recreational life of the 
City of Goldsboro; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the grant funding will be utilized for the purchase and installation of 
playground equipment in the form of a splash pad at the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City will provide utilities to the splash pad as its contribution to 

the project completion; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has bid the project and it is necessary to appropriate the 

expenditures in the General Fund and the Utilities Fund so that the contract may be let 
and the project may commence.  This will be funded with revenue from an appropriation 
of Donation Revenue in the General Fund and Fund Balance in the Utility Fund. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 
Goldsboro that the Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2018-19 be amended by: 
 

1. Decreasing the Unassigned Fund Balance of the Utility Fund in the amount of 
$21,100. 
 

2. Establishing the expenditure line item entitled “Utilities-Playground 
Equipment” (61-4178-5567) in the Utility Capital Department’s budget of the 
Utility Fund in the amount of $21,100. 
 

3. Establishing a revenue line item entitled “Donations Revenue” (11-0003-
8274) in the amount of $100,000 in the General Fund. 
 

4. Establishing the expenditure line item entitled “Playground Equipment” (11-
7460-5567) in the Recreation and Parks Department’s budget of the General 
Fund in the amount of $100,000. 

 
5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ 

day of ___________________ 2019. 
 
 
 
Approved as to form only:    Reviewed by: 
 
 
 
_______________________    _______________________ 
City Attorney      Interim City Manager 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 
 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO EXECUTE 
CONTRACT WITH CUNNINGHAM RECREATION FOR CONSTRUCTION OF 

SPLASH PAD AT BRYAN MULTI-SPORTS COMPLEX 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro constructed the Bryan Multi-Sports Complex 

that opened in April of 2018; and 
 
WHEREAS, other amenities on the property include a splash pad; and 

    
 WHEREAS, Cunningham Recreation was selected to install a splash pad at the 
Bryan Multi-Sports Complex for $121,065; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 
 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with 
Cunningham Recreation in the amount of $121,065. 
 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the ________ 
day of ___________________ 2019. 

 
 
Approved as to form only:    Reviewed by: 
 
 
_______________________    _______________________ 
City Attorney      Interim City Manager 
 



Page 1 of 2 

Item_________ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: Z-3-19  Woodmac, LLC – East side of North Berkeley Boulevard between 

Holly Road and E. New Hope Road 

BACKGROUND: The applicant requests the rezoning from R-16 (Residential) to General 

Business Conditional District (GBCD).  

On February 4, 2019, City Council approved a request by the applicant to 

rezone property directly southwest and adjacent to the subject property 

to General Business Conditional District (GBCD).  However, at the time of 

rezoning, subject property was not for sale.  Now, the owner of subject 

property has agreed to sell the property to the applicant for future 

development purposes. 

In conjunction with this request, the applicant is requesting a waiver of 

the site plan requirement.  If the rezoning is approved, the new 

owner/developer will be required to have the site plan approved by City 

Council before future development of the property. 

Frontage: 100 ft. (N. Berkeley Blvd.) 

Area: 17,249 sq. ft., or 0.39 acres 

Zoning: R-16 (Residential) 

Surrounding Zoning:     North:  R-16 (Residential); O&I-1 (Office and 

  Institutional); 

  South:  General Business Conditional District 

  (GBCD); R-16 (Residential);  

  East:    Residential-16 (Residential); and 

  West:   General Business Conditional District 

  (GBCD); R-16 (Residential) 

Existing Use:  The property is currently occupied by a single-family 

dwelling. 

DISCUSSION: As previously stated, the applicant is requesting a zoning change  

from R-16 (Residential) to General Business Conditional District (GBCD). 

M



Page 2 of 2 

 

Currently, there are no plans for development of the property. The 

applicant believes the marketability of the property would be enhanced if 

it is rezoned to General Business Conditional District (GBCD).  As 

previously noted, separate site plan review and approval by City Council 

is required before development of the property. 

 

Land Use Plan Recommendation:  The City’s Comprehensive Land  

Use Plan recommends Medium Density residential development for the 

property.   

Engineering:  City water and sewer are available to serve the property.  

Subject area is not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area. 

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, no one appeared to speak 

for or against the request.  

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019, 

recommended approval of the zoning change with requirement to have 

site plan approved by City Council before future development of the 

property.   

RECOMMENDATION:  By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission  

 and adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the property from R-16 

(Residential) to General Business Conditional District (GBCD) with site 

plan approval required prior to development. 

Although not entirely compliant with the City’s Land Use Plan, the 

Conditional District zoning would afford protection to adjoining 

properties and would extend commercial zoning along Berkeley 

Boulevard which is proposed to be upgraded to a four lane divided 

corridor. 

     

 

Date:  _________________  ______________________________________ 

     Planning Director 

 

 

Date:  _________________  ______________________________________ 

     City Manager 

            



ORDINANCE NO. 2019 -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City 
Council and the Planning Commission at a regular meeting held in the Council Chamber, City Hall, on 
Monday, March 18, 2019, at 7:00 p. m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an 
ordinance amending the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best 
interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Unified Development 
Ordinance be amended as herein below set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina: 

1. That the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina Code of 
Ordinances, be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

R-16 (Residential) to General Business Conditional District (GBCD) with site plan approval 
required prior to development 

Z-3-19 Wood mac, LLC- East side of North Berkeley Boulevard between Holly Road and E. 
New Hope Road 

The Wayne County Tax Identification No. is 3529-28-5504. The property has a total frontage of 
100ft., an average depth of approximately 179.39 ft. and a total area of approximately .40 
acres. 

2. That the Official Zoning Map, Goldsboro, North Carolina, on file in the Office of the 
Director of Planning and Community Development be promptly changed to reflect this amendment and 
the appropriate entries in reference thereto be entered in the descriptive record of changes as provided 
in Section 2 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

3. That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after the entry of the changes or 
amendments herein made on the said Official Zoning Map. 

Adopted this ____ day of _____________ _, 2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 



Z-3-19 
WOOOMACLLC 

R • 16 TO GB - CO 

REZONING REQUEST .. EXISTING ZONING 

Owner: Rober Parlcer Smith 
R9questt: R·16 to GB-CD 
Project: Commercial 
Parcel #: 3529--28-5504 
Location: 1910 N. Berlceley Blvd. 

The data ,...-ec~ on lliiiYIIIP 11M beln ~by lhe bell 
melhodl..ellllble.lv:anct II~ ~.,an lhe-WCimltion 
• compiedby --~ nl~bclhln!Mwlnl 
...wmello lie tty lit~. NC Utn ollie dllll,....,..., 
on IIIIa IMP .. '*-by notifiecllwt lie pWnlry Wofmllion ~ 
lhould be CXIIWIAIId lor wrillclllion d .. ~ c:onllinecl '**" 
The Clly d Goldlbolo.,.., .. con...- COI'III..-cllo ....... "*" 
cilia-- no 11011 ~forb~ or~~C~QnCY 
OCIIU!Ined on INalftiiP. •• ttrtct~y ~ 10 Ml or~ 11-. 
~ordllelorq~~lhe.nu.n~d,.~ol 
Goldlbaro 



REZONING REQUEST 

Owner: Robert Parlcer Smith 
Requestt: R·16 to G8-CD 
Project: Commercial 
Parcel #: 3529-28-5504 
Location: 1910 N. Berlceley Blvd. 

Z-3-19 
WOODMACLLC 
R - 16 TO GB-CD 

The-~ on tt¥a 1M!' liN.,_,~ by 111e belt 
rnelhociiiMiillble ~ II~ 14'011 h - irlo<mlllon 
• ~by veno..~ lfld~bolh ...... lfld 
.-IOIIleCI)Id~. NC l)endlleclllll~ 

on thlt IMP"' hllwb)' ~hi"" ptlrMry ~
llhOUd be c:onaAIId lcf ~ o( tie~ CCl"ll8'nld........, 
ThaCIIy d ~ lfldtle ~ __ 10.....,11-. 
<1118 -l.mll no 1eQ11 ~-for 111e ~Of 8CC\RC)' 

c:onllli1td on hi'""~~ M It f1!ir:IIY larbiclc*liO , .. Of "Pfoduce tt.. 
IMf'l or diM for 11'1' - wilhOia the wnnen con..-.c o1 h cnv o1 
~ 



Z-3-19 
WOODMAC LLC 

R • 16 TO GB - CD 

REZONING REQUEST· PROPOSED ZONING 

Owner: Robert Parker Smith 
Requestt: R-16 to GB-CD 
Project: Commercial 
Parcel #: 3529-28-5504 
Location: 1910 N. Berkeley Blvd. 

BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR - -
Tlw .-. ~sented on thlamap t.a been ~led by 1he beat 
methoclo .willlble Aa::ll.cy if~~ lhe .......ce lnfoml• oon 
• compled b)l Y811outllgw1des rod deperlm- boij) Wema! rod 
~to 111e c~ of~. NC litera of 111e .-. ~ 
on IIlia map we hereby notified lhM lhe primM)! inloNnMion 101.rets 
lhould be ClOiliUited "" ~ ollhe Woonatlon conlllined herWI 
Tlw Ci\y ol Gokltboto lind .... ~~ to -lop lhHe 
Oell ... ...,. no 18g81191j)C100ibU,.. fo< th8 Wormetlon 0< -...ey 
corui'led on this mep k ia strictly lolbidden to " ' 0< fel)tOCiuellhese 
maps "' Oell 1o< ww r•aon ~ lhe written c:orwen~ Ill lhe C!IY ol 
GoldabO<o 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

Item __ _ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Z-4-19 MC Morgan & Associates- South side of Central Heights 
Road between N. Oak Forest Drive and Thoroughfare Road (R-12 
Residential and R-16 Residential to R-12 CD Residential
Conditional District). 

The applicant requests a change of zone from R-12 Residential 
and R-16 Residential to R-12 Residential Conditional District 
limiting the use to an 84-unit apartment community. 

Frontage: 
Depth : 
Area: 

182ft. (Central Heights Road) 
1,239 ft . (approximately) 
12.0 Acres 

Surrounding Zoning: North: R-16 Residential RM-NC 
South: R-16 Residential 
East: R-9 Residential 
West: R-16 Residential and R-12 

Residential RM-NC 

Existing Use: The property is currently vacant. 

Proposed Use: The applicant proposes to construct an 84-unit 
apartment community. 

Land Use Plan Recommendation: The City's Land Use Plan 
recommends that the property be developed for Medium Density 
Residential (MDR). This request would not be compatible with 
the City's Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

The submitted preliminary site plan indicates four newly
constructed three-story apartment buildings containing a total of 
84 units. In addition, a community building is also being proposed 
on site. 

Parking for the site requires two spaces per unit plus .5 per 
bedroom over two. Thirty of the 84 total units will be 3-bedroom 
units, 41 units will be 2-bedroom units and the remaining 13 units 
will be 1-bedroom units. A total of 183 parking spaces are 

Page 1 of 3 

N



Page 2 of 3 

required and 183 spaces have been shown on the preliminary site 
plan.   

Access to the site will be directly from Central Heights Road.  
Interconnectivity has not been shown, as property adjacent to the 
proposed apartment community is single-family residences.  The 
applicant is requesting a modification of the interconnectivity 
requirement. 

City sidewalks are required along frontage of the proposed 
development.  Frontage along Central Heights Road is 
approximately 182 linear feet.  The applicant will need to install 
sidewalks or pay the sidewalk fee in the amount of $3,276 in lieu 
of installation of the sidewalks. 

City water and sewer are available to serve the subject property.  
Portions of the property are located within a special flood hazard 
area.  City Engineering will require approval of stormwater 
calculations and drainage plans prior to issuance of any building 
permits.       

Street trees have been provided along Central Heights Road.  A 
Type B 15’ landscape buffer is required along all property lines 
and vehicular surface area landscape requirements must be met.  
Staff is working with the applicant to ensure landscape 
requirements are met per the requirements of the City’s Unified 
Development Ordinance. 

Dumpsters have been shown on the site plan and staff will work 
with the applicant to ensure the dumpsters are appropriately 
screened from off-site views and not located within the required 
15’ landscape buffer.   

Building elevations have been submitted and indicate the 
proposed buildings will be constructed of brick veneer and vinyl 
siding.  Roofing materials will be asphalt shingles.  Staff will 
ensure all multi-family development design standards are met per 
the requirements of the City’s Unified Development Ordinance 
prior to issuance of any building permits.  

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, one person spoke 
in opposition citing traffic and flooding issues.  No one appeared 
to speak in favor of the request. 



RECOMMENDATION: 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 25, 
2019, recommended approval of the zoning change with 
requirement to have site plan approved by City Council before 
future development of the property. 

By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and adopt an Ordinance changing the zoning for the 
property from Residential12 (R-12) and Residential16 (R-16) to 
Residential12 Conditional District (R-12 CD) with site plan 
approval. 

Although not entirely compliant with the City's Land Use Plan, the 
Residential 12 Conditional District would be appropriate and 
reasonable in conjunction with adjacent existing R-12 zoning 
districts, which permit multi-family developments. 

Date: ________________ _ 

City Manager 

Page 3 of 3 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019 -

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA 

CODE OF ORDINANCES 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the City 
Council and the Planning Commission at a regular meeting held in the Council Chamber, City Hall, on 
Monday, March 18, 2019, at 7:00 p. m., for the purpose of considering and discussing the passing of an 
ordinance amending the Unified Development Ordinance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation of the 
Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and for the best 
interest of the City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that the Unified Development 
Ordinance be amended as herein below set forth; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina : 

1. That the Unified Development Ord inance of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina Code of 
Ordinances, be and the same is hereby amended by changing: 

Residential12 (R-12) and Residential16 (R-16) to Residential12 Conditional District (R-12 CD) 
with site plan approval 

Z-4-19 MC Morgan & Associates- South side of Central Heights Road between N. Oak Forest 
Drive and Thoroughfare Road 

The Wayne County Tax Identification No. is 3529-24-4491, 3529-24-5492, 3529-24-6117, 3529-
24-4125, 3529-24-3136, 3529-24-5126, 3529-13-7763 (portion of) and 3529-23-5463(portion 
of). The property has a total frontage of 182 ft., an average depth of approximately 1239 ft. 
and a total area of approximately 12 acres. 

2. That the Official Zoning Map, Goldsboro, North Carolina, on file in the Office of the 
Director of Planning and Community Development be promptly changed to reflect this amendment and 
the appropriate entries in reference thereto be entered in the descriptive record of changes as provided 
in Section 2 of the Unified Development Ordinance. 

3. That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after the entry of the changes or 
amendments herein made on the said Official Zoning Map. 

Adopted this ___ _ day of _ ____________ __, 2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 



RM-8 
RM-NC 

Z-4-19 
TIFFANY GARDENS 

R-12/R-16 TO R-12 CD 

R-12 

IBP-1 

REz_ONING REQUEST· EXISTING ZONING 

Applicant: MC Morgan & Associates 
Request: R-12/R-16 to R12- CD 
Project: Multi Units >84 
Parcel #: Multiple 
Location: 3227 Central Heights Road 

0 500 Feet 

B ~O~E pq MO~ SEYMOUR 
The csu ~eel on t11• mep '* ~ <:omp11ec1 by h bet! melhOclt.......,.. Aor:J.I~ II c:onlingenl ~lila -lriOIIIIIIJOn 
.. complecl by ...,;ou. egenc:iee .., ...,.liS bolh lnlemlll
llllttlm8l to lila Cty of Gddtbonl, NC. UMra of lila de'-~ 
on U1d miP •• ~ notilieclhlllla prm.y lnfonnlliorliiOIRin 
lhould ~ COfiiiAiecl fot verillceon of lila lrlomllllon ~ linin 
The Clty of Goldlboro- .. ~-to dNtlop ..... 
de'--.. no~ ~tiM lor lhelrlonMtion w~ 
CIOfUinecl on this 1T11P I II attidl)' loftlidden ID Ml or fiPI'O(t.a hM 
IIIIP' Ot ~ fot ~ ,_ wilhol.t lila"""""' COt*nl of lila Clly of 
GolclttJoro 



REZONING REQUES! 

Applicant: MC Morgan & Associates 
Request: R~121R-16 to R12 ·CD 
Project: Multi Units >84 
Parcel#: Multiple 
Location: 3227 Central Heights Road 

250 0 

Z-4-19 
TIFFANY GARDENS 

R-12/R-16 TO R-12 CD 

The dillll ~on 11M f111P toes bMn ~lie! by llle llN 
melhodl..,.;loble lla:uw::y II~ lofXIIl tl>e 801fteHoml~ 
• c:ompied by vllriOul ~ end~ belli inlern!lllnd 
!!KIInlllto"" c~ of Gckltboro. NC. v.- of tt>e llfl4l ~ 
on lhl• fiiiP .. ~ nolifoed h! llle ~ Wonne11011 soun;n 
ellOuld De coniUIIed lot ~of llle Wcrmtlian ~ ~ 
The ClCy of GoJdlboro end,. ~ C>OI1Ir8CUd 10 ~ ,_ 

cilllllttUIMI'IO .. ~-lot llle nfo!m.IQII 0! IIQ!:I,ACy 

~on this f111P ft 111lrielly lo!lliddln 1o HI or~~ 
~Of_, lot W'f r-wii!'IOIA !he 'll!lllen- of !he CitY of 
~ 



Z-4-19 
TIFFANY GARDENS 

R-12/R-16 TO R-12 CD 

REWNJNG BFQIJEST- PROPOSED ZONING 

Applicant: MC Morgan & Associates 
Request: R-12/R-16 to R12- CD 
Project: Multi Units >84 
Parcel#: Multiple 
Location: 3227 Central Heights Road 

0 500 Feet 

The dille ~on INa map ha bMn ~by lhl bell 
IMtiiOCit evelllble At:ont::t It~ '4'CII'IIhl-WclmtiJon 
• ~by VlliOul ~ ll1d clepllltn..,.. bOth inltmllllld 
.-mel to 1M Cll)' ~ Oalcllboro, NC U.S~ 1M <Mill~ 
en lhllmap-hnby nolllild lwtlhl pnrn.y ~ ~CUCn 
eiiDUid be CCII'IIUIIed 11w ~or"' 1n101ma11an-* '*"" 
The City of Go4dlbolo ll1d .... con..- oanlrlld..s to Clrielop lhiM 
<MIII-110 leQIII ~ .... illctmltion 018CCiftql 
corUined en lhllmap 1 Ia llriclly forbiclclen to Ml 01 ~ .,_ 
I!IIIPa 01 diMa tot roy ..aonwilholathe -en_. or IN Cillt or 
Go4dllloto 



!lm~T!Ol'IJ 

Slftt .. lftn 
_,., \""NACIIIJI 
~ ft) ISTOIYQ..C~. 

>cl,- lf*t .I\J'~a"tUll)o(! 
~ ... 
PAIUiltO.sf'AlUr WlatrJIMU;D • • POTMrf{ *I~ 

\""'llll< nnr ~qq. 

... (A ,ln!lfn 

.._.CM'lfXfD'I 

... ralllll'm 
• 1t .. 

l.Ct I .... ., 

.... ~ .. (W . ...... , INIJU1.--·- -IIQ. l't. 
COW!:IIII>f011C- ·(.,.~,W/t -·lliUU) 
I\I>OmONI\l.~ 

-..-. ... -

stNGL! 
I'AMIL.!J 

TIFF ANY GARDENS 
GOLDS.BORO. NC 12-1 9-2018 

I I 
I I 

I I I 
'l·l I i ~ 3 

cJ.I ' ji ~ 

I 
.I 
~~ ;. 
~; lw 
I! II 

I 
5 ... 

I 
i 



MARTIN RILBY A.mCIA'JFS - ARCHrrECTS. P.C. 
II OIIDI llii!EJ' IIIII • lllOOUl <BI04 .. :a 4N-»• 
1WANY (WO!N!i 
~II: 

NOT RElEASED FOR CONSTR~ 

-...-..... 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRILl, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Item __ _ 

Z-5-19 Allsbrook Gardens- East side of Cuyler Best Road between 
Chafin Road and Oxford Boulevard (R-16 Residential to R-6 CD 
Residential - Conditional District). 

The applicant requests a change of zone from R-16 Residential to R-6 
Residential Conditional District to limit the use of the property to 80 
apartment units with related amenities. 

The applicant has requested a waiver of the site plan requirement at 
time of rezoning. If the rezoning is approved, full development plans 
would have to be approved prior to issuance of any building permits. 

Frontage: 

Depth: 
Area: 

860ft. (Cuyler Best Road) 
200ft. (North Park Drive) 
399ft. (approximately) 
5.5 Acres 

Surrounding Zoning: North : R-9 Residential 
South: Highway Business 
East: R-12 Residential 
West: 0-R Office Residential 

Existing Use: The property is currently vacant. 

Proposed Use: As indicated previously, the requested R-6 Conditional 
District is requested to limit the use of the property to 80 apartment 
units and related amenities. Development plan approval would be 
required separately. 

Land Use Plan Recommendation : The City's Land Use Plan recommends 
that the property be developed for Medium Density Residential (MDR). 
This request would not be compatible with the City's Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan. 

Engineering Comments: City water is available to serve the subject 
property at this time however; a site plan is required to determine if an 
existing sanitary sewer outfall line that extends near this property can 
serve the property. A portion of the property is located within a special 
flood hazard area. 

Page 1 of2 

O



RECOMMENDATION : 

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, seven people spoke in 
opposition of the request citing problems with traffic on Cuyler Best 
Road, flooding issues and consistency with the City's Comprehensive 
Land Use Plan . No one appeared to speak in favor or the request. 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019, 
recommended denying the applicant's request without prejudice citing 
detailed site plans were necessary at ti.me of rezoning request to ensure 
proposed development could meet city regulations and design 
standards as it relates to site development and stormwater. 

By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission 
and deny the applicant's request without prejudice. 

Date: ____.0"'-'3..L.,},_...2Y=-+-/-....:....' Pl...!...,_ _ _ 
I 

Date: -----------------
City Manager 

Page 2 of 2 



• 

Z-5-19 
ALLSBROOK GARDENS 

R-16 TO R-6 CD 

REZONING REQUEST EXISTING ZONING 

Request: R-16 To R-6 CD 
Applicant: Stephen Brock 
Project: Multi-Family Residential 
Parcel#: 3519-49-5039 
Location: Cuyler Best Rd@ Chafin Rd 

MORE 00 MORE ~0\JE 

The cMta ~ Ollll'ia IMP lwt bten~ by the '-1 
matloc:lf~ ~ ·~ I.IPOilhiOIRelnlormllion 
• compiled by v.ioul ...,0. .nd III!*Ui-l:lolh ......... .nd 
.wm.~ eo the c~ of Galdlboro, NC u-a , .. -. ~ 
Q'l tliii!IIP •• hnbv nolllled ... the pimlry Wannlllon--
~be conaAied fat~,"' Wom\8lion CCIUinld,.,.,..., 
The City of Got11boro end fit~ ~ 10 Cle\tl!ap ,_ 
dll8 .._no IIQII ~llel for the lnformelion at IICCIOC¥ 
eotUNd en INa IMP l il Mlclly latbldden 10 Ml at~,_ 
IN!P' or ON lor .., iWtOil 'liWIOOA .,. wriltln _... ollht Clly o1 
Gotllbcro 



REZONING REQUEST 

Request: R-16 To R-6 CD 
Applicant: Stephen Brock 
Project: Multi-Family Residential 
Parcel#: 3519-49-5039 
Location: Cuyler Best Rd@ Chafin Rei 

Z-5-19 
ALLSBROOK GARDENS 

R-16 TO R-6 CD 

n.. .. f'elllliMilted Oil ttn fTllll hill bien ~ by thl belt 
melt!OCII_.,.IIIble. NJo.nt:y II~ '4101lh .,._..,. Wor1Miion 
• oompiltld 1>1 ...-~ n~ t~att~inltlmal n 
-.rt.,.,..lo the Cay of~. NC u .... ol h dille ~ed 

on tM TTIIIP •• 1-...by notified lhll the prlmrf WormllbOO IOURllll 
lhOuld be conUied for vetlllclllion of the WOIII\IIJOII CX>t'UineQ ~ 

n.. City 01 ~nih~ -.cllldiO Clelle.lop ... 
a-. ..._no lege! ~lllel for lhe WOIII\IIJOII or ll!lCU'I!C)' 

ClOOIIIIned en Ilia "'liP "II~~ to Ml or~"
~or dltf for.,., tWscn ~ lhe ~ conwc c«.,. c~ o1 
~ 



.. 

Z-5-19 
ALLSBROOK GARDENS 

R-16 TO R-6 CD 

REZONING REQUEST PROPOSED ZONING 

Request: R-16 To R-6 CD 
Applicant: Stephen Brock 
Project: Multi-Family Residential 
Parcel#: 3519-49-5039 
Location: Cuyler Best Rd @ Chafin Rd 

n. dll.l.....-s on tiH IIIIP has been~ by lhe bell 
mtlhoclt 8Yiillble N:!Ner:t It conlilgenl14)0!1tlle- ir1fonnlllon 
• oompillld by wr!OuiiQindei..S ~boll .-.met..S 
..wn.IIO tile Cly ot Goldlbaro, NC U.... Gltlledlle ~ 
on lhiii!IIP •• twmy nolllled '*!he prin\rf lnlonMiian
-.Ill be coneulled for~ ot ... frlolmllian c:arui'led '*'*' 
The City ot Goldlbaro..S .. ~ ~ 10 dewlop ... 
dele -.me no 1e0e1 ~ltieelor tile Wormttion or c:oncy 
~ an 11iai!IIP It • ·~ torbidclen to Ml or "'Pf''CCuce .,_ 
~ordllefor~~~lhe~~ctlhe~ct 
Gollllboro 



s.SIIICaD 
-III'ITI/Iftll ..... .,.,.,. ... .....,.,.,.. 
UA.R • . .s")IIMMUII - _,.._ 
ltl~- -"AI!TidltT IIUIUlOIC .,. 
.. _IID4P tll!amm,._ 

!IJf!T J!CIIO!MADO!!; 

vm·n IPCMll!IT 

mn ll!PO!!IIAl!Q!! 
••<...aaJ• IMP..P. eo." . • .,..-•. r*so.w. 
,.~ • .,., ... tQ.n. •:1>'.-r.r.tQ.n. 

.. 
A71011111ftQ. PT.sJ1n*ID•-10TAL>m'tQ. n 

(I)VIIITJJIC~I4)-W/-.wlf-

2 FJ.EVATOIIS PIICMDI!D 

!!P.Q!J!!IQI AM!NT'I1D: 

MIIOOIUOUT1IOOR~- . 1"/:•U<.·o ~'Jl«A'OOII!I 
lfll\.'n--1100111 (aii'X. ..,.M). f'f..) e---
1\0DI"'"''MAL AMI!!flDEI: 

@ClmDm DRJYI.'tftiWATIImlf 

® IXIIICIS&IIOOM ·fWilmf~ 
~-CDI?U'I'U Cllri'D - tamt.•IXIImfi'DII 

ALLSBROOK GARDENS 
GOLDSBORO. NC 12-1 7-201 8 

CUYLER BEST 

~· 
~ 

i; 
I 

I 
.I 
!! 5 

~ 5; w 
~~ 

I! ~~ 
I ____ , __ 
~ 

I SINGLE FAMILY I I 
i 

~ 1 CSPl 







SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION: 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Item ___ _ 

CU-3-19 Michael Garrett- Subject property located on the North side of 

E. Ash Street between Durant Street and Ridgewood Drive (Place of 

Entertainment w/out ABC) 

Applicant requests a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation of an 

indoor competitive axe and hatchet-throwing facility within the Ash 

Street Shopping Center located at 2305 E. Ash Street. 

The property is zoned SC (Shopping Center). Places of entertainment 

without ABC permits are a permitted only after the issuance of a 

Conditional Use Permit approved by City Council. 

Frontage (Tenant Space): 98ft. 

Depth: 38ft. 

Area: 3724 sq. ft . 

As previously stated, the applicant intends to operate an indoor 

competitive axe and hatchet-throwing facility within an existing 

commercial strip center. 

The submitted site plan indicates six (6) hatchet throwing lanes, a 

lounge and seating area, office space, a storage area and restrooms 

including one handicap accessible bathroom. 

Days/hours of Operation: Monday-Sunday: TBD 

Employees: 1-2 

Access and Parking: The site is served by three existing over-sized 

driveway cuts off E. Ash Street and Ridgewood Drive. Sufficient parking 

exist to serve customers of the Shopping Center. 

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, no one appeared to speak 

for or against the request. 

P



The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019, 

recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit and submitted site 

plan. 

RECOMMENDATION: By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 

1. Adopt an Order approving the Conditional Use Permit to allow a 
place of entertainment without ABC permits; and 

2. Approve the submitted site plan. 

Date: ------~0£.!:!!~-...,....:.J Ut~JL..1l1 __ 

Date: --------
City Manager 



CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on March 
18, 2019 to consider Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-3-19 Michael Garrett- North side of E. Ash Street between Durant Street and 
Ridgewood Drive 

To allow operation of a place of entertainment without ABC permits within the 
Shopping Center (SC) zoning district, having heard all the evidence and arguments 
presented and reports from City Officials, and having received recommendation for 
approval from the Goldsboro Planning Commission pertaining to said application, 
makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does satisfy the general 
conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 
under Sections 5.5 Supplemental Use Regulations and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 
Regulations pertaining to "Places of Entertainment-No ABC permit". 

In addition, the Council approved site and landscape plans detailing the proposed development 
as submitted. 

Upon motion made by Councilmember and seconded by Councilmember 
--------'the Council approved the applicant's request for a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the operation of a used-car lot. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent to 
the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 
APPROVED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of---------' 2019. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 

dec 



cu. 3-19 
2305 EASH ST 

PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT ~ NO ABC 

CONDITIONAL USE MODIFICATIONS 

CASE NO: CU-3 19 
REQUEST: POE No ABC-Hatchet Throwing 
APPLICANT: Michael Garrett 
ADDRESS: 2305 E. Ash Street 
HOURS OF OPERATION: 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 

BE MORE 00 MORE SEYMOUR 

The e1111a ~on 1M map hat been COII'fliled by 11w bell 
meti10CII ~. N:Dstq is~ '4)Cnlhe- Wormalon 
• campled by various~ lf1d cllpWitnerM both w..r.! l!1d 
..wm.ilo lhe City of Goldlbcro, NC Ueera of llw dllt8 ~ 
en lhil map •• henlbr noldled !NIIhe pm.-y Homwtior1~<UC~e~ 
lt1ol*l be ~ for venec:.licn of lhe rtorm.uon CO!llalned -
1M City of Goldlboro .,.,,. ~ conltloclediO clewlcp lllPI 
c1e1a _....,. no ~~ge~._,.lbQleo for lhe il"lotlulion e>r eocur.cy 
~ en INs mep • Ia .uictly loot>iclden 10 Ml e>r r8pi'Ciduce lhPe 
fi1IIPS e>r dllt8 for any renon wilho\llhe ~ ""'*"" d 11w C"Y 01 
Goldsboro 



' = lfll,L; • • • - • -- ---------·----..... -----. 

~ - !MftMMMI 

CONDITIONAL USE MODIFICATIONS 

CASE NO: CU-319 
REQUEST: POE No ABC-Hatchet Throwing 
APPLICANT: Michael Garrett 
ADDRESS: 2305 E. Ash Street 
HOURS OF OPERATION: 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES; 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION : 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Item ----

CU-4-19 Scott and Christopher Wood - Subject property located on the 

North side of E. Ash Street between N. James Street and N. Center Street 

Applicants are requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow the operation 

of an auto oriented use limited to a motorcycle service, repair and 

performance shop. 

The property is zoned CBD (Central Business District). Auto-oriented uses 

are a permitted use within this district only after the issuance of a 

Conditional Use Permit approved by City Council. 

Frontage (Tenant Space) : 132.70 ft . 

Depth: 161.14 ft . 

Area : 21,398 sq . ft. or 0.49 acres 

As previously stated, the applicants intend to operate a motorcycle 

service, repair and performance shop. 

According to the City' s Unified Development Ordinance, auto-oriented 

uses are permitted in the Central Business District if located outside the 

area bounded by the south side of Ash Street, the east side of George 

Street, the north side of Chestnut Street and the west side of William 

Street. The subject property is located outside of this area. 

The submitted site plan indicates a retail sales area and showroom, an 

office space, a parts supply and workshop space, storage areas for bikes 

awaiting service and repair and restrooms. 

Days/hours of Operation: Monday-Saturday: 9am-6pm 

Employees: 3-4 

Access and Parking: The site is served by two existing driveway cuts off 

W. Ash Street. Sufficient parking is available for patrons of the business. 

Q



Buildings and Lot: The buildings and lot existed prior to the adoption of 

City's Unified Development Code. Due to existing site conditions, the 

applicants are asking for a modification of the City's building setback and 

landscape requirements. 

Since the property is located in the Historic District, any exterior 

improvements proposed for the facility will require a Certificate of 

Appropriateness before building permits can be issued. 

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, no one appeared to speak 

for or against the request. 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 25, 2019, 

recommended approval of the Conditional Use Permit and submitted site 

plan with requested modifications. 

RECOMMENDATION : By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning Commission and 

1. Adopt an Order approving the Conditional Use Permit to allow the 
operation of an auto oriented use limited to a motorcycle service, 
repair and performance shop; and 

2. Approve the submitted site plan with building setback and 
landscape requirement modifications. 

Date: ______________ _ 

City Manager 



CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
ORDER APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, having held a public hearing on March 
18, 2019 to consider Conditional Use Permit application number: 

CU-4-19 Scott and Christopher Wood- North side of E. Ash Street between N. James 
Street and N. Center Street 

To allow the operation of an auto oriented use limited to a motorcycle service, repair 
and performance shop within the Central Business (CBD)zoning district, having heard 
all the evidence and arguments presented and reports from City Officials, and having 
received recommendation for approval from the Goldsboro Planning Commission 
pertaining to said application, makes the following findings of fact. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

The City Council makes the CONCLUSION that the proposed use does satisfy the general 
conditions imposed on the Council in its deliberations for issuing a Conditional Use Permit 
under Sections 5.5 Supplemental Use Regulations and 5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific 
Regulations pertaining to auto-oriented uses permitted within the Central Business District 
(CBD). 

In addition, the Council approved site and landscape plans detailing the proposed development 
as submitted. 

Upon motion made by Councilmember and seconded by Councilmember 
--------'the Council approved the applicant's request for a Conditional Use 
Permit to allow the operation of a used-car lot. 

Therefore, because the City Council concludes that all of the general conditions precedent to 
the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT have BEEN satisfied, 

IT IS ORDERED that the application for the issuance of a CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT be 
APPROVED. 

Thus ordered this ___ day of---------' 2019. 

Chuck Allen, Mayor 

Ronald T. Lawrence, City Attorney 
dec 



cu -4-19 
105WASH ST 

CUSTOM & PERFORMANCE MOTORCYCLES 

CONDITIONAL USE 

CASE NO: CU-4·19 
REQUEST: Custom Motorcycle Shop 
APPUCANT: Scot Wood -Woods Cycles 
ADDRESS: 105 W. Ash Street 
HOURS OF OPERATION: 

Monday- Friday 9:00am-6:00pm 
Saturday 9:00am-2:00pm 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 2 

MODIFICATIONS 

G · 
BE MORE 00 MORE SEYMOUR 

The CleiJI ~on Ita INIP ha been~ by lhe bell 

melhoc!I 8Wiillble ~ -~ ~lhe-inlonNbon 
.. COII'Ipiecl by ...,;ous ~ "~ bolhinlemiii...S 
..tema!IO lhe Clly c( Goldlboro, HC. U.t c(h diU~ 

en Ita INIP ~ret...t>y roCilied ttwl lhe ptlnWy lnlomlllion 101.n:111 

ltiCoAd be c:oniUIIed lot ...,...,., c( .. lnfotm8licn coruinld llllein 
The Cily c( Goldlbolo -"' h COIIIPifiiN CIOI'fteleCito dewlap .... 
dN -umt no-'~ for tie WonniCicn or ICIClney 

~en Ita INIP • Ia lllrictly fotWden 1o Ml or~.,... 
!NIPS or dN lot 8!1)1 -.on wiChaiA lhe Wllltenconwll d 11M Cily ol 
Goldlll«o 



Slbr~ fw. 
Bike, ,.. lie 

t.~wlJ o .. 

CONDITIONAL USE 

CASE NO: CU~-19 
REQUEST: Custom Motorcycle Shop 
APPLICANT: Scot Wood • Woods Cycles 
ADDRESS: 105 W. Ash Street 
HOURS OF OPERATION: 

Monday - Friday 9:00am-6:00pm 
Saturday 9:00am-2:00pm 

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES: 2 

Dot 

at 

Dot 

Dot 

MQDIFICATIQNS 

G · L S 
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR 



SUBJECT: 

BACKGROUND: 

DISCUSSION : 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

APRIL 1, 2019 COUNCIL MEETING 

Item 

Unified Development Ordinance Amendments 

---

The City Council adopted the Unified Development 
Ordinance on April 4, 2005, which replaced existing land 
development regulations for the City of Goldsboro and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction. 

Since that time, the UDO has been amended, over the 
years, to address a number of minor text corrections and 
major changes as directed by the Council. 

Currently, a number of proposed changes for 
consideration are "Minor Text Amendments" to Sections 
within the UDO under Article 5.0 Zoning as follows: 

• Section 5.2 General Setback, Height and 
Area Standards; 

• Section 5.3 General Use District 
Dimensional Tables/Standards; 

• Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses; 
• Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District; 
• Section 5.10 Accident Potential Zone; and 
• Section 9.0 Definitions. 

Proposed changes are to reflect the recommendations 
from the 2011 Seymour Johnson AFB Air Installation 
Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) report. 

A Notice of Public Hearing listing all the Sections of the 
UDO under consideration for amendment was advertised 
for two consecutive weeks in the newspaper and posted 
on the City's website for review. 

Minor changes, which are included for possible 
amendment include: 

1. Amending Section 5.2 General Setback, Height and 
Area Standards by rewriting Subsection 5.2.7 

Page 1 of 3 

R



Special Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and 
Goldsboro-Wayne Municipal Airport Height 
Regulations and Limitations; 

2. Amending Section 5.3 General Use District 
Dimensional Tables/Standards by rewriting 
Subsection 5.3.5.1 Additional Standards; 

3. Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by 
adding to Subsection 5.4.2 Criteria for Approving 
Unlisted Uses; 

4. Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by 
adding a new Subsection 5.4.3 Permitted Uses 
within the Noise Overlay District or Accident 
Potential Zone; 

5. Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by 
rewriting Subsections 5.9.1 Purpose and 5.9.2 
Establishment; 

6. Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by 
renaming Subsection 5.9.4 from "Permitted Uses" 
to "Land Use Compatibility and Noise Exposure and 
add table; 

7. Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by 
adding new Subsections 5.9.4.1 Key to Land Use 
Compatibility Noise Exposure Table and 5.9.4.1.2 
Notes to Land Use Compatibility Noise Exposure 
Table; 

8. Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by 
rewrit ing Subsection 5.9.13 Replacement, 
Expansion and Reconstruction of Nonconforming 
Structures and Land Uses in the Noise Overlay 
District; 

9. Amending Section 5.10 Accident Potential Zone by 
deleting in its entirety and rewriting and adding 
Land use Compatibility and Accident Potential 
Table to include Subsections 5.10.4.1 Key to Land 
Use Compatibility Accident Potential Table and 

Page 2 of 3 



RECOMMENDATION: 

5.10.4.2 Notes to land Use Compatibility Accident 
Potential Table; and 

10. Amending Section 9.0 Definitions by rewriting 
Subsection 9.2 Definitions as it relates to the 
Definition for Agricultural Use. 

Staff has reviewed the proposed changes with Seymour 
Johnson AFB Deputy Base Engineer and SJAFB 
recommends approval of proposed amendments. 

At the public hearing held on March 18, 2019, nine people 
spoke in regards to the proposed amendments and cited 
concerns with decrease in property values due to Noise 
Overlay District and restrictions on land use due to SJAFB 
requirements. One person spoke in favor of the proposed 
amendments. 

The Planning Commission, at their meeting held on March 
25, 2019, recommended approval of the Unified 
Development Ordinance {UDO) Text Amendment. 

By motion, accept the recommendation of the Planning 
Commission and 

1. Adopt an ordinance amending the Unified 
Development Ordinance {UDO) to reflect the 
recommendations from the 2011 Seymour Johnson 
AFB Air Installation Compatible Use Zone {AICUZ) 
report. 

Date: _____,0'--"2'-+f _1-v_(..,_\ t'J __ _ 

Date: ________________ __ 

City Manager 

Page 3 of 3 



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND CITY COUNOL 

TO CONSIDER AMENDMENTS TO SECTION 5.0 ENTITLED "ZONING" 
OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE 

1. Amend ction .2 Gen al tback, H ight nd Area tandard . By deleting and 
rewriting Sub ection .2 7 Sp cial eymour John on Air rorc B and yoldsbo o-Wayne 

unidpal Airp rt Height gul ti n nd imit tion tor d a f llow : 

No structure shall exceed the applicable height limitations established by the Seymour Johnson 
Air Force Base "AICUZ Update- Air Installation Compatibility Use Zone report. The Air Force 
AICUZ height restrictions are based on those contained in Federal Aviation Administration 
(FAA) Regulation Part 77, and are documented in the U.S. Department of Defense document 
"Unified Facility Criteria 3-260-01, Airfield and Heliport Planning and Design'' or the applicabl 
height limitati ns of the Goldsboro-Wayne Municipal Airport Layout Plan Report on file at the 
City of Goldsboro Planning and Community Development Department. 

2. Am nd cti n neral U i trid im n ionaJ I blev tandard . ub ction 
5. .5.1 Additi nal Standard . y de) tin and adding the followin : 

4. The regulating densities for any proposed use within the AB District shall be calculated per 
the Land Use Compatibility and Accident Potential table within Section 5.10 (Accident 
Potential Zone). 

• A¥erage DeRSity :f\r;erage EieflSit:y ef perseRS per he\H' El'tH'ing a tweAty fetu he\H' perieEI 
are eakalateEI by ta1€:i:Rg t:he A\Hftber ef perseAS per aere e*pedea 9f\ sile, HH:tlaplieEI by 
t:he AtHR9er ef heY:Fs tfiey will be 9f\ sile af\Q Qi,·iding tfie rota! by tweAty feY:F. 

I':Mample: ORe eight heY:F shlh ef thirty 'N'erkers 9f\ a 91'\e aere site. 
Average Def\Sily ag perseAS * 8 heY:Fs eA site/laere - 24Q perseRS per aere per he'tH'. 
24Q /24 A'•erage EieRSi:ty ef lQ perseRS per aere per he\H' per a tweAt:y feY:F heY:F 
peried. 

• :Ma>Eiu\Y:m DetlSit:y The ~Ym EieflSity ef pers9flS aJle·Ned J:ler aere J:ler he'tH' is 
eiHealated by Eli·;iEI:ing tfie f\\Hftber ef he\H's perseRS will ee eA site ey t\'l'ef\ty fear fieY:FS 
aAd t:heA Eli¥iEI:ing twenty fi·;e perseAS per aere, per hear 9y the res\llt. 

l':*ample: MaMiB\t:~:m EleRSity fer twe eig:At hew shii~ eA a 91'\e aere sile. 
2a (maMim\Uf\ average deASity) Eliv-iaed by 16 hears (twe shifts) Elivided by tweAt:y 
fel:lf fieY:FS a7.e perseRS per aere per heY:F aJleweEI. 

The average EieAsit:y fer aAY ase iA t:he Airpert 8asiAess Distriet may Ael e*eeed t:vlent:y 
five perseRS J:ler aere EIY:FiAg a l=\veAt:y few heY:F peried. The maJEilmHA EieASity may Ret 
e*eeed fifty perseRS per aere J:ler hew at cmy eRe H:me. 

Amend 
5.4.2 riteria or 

able f rmitted U . By ddin th followin t ub e lion 
nli t d U e . 

13. If the use is located within th N is Overlay District or an Accident Potential Zone, 
recommendations from Seymour Johnson Air For Ba will be considered. 



4. Amend ection 5. fa le of rmitted U e . By adding th new ub ection .4. a 
f llow : 

5.4.3 PERMITTED USES WITHIN THE NOISE OVERLAY DISTRICT OR ACCIDENT 
POTENTIAL ZONE 

1. Not all uses listed in the Table of Permitted Uses are allowed within the Noise 
Overlay District or Accident Potential Zone, or they may be allowed under 
certain conditions. For permitted uses within the areas, refer to the tables in 
Section 5.9 and 5.10. For example, some uses listed as a Conditional Use for 
AB (Airport Business District) may not be permitted depending on which 
Accident Potential Zone the use is proposed in. If the use is located within the 
Noise Overlay District or an Accident Potential Zone, recommendations from 
Seymour Johnson AFB will be considered. 

5. Amend ection 5.9 Noi verlay District. By del tin andrew iting ubsection 
5.9.1 Purpo nd 5.9.2 ta H hm nt to d as follow : 

5.9.1 PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Noise Overlay District is to provide for compatible development of 
land in areas subject to increased aircraft noise exposure and accident potential due to aircraft 
operations surrounding Seymour J hnson Air Fore Base. Th district is designed to limit uses 
that could increase risks to public health, safety and general welfare while also protecting military 
aircrafts hom encroachment E)tlalit:y ef life and to mitigate the impacts of aircraft noise on existing 
and newly permitted uses. In addition, the district is intended to require notification on plats and 
site plans to all present and future owners that property within this district is exposed to aircraft 
noise potentially in excess of a set~nd le\•el ef 65dB day - night average A - weighted sound level 
(DNL). 

5.9.2 ESTABLISHMENT 

The Goldsboro Noise Overlay District, known in this Section as th ''noise overlay district 
or district," is hereby established as a district that overlaps and overlays existing zoning districts. 
The district is further divided into four sub-districts corresp nding to the 65-7{)69QBDNL, 70-
7a74dBDNL, 75-8Q79dBDNL, 80-&WbDNL and 85+DNL noise contours of the Seymour Johnson 
AFB AICUZ Updat d- Air Installation Compatibility Use Zone (AlCUZ) Study report, a copy of 
which is kept on file in the Planning and Community Development Department. The boundaries 
of the noise district and sub-districts ar indicated on the Official Zoning Map of the City. 

6. tion .9 Noi erlay i trict . By r n ming ub ·e ti n .9. from 
"P rmitted U e " to " I and U e omp tibili and Noi e .xpo ur " to r ad a follow nd y 
adding the indicated table. 

5.9.4 LAND USE COMPATIBTLITY AND NOISE EXPOSURE 



The noise district contains several general use zoning districts. Uses permitted in such 
districts, whether by right or as a conditional or special use, shall be permitted in the Noise 
Overlay District according to the standards and the restrictions indicated in the following table 
except as provid din Section 5.9.13. Some uses are not permitted in the Noise Overlay District as 
indicated in the table below. 

SLUCM 
NO. 

11 

11.11 

11.12 

11.13 

11.21 

11.22 

11.31 

11.32 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

21 

22 

23 

Land Use 

Land Use Name 

Household Units Nt 

Single units: detached Nt 

Single units: semi- Nt 
detached 
Single units: attached Nt 
row 

Two units : side-by-side Nt 

Two units : one above Nt 
the other 

Apartments: walk-up Nl 

Apartments: elevator Nl 

Group Quarters Nt 

Residential hotels Nt 

Manufactured homes Nl 

Transi nt lodging Nt 

Other residential, 
manufactur d homes on Nl 
individual lots 

y 

y 

Apparel and other finish 
products; products mad y 

from fabrics, leather and 

DNL DNL 
80-84 85+ 

Contou Contou 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nl N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt N N N 

Nt Nl N N 

Nt Nt N N 

Y2 y Y4 N 

Y2 y Y• N 

Y2 Y3 Y4 N 



Land Use and Noise 

DNL65-
DNL DNL DNL 

SLUCM DNL70-74 75-79 80-84 85+ 
NO. 

Land Use Name 69 
Con tow Contou Contou Contou 

Con tow 
r r r 

similar materials; 
manufacturing 

Lumber and wood 
24 products (except y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

25 y Y2 Y3 Y4 N 

26 y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

27 y Y2 Y3 Y4 N 

28 y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

29 y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

31 y Y2 Y3 Y4 N 

32 y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

33 y Y2 y Y4 N 

34 y Y"- YJ Y4 N 

Professional, scientific, 
and controlling 

35 instruments, y 25 0 N N 
photographic and optical 

· watch & clocks 

39 y Y2 YJ Y4 N 



SLUCM 
NO. 

42 

44 

45 

46 
47 
48 

49 

51 

52 

53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

Land Use 

Land Use Name 

Motor vehicle 

Utilities 
Other transportation, 
communication and 
utilities 

Wholesale trade 
Retail Trade - building 
materials, hardware and 
farm 
Retail trade - including 
shopping centers, 
disc unt clubs, home 
improvement stor s, 
electronic sup rstores, 
etc. 
Retail trade -
Retail trade -
automotive, marine 
craft, aircraft and 
accessories 
R tail trade - apparel 
and accessories 
Retail trade - furniture, 
home furnishings and 

Finance, insurance and 
real estate services 

DNL65-
69 

Contour 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

and Noise 
DNL DNL 

DNL70-74 80-84 85+ 
Contour Contou Contou Contou 

r r r 

Y2 y Y• N 

Y2 YJ Y4 N 

Y2 YJ Y4 N 

y y y N 

N 
N 

Y2 YJ Y4 N 

25 5 30 5 N N 

Y2 YJ Y4 N 

25 30 Y4 N 

25 30 N N 

N N 

25 30 N N 

25 30 N N 

25 30 N N 

25 N N 

25 



Land Use Comoatibilitv and Noise 

I DNL65-
DNL DNL DNL 

SLUCM I Land Use Name 69 
DNL 70-74 75-79 80-84 85+ 

NO. 
Contour 

Contour Contou Contou Contou 
r r r 

62 Personal services y 25 30 N N 

62.4 .Cemeteries y Y2 YJ y4,11 y6,11 

Business services (credit 
reporting; mail, 

63 I stenographic, I y I 25 I 30 I N I N 
reproduction; 

ivertising} I r~:u•ohnue!'inn ~nl'l 
y Y2 YJ Y4 N 

y Y2 Y3 Y4 N 
y 25 30 N N 

65.1 
Hospitals, Other medical 

25 30 N N N 
facilities 

65.16 Nursing Homes Nt Nt N N N 

66 1 
Con~act construction y 25 30 N N 
serv1ces 

67 Government services 25 N 
68 Education services 30 N 

Child Care services, 
68.1 I child development I 25 I 30 I N I N I N 

centers, and nurseries 

69 I Miscellaneous I y I 25 I 30 I N I N 

Cultural activities 

I I I I I 
Nature exhibits t N N N N 

Public assemblr y N N N N 

72.1 
I Auditoriums, concert 

halls 
I 25 I 30 I N I N I N 

72.11 
Outdoor music shells, I N I N I N I N I N am 1·· 

72.2 
Outdoor sports arenas, I Y7 I Y7 I N I N I N 
s 
Amusement -

73 
I fairgrounds, miniature 

goli, driving ranges, 
I y I y I N I N I N 

amusement oark. etc. 



Land Use and Noise 

DNL65-
DNL DNL 

SLUCM 
Land Use Name 69 

DNL 70-74 75-79 80-84 
NO. 

Contour 
Contour Contou Contou 

r r 
Recreational activities 

74 
(including golf courses, y 25 30 N 
riding stables, water 
recreation 

75 
Resorts and group y 25 N N 

76 25 N N 

79 y 25 N N 

81 ys YIO YJO,ll 

81.5 y N N 

81.7 ys N N 

ys y JO.ll 

85 

89 
or extraction 

y y y y 

7. Amend Se tion 5. N i 
r lative to the foreg ing t ble 

rlay Di h'kt. By addin the followin n w 
follow : 

5.9.4.1 KEY TO LAND USE COMPATIBILITY NOISE EXPOSURE TABLE 

SLUCUM- Standard Land Coding Manual, U.S. Department of Transportation. 
Y (Yes)- Land Use and related structures are normally compatible without restriction. 

DNL 
85+ 

Contou 
r 

N 

N 

N 

N 

y JO,ll 

N 

N 

Y IO,ll 

y 

N (No)- Land Use and related structures are normally compatible without and should be 

prohibited. 
yx -Yes with restrictions. The land uses and r lated structures are generally compatible; 

however, see notes indicated by the superscript 
NX - No with exceptions. The land uses and related structures are g nerally incompatible; 

however, see notes indicated by the superscript 



25, 30, or 35- The numbers refer to noise level reduction (NLR) levels. NLR (outdoor to indoor) 

is achieved through the incorporation of noise attenuation into the design and construction of a 
structure. Land use and related structures are generally compatible; however, measures to 

achieve NLR of 25, 30, or 35 must be incorporated into design and construction of structures. 
However, measures to achieve an overall noise reduction do not necessarily solve noise 
difficulties outside the structure and additional evaluation is warranted. Also, see notes 
indicated by superscripts where they appear with one of these numbers. 

DNL - Day-Night Average Sound Level 

5.9.4.1.2 NOTES TO LAND USE COMPATIBILITY NOISE EXPOSURE TABLE 

1. General 

a. Although local conditions regarding the need for housing may require residential use in 
these zones, residential use is discouraged in DNL 65-69 and strongly discouraged in DNL 
70-74. Existing residential development is considered as pre-existing, nonconforming land 
uses. 

b. Where these uses are allowed, measures to achieve outdoor to indoor NLR of at least 25 
decibels (dB) in DNL 65-69 and 30 dB in DNL 70-74 must be incorporated 

c. Normal permanent construction can be expected to provide an NLR of 20 dB, thus the 
reduction requirements are often stated as 5, 10, or 15 dB over standard construction and 
normally assume mechanical ventilation, upgraded sound transmission class ratings in 
windows and doors, and dosed windows year round. Additional consideration will be given 
to modifying NLR levels based on peak noise levels or vibrations. 

d. NLR criteria will not eliminate outdoor noise problems. However, building location, site 
planning, design, and use of berms and barriers can help mitigate outdoor noise exposure 
particularly from ground lev 1 sources. Measures that reduce noise at a site should be used 
wherever practical in preference to measures that only protect interior spaces. 

2. Measures to achieve a NLR of 25 must be incorporated into the design and construction of 
portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or 
where the normal noise level is low. 

3. Measures to achieve a NLR of 30 must be incorporated into the design and construction of 
portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or 
where the normal noise level is low. 

4. Measures to achieve a NLR of 35 must be incorporated into the design and construction of 
portions of these buildings where the public is received, office areas, noise sensitive areas, or 
where the normal noise level is low. 

5. If a projector or proposed development is noise sensitive, use indicated NLR; if not, land 
use compatible without NLR. 

6. Buildings are not permitted. 



7. Land use is compatible provided special sonnd reinforcement systems are installed. 

8. Residential buildings require a NLR of 25. 

9. Residential buildings require a NLR of 30. 

10. Residential buildings are not permitted. 

11. Land use that involves outdoor activities is not recommended, but if the community 
allows such activities, hearing protection devices should be worn when noise sources are 
present. Long-term exposure (multiple hours per day over many years) to high noise levels 
can cause hearing loss in some nnprotected individuals. 

8. Amend ction 5.9 Noise Ov rlay i trict Subsection 5.9.1 R ~P 
XPANSION AND R NS U N RMIN S 

NO U lN N IS . V 1 T by deleting and rewriting portions 
a follow : 

Single-Family Dwellings 

Existing single-family dwellings located within the 70-74, 75-79, 80-84 and 80+ EIBDNL 
contour may be reconstruct d if destroy d or damaged greater than 50% of their tax 
value, as shown on the Wayne County tax rolls, if a noise level reduction of 30 dB is 
provided inside the dwelling. Any reconstru tion shall meet aU applicable setbacks and 
lot area requirements of this Ordinan e. Existing single-family dwellings within the 70-
74,75-79,80-84 and 80+EIBDNL contours may expand one time provided the expansion 
does not exceed 50% of the area of the existing dwelling and complies with all 
applicable Ordinance standards. 

Existing Churches 
Existing nonconforming churches located within the Noise Overlay District 
may rebuild if they are destroyed or damaged greater than 50% of its tax value 
provided they comply with the maximum noise level reduction standards 
of 30 dB as defined in Section 5.9.10. Churches that are located within the 70-74, 
75-79,80-84 and 80+EIBDNL contours are permitt d a one-time expansion of their 
building area by no more than 25% of the area of the existing church provided they 
comply with the appropriate nois attenuation standards and all other Ordinance 
standards. 

Existing Non-Residential Uses 

Existing non-residential land uses, excluding uses located within the 89+ El8 80-84 DNL 
contour and 85+DNL contour, that are not permitt d according to Section 5.9.4 
(Permitted Use) may be reconstructed if destroyed or damaged greater than 50% of its 
tax value provided they comply with a noise level redu tion of 30 dB in areas of the 
structure where the public will be present. Existing non-residential uses that are 
destroyed or damaged within the 80+ EIBDNL contour which are not permitted 



according to Section 5.9.4 of this Code shall not be reconstructed if the damage 
sustained exceeds 50% of its tax value as defined in Section 5.6 

9. Amend edion 5.10 ccid nt Potential Z ne. By d I ting in it ntir ty and rewriting 
a follow : 

5.10 Accident Potential Zone 

5.10.1 PURPOSE 

The purpose of the Accident Potential Zone (APZ) is to limit development in areas that have 
significant potential for accidents. The Oear Zone, the area closest to the runway end is the 
most hazardous. APZ-1 is the area beyond the clear zon that possesses a significant potential 
for accidents. APZ-ll is an area beyond APZ-1 having a measurable potential for accidents. 

5.10.2 FST ABLISHMENT 

The APZ is hereby established as a district that overlaps existing zoning districts. The APZ is 
divided into three sub districts corresponding to the clear zone, APZ-1 and APZ-TI as defined 
in the Seymour Johnson Air Force Base AICUZ Updat Air Installation Compatible Use Zone 
Study report (>"\ICU~, a copy of which is kept on file in the Planning Department 
Development Department. The boundaries of the APZ overlay district are indicated on the 
Official Zoning Map of the City of Goldsboro. 

5.10.3 APPLICABILITY 

Nothing herein shall require any change in any lawfully constructed or established building, 
structure or use in existence at the time of adoption or amendment of these regulations. 

The provisions of this Section shall apply to any application for a building permit, certificate 
of occupancy, zoning, special use permit, conditional use permit, zoning compliance 
certificate, vested rights certificate and subdivision/ site plan approval 

The requirements of this Section shall apply to the construction, alteration, moving, repair, 
replacement or new use of any building o.r occupied permanent structure within the City 
located within th Accident Potential Zone (APZ). 

5.10.4 PBRMJ'ITBD USBS LAND USE COMP ATffilLITY AND ACCIDENT 
POTENTIAL 

The APZ overlay district overlaps several general use districts. Uses permitted in such 
districts, whether by right or as a special or conditional use shall be permitted in the APZ 
except as provided in the table below: 



a. Gear ZoRe· A y . • • \:lSes other than agrieu.J bHall El b • ... ..... shall be prehibile<l. 

· • .126 1: ~Jo resiEier:taall El ~~oRtesiEier:taallanEI uses sfiall: \:lSes sft.all be a:UoweEI withiA the A OZ I o•. l 
1ft • · ave le eempl .•.• · h ' 

4 

••ray ..,. 
e ""!'eft BIISifteos •eniRg -et Th :;;7 wt~ the deJlGHy slantlartls as the <iefu d I 

APl!: leverlay shall be <aleulale<i ..; leU:ws~••able <iORSilieoler ""Y propese.,.. .... ;:: :• 

• .verage OeRSity gg ty workers OR a oRe acre site 
ROtH' 24Q 124 A persoRS x 8 hot:trs OR site llaee 24Q . he . . r ' ........ ge e .... ily el10 p....... r -w pers .... per .... per 

ttr penoEI. per acre per :Rotlf per a lweflty fot:tr 

• M . d\XI:fRtllfl Density Th . aJ tti e maXllm:IH\ der . ~· f c crated by El¥ ·idiRg thb if>l e persORS allo ... eEI pe e h . . .' 40 """' e< el he""' . ,.· ". ' aee per he"' is 
aR tl eR Gt'VidJRg twel\ty fi"e . perseRS hill be OR stte by tv·eRty f R 

¥ persoRS per aee per ROt:H b th ·' ~t:tr et:trs ' ~ e resttlt 

Example: Maximtlm deRSity fer ~·· . R 

et:tr ROttrs g7.§ perseRS per acre per Re'r all O\lfS (t\vo sfti:fts) dhriEieEI by o .. el\ty t:H e• .. eEI n 

Theao•erag e · n · . .eenstty fer any ttse in the A PZ dttr.ng a 24 het:tr period The . • ' may ROt exceed twooty fi .. e (2§) at any""" tiMe. . ............,. <ieAsily may 9et .,....,e 50 v pe,..,. pcr aere perSORS per acre per J:\et:tr 

e. A12Z ll: All resideRtiallafld tts . A o A\'O (2) Yflits per acre . ~ es m the • u~ n overlay sJ:\811 Rot exceed a d · · eASity ef 

• .verage DeRSity gg ..ers OR a eRe aee site 
ft 24Q I perSORS )( 8 ftO\lfS OB site It - • 
he..,. --:' 24 - ,'\•erage <ieAsily el10 p r-aere 2W !'.....,. rer a .. e per 

ear penod. ersORS per acre pet J:\et:H per a t:v.·eRty feyr 

• M . d\Xlfflttm DeRSity Th . aJ e maXlmttm deRS · ty f <reYiate<iby <iivHiillg the......,..... elh: ' ~ ,......,. allowed per ....., pe• h811f is 
and theA: dividiRg t\ver:tty f.. ttrs persoRS 'Ni:U be OR site by tv.•eRty f A he perseRS per acre per J:\ot:tr b th our ot:trs ' ~ e resu.Jt. 



e'Hample: Ma:*iautm EieJ'lSity fer W.'e eight lleU:F sftifts eft a eRe aere site. 
2§ (maJtimt:I:B'l average EieftSity) EiiviEieEi by 18 lleU:Fs (twa sft!fts) Eii¥4EieEi by A'leHty 
feU:F ltm:lf'S ~7.3 persef\6 pei' aere per lleU:F alloweEi. 

The a·,erage EieJ'lSity fer any use m the A..I2Z may Ret e'HeeeEI tt. .. 'eHty fi'.re (29) persef\6 
per aere Eiur.:Rg a 24 lteU:F perieEi. The maJtimltm EieftSity may Ret ~eeeEI §g persef\6 per aere 
per lteU:F at any eRe time. 

Land Use Compatibility and Accident Potential 

SLUC Clear Zone APZI APZII DENSITY 
M Land Use Recommenda R mmenda Rec mrnenda Recommend 

NO. tion1 tionl tiont ation 1 

11 Household Units 

Single units: 
Maximum 

11 .11 N N density of2 
detached AC 

11.12 
Single units: 

N N N 
semi-detach d 

11.13 
Single units: N N N 
attached row 

11.21 
Two units : side-

N N N 

11.22 N N N 

11.31 N N N 

11.32 
Apartments: N N N 
elevator 

12 Group quarters N N N 

13 Residential hotels N N N 



Manufactured 
14 homes parks or N N N 

courts 

15 
Transient 

N N N 

16 N N N 

21 N N y 

Maximum 
22 N N y FAR 0.56 in 

APZIJ 
Apparel and 
other finish 
products; 

23 
products made 

N N N from fabrics, 
leather and 
similar materials; 

Lumber and 
Maximum 

wood produ ts 
24 (except N y y FAR0.28 in 

furniture); 
APZ 1 &0.56 

inAPZll 

Furniture and 
Maximum 

25 fixtures; N y y FAR0.28 in 

manufacturing 
APZl &0.56 

inAPZll 

Paper and allied 
Maximum 

FAR 0.28 in 
26 products; N y y 

APZ1 &0.56 
manufacturing inAPZll 

Land Use ompatibility and Accident Potential (cont.) 

SLUC Clear Zone APZI APZII DENSITY 
M Land Use R ommenda Recomm nda Recommenda Recommenda 

NO. tionl tion1 tion1 tionl 

Printing, Maximum 

27 
publishing, and y y FAR 0.28 in 
allied products; APZ1 &0.56 
manufacturing inAPZ II 



Chemicals and 
28 allied products; N N N 

31 N N N 

Maximum 
32 N N y FAR 0.56in 

APZll 
Primary metal Maximum 

33 products; N N y FAR0.56in 
manufac APZll 
Fabricated metal Maximum 

34 products; N N y FAR0.56 in 
APZU 

Professional, 
scientific, and 
controlling 

35 instruments, N N N 
photographic and 
optical goods; 
watch & clocks 

Maximum 

39 
Miscellan ous y y FAR 0.28 in 
manufacturing APZl &0.56 

in APZll 

Maximum 

41 N Y6 y FAR 0.28 in 
APZ 1 &0.56 

in APZll 
Maximum 

42 
Motor vehicle 

N y y FAR 0.28 in 
transportati n APZ 1 &0.56 

inAPZll 
Maximum 

43 
Aircraft 

N Y6 y FAR 0.28 in 
transportation APZ 1 &0.56 

in APZll 

44 
Marine craft 

N Y6 y Maximum 
FAR 0.28 in 



APZ 1 &0.56 
in APZ II 

Highway and Maximum 
FAR 0.28 in 45 street right-of- ys Y6 y 
APZ 1 &0.56 way 

inAPZD 
Maximum 

46 
Automotive 

N Y6 y FAR0.28 in 
parking APZ1 &0.56 

inAPZll 

Land Use Compatibility and Accident Potential (cont.) 

SLUCM 
Clear Zone APZI APZO DENSITY 

NO. 
Land Use Recommends Recommenda Recommenda Recommends 

tiont tiont tion1 tiont 
Maximum 

47 
Communicatio 

N Y6 y FAR0.28 in 
n APZ1 &0.56 

inAPZD 
Maximum 

48 Utilities7 N Y6 Y6 FAR 0.28 in 
APZ 1 &0.56 

inAPZD 
Solid waste 
disposal 

48.5 (landfills, N N N 
incin rators, 
etc. 
Other 

49 
transportation, 

N Y6 y See Note 6 
communication below 
and utilities 

Maximum 

51 
Wholesal 

N y y FAR 0.28 in 
trade APZl &0.56 

inAPZll 
Retail trade -
building 

52 
mat rials, 

N y y See note 8 
hardwar and below 
farm 



Retail trade9 -
including 
shopping 
centers, 

Maximum 
53 

discount stores, 
N N y FAR 0.16 in home 

APZll improvement 
stores, 
electronics 

etc. 
Maximum 

54 
Retail trade -

N N y FAR0.24in food 
APZll 

Retail trade -
Maximum automotive, 

FAR 0.14 in 55 marine craft, N y y 
APZ1& aircraft and 

0.28in APZ I1 accessories 
Retail trade - Maximum 

56 appar I and N N y FAR 0.28in 
accessories APZll 
Retail trade -

Maximum 
57 

furniture, home 
N N y FAR 0.28 in furnishings and 

APZll 

Retail trade -

58 
eating and 

N N N 
drinking 
establishments 

Maximum 
59 

Other retail 
N N y FAR 0.16 in trade 

APZIJ 

Finance, 
Maximum 

61 
insurance and 

N N y FAR 0.22 in 
real estate 

APZll 
services 

Office uses 
only. 

y Maximum 
62 Personal N N FAR 0.22in 

APZU 

Land Use Compatibility and Accident Potential (cont.) 



SLUC Clear Zone APZI APZII DENSITY 
M Land Use Recommenda Recommenda Recommenda Recommenda 

NO. tion1 tion1 tion1 tion1 

62.4 Cemeteries N y11 yn 

Business services 
(credit reporting; 

Maximum 
63 

mail, 
N N y FAR 0.22 in stenographic, 

APZIJ reproduction; 

Maximum 

63.7 
Warehousing and 

N y y FAR 1.0 in 
storage services12 APZl &2.0 

in APZ II 
Maximum 

64 Repair services N y y FAR 0.11 in 
APZ1 &0.22 

inAPZIT 

Professional Maximum 
65 N N y FAR0.22in services 

APZll 

65.1 N N N 

65.1 
facilities 

N N N 

Contract Maximum 
FAR 0.11 in 66 construction N y y 
APZ 1 & 0.22 services 

inAPZll 

Government Maximum 
67 N N y FAR 0.24 in services 

APZII 

68 
Education 

N N N 
services 
Child Care 
services, child 

68.1 development N N N 
centers, and 
nurseries 

Maximum 
69 Miscellaneous N N y FAR0.22in 

APZll 

69.1 N N N 



71.2 Nature exhibits N Y13 y13 

72 Public assembly N N N 

72.1 
Auditoriums, 

N N N concert halls 
Outdoor music 

72.11 shells, N N N 
amphitheaters 
Outdoor sports 

72.2 arenas, spectator N N N 
sports 
Amusement -
fairgrounds, 

73 
miniature golf, 

N N y 
driving rar~ges, 
amusement park, 
etc. 

Land Use and Compatibility and Accidental Potential (cont.) 

SLUC Clear Zone APZI APZU DENSITY 
M Land Use Recommenda Recomm nda Recommenda Recommenda 

NO. tion1 tion1 tion1 tion1 

Recreational 
activities Maximum 

74 
(including golf 

N Yl Yl FAR 0.11 in 
courses, riding APZ1 &0.22 
stables, water inAPZll 
recreation 

75 
Resorts and 

N N N group camps 

Maximum 

76 Parks N y 13 Yl FAR O.ll in 
APZ 1 & 0.22 

inAPZll 

Other cultural, 
Maximum 

FAR 0.11 in 
79 entertainment N yn y n 

APZ 1 & 0.22 
and recreation inAPZll 



81.5, 
Livestock 

81.7 
farming and N yts y14 
breeding 

Maximum 
FAR 0.28 in 
APZ1 &0.56 

Agriculture inAPZ ll; no 
82 

related activiti s N Y14 YlS activity that 
produces 

smoke, glare 
or involves 
explosives 
Maximum 

FAR0.28 in 
APZ 1 & 0.56 

Forestry activities in APZ II; no 
83 16 N y y activity that 

produces 
smoke, glare 
or involves 
explosives 
Maximum 

FAR 0.28 in 
APZl &0.56 

Fishing activities in APZll; no 
84 N17 y y activity that 17 

produces 
smoke, glare 
or involves 
explosives 

SLUC Clear Zone APZI APZII DENSITY 
M Land Use Recomm nda Recommend a Recommenda Recommenda 

NO. tion1 tion1 tionl tion1 
Maximum 

FAR 0.28 in 
APZl &0.56 

Mining 
inAPZll;no 

85 N y 1s Y1 activity that activitiests 
produces 

smoke, glare 
or involves 
explosives 



89 

91 

93 

Other res urces 
production or 
extraction 

Undeveloped 
land 
Water area 19 

N 

y 

Nt9 

y y 

y y 

N t9 

Maximum 
FAR 0.28 in 
APZ1 & 0.56 
in APZ TI; no 
activity that 

produces 
smoke, glare 
or involves 

5.10.4.1 KEY TO LAND USE COMP ATffiiLITY ACCIDENT POTENTIAL TABLE 

SLUCM- Standard Land Use Coding Manual, U.S. Department of Transportation. 

Y (Yes)- Land uses and related structures are normally compatible without restriction. 

N (No)- Land uses and related structures are not normally compatible and should be 
prohibited. 

yx- Yes with restri tions. The land uses and relat d structures are generally compatible; 
however, see notes indicated by the superscript. 

Nx - No with exceptions. The land us s and relat d structures are generally incompatible; 
however, see notes indicated by the superscript. 

FAR - Floor Area Ratio. A floor area ratio is the ratio between the square feet of floor area of 
the building and the gross site area. It is customarily used to measure non-residential 
intensities. 

DulAc - Dwelling Units per Acre. This is customarily used to measure r sidential densities. 

5.10.4.2 NOTES TO LAND USE COMPATIBILITY ACCIDENT POTENTIAL TABLE 



1. A "Yes" or a "No" designation for compatible land use is to be used only for general 
comparison. Within each, uses exist where further evaluation may be needed in each category 
as to whether it is dearly compatible, normally compatible, or not compatible due to the 
variation of densities of people and structures. In order to assist air installations and local 
governments, general suggestions as to F ARs are provided as a guide to density in some 
categories. In general, land use restrictions that limit occupants, including employees, of 
commercial, service, or industrial buildings or structures to 25 per acre in APZ I and 50 per 
acre in APZ ll are considered to be low density. Outside events should normally be limited to 
assemblies of not more than 25 people per acre in APZ 1, and maximum assemblies of 50 
people per acre in APZ ll. Recommended FARs are calculated using standard parking 
generation rates for various land uses, vehicle occupancy rates, and desired density in APZ I 
and APZ II. For APZ I, the formula is FAR= 25 people per acre/(Average Vehicle Occupancy 
x Average Parking Rate x (43560/1000)). The formula for APZ 0 is FAR= 50/(Average 
Vehicle Occupancy x Average Parking Rate x (43560/1000)). 

2. The suggested maximum density for detached single family housing is two Du/Ac.ln a 
planned unit development (PUD) of single family detached units where clustered housing 
development results in large open areas, this density could possibly be increased slightly 
provided the amount of surface area covered by structures does not exceed 20 percent of the 
PUD total area. PUD en ourages clustered development that leaves large open areas. 

3. Other factors to be considered: Labor intensity, structural coverag , explosive 
characteristics, air pollution, electronic interference with aircraft, height of structures, and 
potential glare to pilots. 

4. No structures (except airfield lighting and navigational aids necessary for the safe 
operation of the airfield when there are no other siting options), buildings, or above-ground 
utility and communications lines should normally be located in Clear Zone areas on or off the 
air installation. The Clear Zone is subj t to the most severe restrictions. 

5. Rights-of-way for fenced highways, without sidewalks or bicycle trails, are allowed. 

6. No above-ground passeng r terminals and no above-ground power transmission or 
distribution lines. Prohibited power lines include high-voltage transmission lines and 
distribution lines that pr vide power to cities, towns, or regional power for unincorporated 
areas. 

7. Development of renewable energy r sour es, including solar and geoth rmal facilities and 
wind turbines, may impact military operations through hazards to flight or electromagnetic 
interference. Each new development should be analyzed for compatibility issues on a case-by
case basis that considers both the proposal and potentially-affected mission. 

8. Within SLUCM Code 52, maximum FARs for lumberyards (SLUCM Cod 521) are 0.20 in 
APZ I and 0.40 in APZ ll. For hardware, paint, and farm equipment stores, SLUCM Code 
525, the maximum PARs ar 0.12 .in APZ I and 0.24 in APZ D. 



9. A shopping center is an integrated group of commercial establishments that is planned, 
developed, owned, or managed as a unit. Shopping center types include strip, neighborhood, 
community, regional, and super-regional facilities anchored by small businesses, a 
supermarket or drug store, discount retailer, deparbnent store, or several deparbnent stores, 
respectively. Included in this category are such uses as big box discount clubs, home 
improvement superstores, office supply superstores, and electronics superstores. The 
maximum recommended FAR for SLUCM 53 should be applied to the gross leasable area of 
the shopping center rather than attempting to use other recommended FARs listed in Table 1 
under Retail or Trade. 

10. Ancillary uses such as meeting places, auditoriums, etc., are not recommended. 

11. No chapels or houses of worship are allowed within APZ 1 or APZ II. 

U. Big box home improvement stores are not included as part of this category. 

13. Facilities must be .low intensity, and provide no playgrounds, etc. Facilities such as clubs 
houses, meeting places, auditoriums, large classes, etc., are not recommended. 

14. Livestock grazing is a compatible land use, but feedlots and intensive animal husbandry 
are excluded. Activities that attract concentrations of birds creating a hazard to aircraft 
operations should be excluded. 

15. Feedlots and intensive animal husbandry are included as compatible land uses. 

16. Lumber and timber products removed due to establishment, expansion, or maintenance 
of Clear Zone lands owned in fee will be disposed of in accordance with applicable 
Deparbnent of Defense guidance. 

17. Controlled hunting and fishing may be permitted for the purpose of wildlife 
management. 

18. Surface mining operations that could create retention ponds that may attract waterfowl 
and present bird/ wildlife aircraft strike hazards (BASH), or operations that produce dust or 
light emissions that could affect pilot vision are not compatible. 

19. Naturally occurring water features (e.g., rivers, lakes, streams, wetlands) are pre-existing, 
nonconforming land uses. Naturally occurring water features that attract waterfowl present a 
potential BASH. Actions to expand naturally occurring water features or construction of new 
water features should not be encouraged. If construction of new features is necessary for 
storm water retention, such features should be designed so that they do not attract waterfowl. 



10. Am nd ction 9.0 Definition By rewriting ub ction 9.2 efiniti n it r lat 
to the Definition for gricultur l U to read foil ws: 

9.2 DEFINITIONS 

Agricultural Use: Property used to raise, harvest or store crops, feed, breed, or manage 
livestock, or to produce plants, trees, fowl, or animals useful to man. It includes, but is not 
limited to, property used for grazing, horticulture, forestry, dairying, and mariculture. For the 
purpose of Section 5.8 (Watershed Protection) agricultural use means the use of waters for 
stock watering, irrigation and other farm purposes. For the purpose of Section 5.9 and 5.10, 
agriculture land use is separate from residential land use, does not include forestry or fishing 
activities, and is divided as follows: agriculture (except livestock), livestock farming and 
breeding, animal breeding, and agriculture related activities (e.g., agricultural processing, 
animal husbandry services, and horticultural services). 

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing and to be heard. If you plan to 
attend and requir an interpreter, please contact the City Manager's office at least four days 
prior to the m eting. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE 5 AND ARTICLE 9 RELATIVE TO 
NOISE OVERLAY DISTRICT STANDARDS 

AND 
ADOPTING UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 

FOR THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, AND 
ITS EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION 

WHEREAS, after notice duly given according to law, a public hearing was held before the 
City Council and the Planning Commission at a regular meeting held in the City Hall on Monday, 
March 18, 2019 at 7:00 p. m.; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of the public hearing was to consider the proposed changes to 
reflect the recommendations from the 2011 Seymour Johnson AFB Air Installation Compatible 
Use Zone (AICUZ) report for the City of Goldsboro and its extraterritorial jurisdiction and 
adoption of the Unified Development text amendment for the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina 
and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction; and 

WHEREAS, after completion of said public hearing and receipt of the recommendation 
of the Planning Commission, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro deems it advisable and 
for the best interest of the City and those residing within its planning jurisdiction that the above 
Sections of the Unified Development Ordinance be amended; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council further deems it advisable and for the best interest of the 
City and those residing within its zoning jurisdiction that Unified Development Ordinance 
amendments for the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, and its Extraterritorial Jurisdiction be 
adopted. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North 
Carolina: 

1. That the following Sections within the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, Unified 
Development Ordinance be amended to reflect the recommendations from the 2011 
Seymour Johnson Air Installation Compatible Use Zone (AICUZ) as follows: 

1) Amending Section 5.2 General Setback, Height and Area Standards by rewriting 
Subsection 5.2.7 Special Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and Goldsboro-Wayne 
Municipal Airport Height Regulations and Limitations; 

2) Amending Section 5.3 General Use District Dimensional Tables/Standards by 
rewriting Subsection 5.3.5.1 Additional Standards; 

Page 1 of2 



3} Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by adding to Subsection 5.4.2 
Criteria for Approving Unlisted Uses; 

4) Amending Section 5.4 Table of Permitted Uses by adding a new Subsection 5.4.3 
Permitted Uses within the Noise Overlay District or Accident Potential Zone; 

5) Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by rewriting Subsections 5.9.1 
Purpose and 5.9.2 Establishment; 

6) Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by renaming Subsection 5.9.4 from 
"Permitted Uses" to "Land Use Compatibility and Noise Exposure and add table; 

7) Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by adding new Subsections 5.9.4.1 
Key to Land Use Compatibility Noise Exposure Table and 5.9.4.1.2 Notes to Land 
Use Compatibility Noise Exposure Table; 

8) Amending Section 5.9 Noise Overlay District by rewriting Subsection 5.9.13 
Replacement, Expansion and Reconstruction of Nonconforming Structures and 
Land Uses in the Noise Overlay District; 

9) Amending Section 5.10 Accident Potential Zone by deleting in its entirety and 
rewriting and adding Land use Compatibility and Accident Potential Table to 
include Subsections 5.10.4.1 Key to Land Use Compatibility Accident Potential 
Table and 5.10.4.2 Notes to Land Use Compatibility Accident Potential Table; and 

10) Amending Section 9.0 Definitions by rewriting Subsection 9.2 Definitions as it 
relates to the Definition for Agricultural Use. 

2. That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its adoption on the below 
indicated date. 

Adopted this ____ day of _____________ ___J 2019. 

Approved as to Form Only: Reviewed by: 

City Attorney City Manager 

Page 2 of 2 



Item S 


	Agenda 4-1-19
	Item A Minutes 02 14-15 19 Retreat
	Item C  National Service Recognition Day Proclamation
	Item D  Boys and Girls Club Week Proclamation
	Item E  Week of the Young Child Proclamation
	Item H  Contract Award-Repainting of Water Tank
	Item I-1  Wastewater Collection System Rehabilitation - Change Order No. 1
	Item I-2 2018 Sewer Collection System Rehabilitation - Change Order #1 Map
	Item J-1  NCHPTC Resolution of Support
	Item J-2  NCHPTC Programs Resolution
	Item K-1  TIGER 2016 Grant Agreement
	Item K-2 Goldsboro PGA Final
	Item L-1 Splash Pad Memo
	Item L-2 Splash Pad Ordinance
	Item L-3 Splash Pad Resolution
	Item M  Z-3-19  McArthur Properties TC Agenda Memo
	Item N  Z-4-19 MC Morgan & Assoc TC Agenda Item
	Item O  Z-5-19 Allsbrook Gardens TC Agenda Item
	Item P  CU-3-19 Michael Garrett (Hatchet Throwing) TC Agenda Memo
	Item Q  CU-4-19 Wood Cycles TC Agenda Memo
	Item R  UDO-1-19 Noise Overlay Amendment TC
	Item S  Goldsboro Toastmasters Anniversary Proclamation



